
 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leicestershire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Corporate Governance Committee  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Friday, 10 May 2019 at 10.00 am 

Location: Guthlaxton Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield 

Contact: Mrs J Twomey (tel: 0116 305 2583) 

Email: joanne.twomey@leics.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

 
Mr. P. Bedford CC (Chairman) 

 
Mr. T. Barkley CC 

Mr. G. A. Boulter CC 
Mr. J. G. Coxon CC 

Mr. T. Gillard CC 
 

Mr. J. Kaufman CC 
Mr. J. T. Orson JP CC 
Mr. T. J. Richardson CC 
Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   

 
1.  

  
Minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 
2019.  
 

 
 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

2.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Questions asked by members under Standing 
Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 

 
 

 

4.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

6.  
  

Informing the External Audit Risk Assessment.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 
 
 

(Pages 9 - 40) 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works


 
 
 
 

7.  
  

Risk Management Report.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 41 - 
116) 

 A presentation will be provided as part of this item on Corporate Risk 10.1 – The 
risk that not developing an inclusive culture across all schools, education providers 
and partner agencies (including the Parent Carer Forum) will impact on parental 
confidence in the ability of the ‘whole system’ to meet the needs of the large 
majority of children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities in a 
mainstream school context. 

 

 

8.  
  

Annual Governance Statement 2019/20.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources and 
Chief Executive 
 

(Pages 117 - 
138) 

9.  
  

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 - 
Annual review of Policy Statement.  
 

Director of Law 
and Governance 
 

(Pages 139 - 
146) 

10.  
  

Ethical Standards in Local Government.  
 

Director of Law 
and Governance 
 

(Pages 147 - 
162) 

11.  
  

Internal Audit Service Progress Report.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 163 - 
178) 

12.  
  

Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 179 - 
222) 

13.  
  

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019/20.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 223 - 
236) 

14.  
  

Annual Treasury Management Report 2018/19.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 237 - 
242) 

15.  
  

Quarterly Treasury Management Update.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 243 - 
250) 

16.  
  

Date of next meeting.  
 

 
 

 

 The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled to take place on Friday, 26th July 
2019 starting at 10.00am. 
 

 

17.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 



 

  

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Corporate Governance Committee held at County Hall, 
Glenfield on Friday, 18 January 2019.  
 

PRESENT 
 

Mr. P. Bedford CC (in the Chair) 
 

Mr. T. Barkley CC 
Mr. G. A. Boulter CC 
Mr. J. G. Coxon CC 
Mr. T. Gillard CC 
 

Mr. J. Kaufman CC 
Mr. J. T. Orson JP CC 
Mrs. R. Page CC 
Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC 
 

 
 

106. Minutes of the previous meeting.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 24th October 2018 were taken as read, confirmed 
and signed.  
 

107. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
35. 
 

108. Questions asked by members under Standing Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
7(3) and 7(5). 
 

109. Urgent Items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

110. Declarations of interest.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
No declarations were made. 
 

111. Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Plan.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources regarding the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2019/20.  A 
copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 6’, are filed with these minutes. 
 
The Committee also considered a presentation provided by Link Asset Management 
(Link), the County Council’s Treasury Management Advisors, which set out the role it 
played in advising the Council on Treasury Management activities and the role of the 

3 Agenda Item 1



 
 

 

 

Committee in relation to Treasury Management oversight.  A copy of the presentation is 
filed with these minutes. 
 
The Chairman welcomed Richard Dunlop of Link to the meeting.   
 
Arising from the discussion on the presentation by Link, the following key points arose:- 
 
(i) Government had expressed concerns regarding the activities of some authorities 

who were borrowing heavily to invest in commercial property.  Whilst guidance had 
been issued by CIPFA and MHCLG this was unclear.  In this regard the County 
Council was in a different position in that it had not borrowed to invest in the 
property market; 
 

(ii) CIPFA guidance prioritised security and liquidity of Treasury Management 
investments above the rate of return; 
 

(iii) The Council’s current risk appetite was described as ‘cautious’ and no Treasury 
Management investments had been made with any bank without a good credit 
rating. This was judged on a range of indicators, including at least an ‘A’ rating by 
Standard & Poor. 

 
In respect of the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy for 2019/20, the Committee was advised as follows:- 
 
(iv) Inclusion of non-ring fenced banks on the approved counterparty list provided they 

had passed Link’s financial assessment allowed for a broader base for investment.  
All necessary due diligence would be undertaken and the risk would not be greater 
than lending to a ring fenced bank; 
 

(v) The investment criteria for property purchases and developments were set out in 
the Corporate Assets Investment Fund Strategy.  This did not include a policy in 
respect of in-County and out-of-County property investments.  The majority of 
investments made were in-County on the basis that they generated both an 
income for the Council and contributed to economic development and growth.  
Where property investments were made out-of-County these were normally in 
neighbouring authority areas. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 2019/20 be noted. 

 
(b) That a comparison of the credit ratings of ring-fenced and non-ring-fenced banks 

be presented at the next meeting of the Committee. 
 

112. Quarterly Treasury Management Update.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which set out 
the actions taken in respect of treasury management in the quarter ended 31 December 
2018.  A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 7’, is filed with these minutes.  
 
The Committee was advised that the loan of £5million to Northampton County Council 
had now been repaid with interest. 

4



 
 

 

 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

113. External Audit Plan 2018/19.  
 
The Committee considered a report which presented the External Audit Plan for 2018/19.   
A copy of the report marked, ‘Agenda Item 6’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
The Chairman welcomed John Gregory and Avtar Sohal of Grant Thornton, the County 
Council’s external auditors, to the meeting.   
 
Arising from discussion, the following points were noted: 
 
(i) Materiality was determined by a number of factors which included the Council’s 

gross expenditure and assessment of the Council’s ability to secure value for 
money.  On this basis, materiality had been set at 2% of gross expenditure, i.e. 
£14million; 
 

(ii) The audit of the valuation of land and buildings was based on an assessment of the 
management processes and assumptions for calculating the estimate and the 
competency and capability of the valuer.  Only in very exceptional circumstances 
would the Auditor commission an independent valuation. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

114. Business Continuity Annual Report.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Executive which provided an annual 
update on the Council’s resilience and business continuity activities and work undertaken 
with other authorities in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland on such activities.  A copy 
of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 9’, and the presentation slides are filed with these 
minutes. 
 
Arising from discussions the following points were noted: 
 
(i) All district councils were part of the Resilience Partnership and contributed 

financially to it. The LRF worked closely with and provided officer support to all 
districts in helping develop their business continuity plans; 
 

(ii) The LRF worked with parishes who wished to develop local resilience plans. In non-
parished areas it was up to local community or voluntary sector groups to take the 
lead on such matters and the LRF would work with them. Currently there 47 local 
plans in place; 

 

(iii) The County Council has been working closely with the MCHLG on Brexit planning. 
The key focus has been on the freight operations at East Midlands Airport. Other 
areas of work involved the impact on health and social care services and on support 
to small businesses. Given the uncertainty, drawing up precise and costed plans 
was difficult.  

5



 
 

 

 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

115. Risk Management Report.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources, the purpose 
of which was to provide an overview of key risk areas and the measures being taken to 
address them.  A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 10, is filed with these minutes. 
 
Arising from discussions the following points were noted: 

 
(i) Risk 1.8 (risk to the Council’s financial position and services if public sector partners 

and major providers of public services get into financial difficulty) - Members were 
advised that the focus would be on financial plans and deficits in maintained 
schools.  With regard to other suppliers and their stability there was close 
monitoring, but it would not be possible to eliminate this risk completely; 
 

(ii) Risk 10.1 (risk to parental confidence in the ability of the ‘whole system’ to meet the 
needs of children with SEND in a mainstream school context if the Authority and its 
partners do not succeed in developing an inclusive culture across all schools, 
education providers and partner agencies (including the Parent Carer Forum)) - 
Maintained schools and academies had responded positively to the SEND 
consultation currently underway to develop additional capacity within Leicestershire; 

 

(iii) Risks 7.2 and 7.3 - (risk of recruitment and retention of staff within the Adults and 
Communities Department resulting in a reliance on agency staff and ensuring it has 
a sustainable external workforce to meet the Council’s statutory responsibilities) 
work was underway to address the issue of recruitment and retention and 
consideration was being given to the introduction of market supplements.  

 
RESOLVED:  

 
(a) That the contents of the report be noted; 

 
(b) That the current status of the strategic risks and emerging risks facing the Council, 

the Risk Management Healthcheck and insurance and counter fraud, be noted; 
 

(c) That a presentation and report be provided for the next meeting of the Committee 
on Risk 10.1 – Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND); 

 

(d) That the Revised Risk Management Policy Statement and current Risk 
Management Strategy remain fit for purpose and be attached as an Appendix to the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-2023 and presented to the Cabinet and 
County Council in February; 
 

(e) That it be noted that the Risk Management Strategy will be reviewed in detail during 
2019 taking into account the outcome of the health check undertaken by a 
consultant from Risk Management Partners and the outcome reported to a future 
meeting of the Committee.  
 
 

6



 
 

 

 

116. Internal Audit Service Progress Report.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which 
summarised the work of Leicestershire County Council’s Internal Audit Service (LCCIAS) 
finalised since the last report to the Committee, highlighted audits where high importance 
recommendations had been made and provided a brief overview of the resources of the 
Internal Audit Service.  A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 11’, is filed with these 
minutes. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the contents of the report be noted; 
 

117. Date of next meeting.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the next meeting of the Committee be held on Friday 10th May 2019 at 10:00am. 
 
 
 

10.00 am - 12.45 pm CHAIRMAN 
18 January 2019 

 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 10 MAY 2019   
 

EXTERNAL AUDIT RISK ASSESSMENT 2018/19 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. To present the County Councils response to the External Auditors Risk Assessment 

2018/19 for consideration and comment. 
 
External Audit Risk Assessment 
 
2. The Council’s External Auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP, have prepared a report 

‘Informing the audit risk assessment for Leicestershire County Council 2018/19’ a 
copy of which is attached as an Appendix to this report.  
 

3. The assessment is undertaken by Grant Thornton as part of its risk assessment 
procedures.  It is used to gain an understanding of the Council’s processes and 
managing officer’s views on various auditing standards.  The report sets out 
questions raised by Grant Thornton on areas such as fraud, laws and regulations, 
going concerns, accounting estimates and related parties, all of which have an 
impact on the Council’s operations.  

 
4. Management (Finance, Internal Audit and Legal Services) have completed a self-

assessment of the questions and provided responses to the External Auditor. These 
are included within the Auditors report and reflect updates provided to this 
Committee. 

 
5. As part of its assessment of the above risk areas, the external auditor is required to 

make inquiries of the Corporate Governance Committee under auditing standards. 
Presentation of the report to this Committee also contributes towards the effective 
two-way communication between auditors and the Council’s Corporate Governance 
Committee, as 'those charged with governance'.  

 
6. Representatives from Grant Thornton will attend the meeting to present the report 

and answer any questions. 
 

Recommendation 
 
7. The Committee is asked to note the attached report and to provide any comments 

on the management responses. 
 

 
 

 
9 Agenda Item 6



  

Equal Opportunities 
 
8. None. 
 
Circulation Under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
9. None. 
 
Background Papers 
 
10. None. 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Finance, Corporate Resources Department 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk   
 
Mr D Keegan, Head of Finance, Corporate Resources Department 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix – Report by Grant Thornton - Informing the audit risk assessment for 
Leicestershire County Council 2018/19’ 

10

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


Informing the audit risk assessment 

Leicestershire County Council 
2018/19

APPENDIX

11



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment2

Agenda

Purpose 3

Fraud 4

Fraud risk assessment 5

Laws and regulations 9

Impact of laws and regulations 10

Going concern 12

Going concern considerations 13

Related parties 16

Related parties considerations 17

Accounting estimates 20

Appendix A – Accounting estimates 22

12



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment3

Purpose
The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between auditors and the Council’s Corporate 

Governance Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the auditor risk assessment where 

we are required to make inquiries of the Corporate Governance Committee under auditing standards.

Background

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA(UK&I)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the 

Corporate Governance Committee. ISA(UK&I) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Corporate 

Governance Committee and also specify matters that should be communicated. 

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Corporate Governance Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit 

and developing a constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Corporate 

Governance Committee and supports the Corporate Governance Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting 

process. 

Communication

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Corporate 

Governance Committee’s oversight of the following areas:

• fraud

• laws and regulations

• going concern

• related parties

• accounting estimates.

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from the Council's management. 

The Corporate Governance Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with the its understanding and whether there 

are any further comments it wishes to make.

13



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment4

Fraud
Matters in relation to fraud

ISA(UK&I)240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Corporate Governance Committee and management. Management, 

with the oversight of the Corporate Governance Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence and 

encourage a culture of honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Corporate Governance Committee should consider the 

potential for override of controls and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to 

fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the potential for management override of 

controls.

As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements 

management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including:

• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud

• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks

• communication with the Corporate Governance Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud

• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour.

We need to understand how the Corporate Governance Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries of 

both management and the Corporate Governance Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These areas 

have been set out in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from the Council's management. 

14



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment5

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

Has the Council assessed the risk of material 

misstatement in the financial statements due 

to fraud, including the nature, extent and 

frequency of such assessments?

Yes. Continually assessed via a number of indicators: Effective monthly budget monitoring 

and challenge through empowering budget managers to be accountable for their cost 

centres. Review by Finance business partners and corporate finance.

Effective finance and internal audit functions.

Regular bank and control account reconciliations overseen by Corporate Finance.

Balanced scorecard of key controls reported to Chief management and departmental 

management teams.

What processes does the Authority have in 

place to identify and respond to risks of fraud, 

including any identified specific risks of fraud 

and risks of fraud likely to exist?

The Council undertakes a biennial fraud risk assessment (FRA).  The lead officer for this is 

the Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service (HoIAS) and the FRA is tabled at the 

Corporate Governance Committee (usually at January committee each year). The fraud 

risk assessment process seeks to identify, and score relative to one another, the fraud risks 

facing the County Council.  Scores are derived from discussions with key service leads, 

departmental risk champions and from both local and national fraud intelligence.  

Subsequently, the results of the fraud risk assessment are used to inform the annual 

Internal Audit planning process, i.e. in order that audit resources are targeted to those 

areas of perceived higher risk. 

Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a 

high risk of fraud, been identified and what has 

been done to mitigate these risks?

The Council is always vigilant to the threat of fraud and Internal Audit work is planned to 

highlight the threat of potential fraud.  High scoring areas arising from the Fraud Risk 

Assessment are used to inform the annual Internal Audit Plan.  For 2019/20 the risk of 

Adult Social Care fraud is prominent, e.g. direct payments misuse.

Are internal controls, including segregation of 

duties, in place and operating effectively?

If not, where are the risk areas and what 

mitigating actions have been taken?

Overall internal controls work effectively and Internal Audit report on ineffective controls 

which are corrected by management.

15



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment6

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response

Are there any areas where there is a potential 

for override of controls or inappropriate 

influence over the financial reporting process 

(for example because of undue pressure to 

achieve financial targets)?

Not significantly. Financial and operational targets are an important part of the 

management process however there are a number of officers in the process that would 

counter any significant risk. This includes strategic budget managers (who review 

individual cost centre budget forecasts), and the finance function. The finance function 

comprises review by the Finance and Analysis Team (FAIT), the finance business partner 

team and the Technical Accounting Team. Reports are collated and reviewed by the Head 

of Finance and the Assistant Director for Finance. 

Are there any areas where there is a potential 

for misreporting override of controls or 

inappropriate influence over the financial 

reporting process?

See above response

How does the Council communicate with those 

charged with governance regarding their 

processes for identifying and responding to 

risks of fraud in the entity?

(Wording change)

The Corporate Governance Committee meets on a quarterly basis.  Regular counter fraud 

updates are provided to the Committee by the HoIAS, acting as representative of the 

s.151 officer.  As an example, the CGC will receive the biennial fraud risk assessment 

(FRA), setting out what the Council considers its major fraud risks to be.  This FRA is used 

by the HoIAS to inform the annual audit planning process, i.e. to target counter fraud 

resources into areas of perceived greatest risk.

The Council’s suite of counter fraud policies and procedures are approved by the 

Corporate Governance Committee (most recently 24 October 2018).  This includes the 

biennial refresh of the Council’s overarching Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy and the 

two-year action plan that sits within it.  This plan sets out a range of intended actions over 

a two-year period designed to improve the Council’s resilience to fraud yet further.

16



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment7

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

How does the Council communicate ethical 

behaviour of its staff and contractors?
In addition to the Council’s suite of counter fraud policies and procedures, there are a 

number of indirectly-linked policies such as an Employee Code of Conduct and policies for 

the declarations of interests and gifts and hospitality. The Monitoring Officer reviews 

entries with the HoIAS each year which may result in further questions/clarifications.

The Council ran a fraud awareness campaign in November 2018 to coincide with 

International Fraud Awareness week.  This saw targeted communications to staff in a 

number of areas over the course of a week, designed to raise awareness of fraud risks 

affecting organisations such as ours.  This gave the opportunity to discuss Council policy 

in a number of areas, e.g. gifts & hospitality, declaring personal interests (both aligned to 

bribery risk), and indeed to direct staff to both the Council’s policies and procedures, and 

the mandatory fraud awareness e-learning module.

The fraud awareness campaign was fully supported by the Corporate Management Team 

and indeed part of the communication strategy employed saw each Director writing to all 

staff within their department to promote the campaign and to signpost staff to further 

information.

The Council has a wealth of information on fraud on both its externally-facing website and 

on the internal staff intranet.

A supplier code of conduct was approved by Corporate Governance Committee in October 

2018 and an internal audit of compliance will follow in 2019-20 

How do you encourage staff to report their 

concerns about fraud? Have any significant 

issues been reported?

The Council regularly promotes its whistleblowing process to staff. No significant issues 

have been reported.

Are you aware of any related party 

relationships or transactions that could give rise 

to risks of fraud?

Not aware of any related party relationships or transactions that could give rise to 

instances of fraud.  Monitoring and controls in place mitigate the risk.

17



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment8

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

Are you aware of any instances of actual, 

suspected, or alleged fraud either within the 

Council as a whole or within specific 

departments since 1 April 2018?

Within Leicestershire County Council, strategic and operational responsibility for counter 

fraud rests with the Head of Internal Audit Service.  Therefore, the HoIAS is routinely 

aware of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity. A list of investigations 

is held by the HoIAS and such details are kept confidential so as not to jeopardise such 

investigations. This list can be shared with GT upon request as appropriate. The 

Corporate Governance Committee is updated on concluded investigations via progress 

reports.

The Internal Audit Service is responsible, annually, for completing both the CIPFA Fraud & 

Corruption tracker and the Council’s reporting obligations for fraud under the Local 

Government Transparency Code.  These processes both summarise the fraud activity that 

the Council has been exposed to in the previous year.

On a biennial basis, the Internal Audit Service produces a fraud risk assessment.  The 

FRA process seeks to identify, and score relative to one another, the fraud risks facing the 

County Council.  Subsequently, the results of the fraud risk assessment are used to inform 

the annual Internal Audit planning process, i.e. in order that audit resources are targeted to 

those areas of perceived higher risk.  

The Internal Audit Service has a qualified CIPFA Counter Fraud Technician.  Part of this 

role includes attendance at regional fraud group meetings involving other county councils.  

This is one example how fraud intelligence is shared, i.e. frauds affecting other councils 

that we need to be mindful of.

Are you aware of any whistle-blower reports or 

reports under the Bribery Act since 1 April 

2018?

If so how does the Corporate Governance 

Committee respond to these?

None

18



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment9

Laws and regulations

Matters in relation to laws and regulations

ISA(UK&I)250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Corporate Governance Committee, is responsible for ensuring that the Council's operations are 

conducted in accordance with laws and regulations including those that determine amounts in the financial statements.

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to 

fraud or error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required 

to make inquiries of management and the Corporate Governance Committee as to whether the entity is in compliance with laws and 

regulations. Where we become aware of information of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the 

noncompliance and the possible effect on the financial statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out overleaf together with responses from management.

19



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment10

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

What arrangements does the Council have 

in place to prevent and detect non-

compliance with laws and regulations?

The operation of the statutory officer roles (Head of Paid Services, Monitoring Officer and 

Chief Financial Officer) help to ensure compliance with laws and regulations. For example, 

the Monitoring Officer has the authority to report to Council if they considers that any 

proposal, decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness or maladministration, thereby 

stopping the proposal or decision being implemented until the report has been considered.

Finance and Legal implications are outlined in all committee reports.

County Council policies, finance procedural rules and contract procedure rules. 

Specialist teams, legal, finance, risk management, procurement, internal audit etc.

How does management gain assurance that 

all relevant laws and regulations have been 

complied with?

As above plus, the Internal Audit Service operates to the standards set out in the “Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards” and the Internal Audit Plan specifically considers compliance 

with laws and regulations.

The Council regularly promotes its whistleblowing process to staff. 

How is the Corporate Governance 

Committee provided with assurance that all 

relevant laws and regulations have been 

complied with?

Standard reporting formats requires that legal implications are outlined in all committee 
reports.

The Monitoring Officer and the Chief Financial Officer attends Corporate Governance 

committee meetings to advise members of any known issues and to respond to members 

enquiries.

The Head of Internal Audit Service has a number of alternative reporting lines in the event of 

breach of law or regulation, including a right to meet privately with the Chair of the Corporate 

Governance Committee or the Committee in full, should the situation determine such an 

approach necessary.

20



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment11

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

Have there been any instances of non-

compliance or suspected non-compliance 

with law and regulations since 1 April 

2018, or earlier with an on-going impact on 

the 2018/19 financial statements?

There are no instances of non-compliance that would have a material effect on the 2018/19 

financial statements

What arrangements does the Council have 

in place to identify, evaluate and account 

for litigation or claims?

The Council has an insurance team and a Legal team that manages litigation and claims on 

behalf of the Council.  All claims are passed to these teams. During the year the finance team 

will liaise with the insurance and legal teams to evaluate any material claims and make the 

appropriate accounting entries in the accounts.

Is there any actual or potential litigation or 

claims that would affect the financial 

statements?

Areas of litigation are reported in the Statements where their impact is considered material or 

significant to the readers of the statements and the outturn itself.

There are no material uninsured litigations (greater than £1m.)

Have there been any reports from other 

regulatory bodies, such as HM Revenues 

and Customs which indicate 

noncompliance?

None

21



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment12

Going concern

Matters in relation to going concern

ISA(UK&I)570 covers auditor responsibilities in the audit of financial statements relating to management's use of the going concern 

assumption in the financial statements.

Going concern is a fundamental principle in the preparation of financial statements. Under the going concern assumption, a Council is viewed 

as continuing in operation for the foreseeable future with no necessity of liquidation or ceasing trading. Accordingly, the Council’s assets and 

liabilities are recorded on the basis that assets will be realised and liabilities discharged in the normal course of business. 

The code of practice on local authority accounting requires an authority’s financial statements to be prepared on a going concern basis. 

Although the Council is not subject to the same future trading uncertainties as private sector entities, consideration of the key features of the 

going concern provides an indication of the Council's financial resilience and is good practice.

As auditor, we are responsible for considering the appropriateness of use of the going concern assumption in preparing the financial 

statements and to consider whether there are material uncertainties about the Council's ability to continue as a going concern that need to be 

disclosed in the financial statements. We discuss the going concern assumption with management and review the Council's financial and 

operating performance. 

Going concern considerations are set out overleaf and management has provided its response.

22



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment13

Going concern considerations
Question Management response

Is the going concern basis of accounting a 

fundamental principle in the preparation of the 

financial statements ?

Yes.

Has a preliminary assessment of the Council's 

ability to continue as a going concern been 

performed?

Yes. 

What is the basis for the intended use of the 

going concern assumption, and are management 

aware of the existence of other events or 

conditions that may cast doubt on the Authority’s 

ability to continue as a going concern ?

(New wording)

Yes, via the annual MTFS, most recent was approved by the County Council on 20 Feb 

2019. This covers the next four year period to 2023. This shows managements approach 

to the impact of significant and ongoing central government reductions in funding. 

The MTFS shows a balanced budget for 19/20 and 20/21 with a shortfall of £5m in 21/22 

rising to £20m in 22/23. However, the MTFS includes plans to achieve the additional 

savings and income required through new savings under development. The MTFS also 

includes a contingency of £8m for risks and a contingency for growth of £20m. In 

addition the Council has sufficient reserves (c.£120m) to mitigate this risk in the medium 

term. 

In addition, the current year position, 2018/19 as at period 11, shows a net underspend 

of £8m. 

The Council also has statutory tax raising powers if required.

Are arrangements in place to report the going 

concern assessment to the Corporate 

Governance Committee?

Undertaken as part of the 4 Year MTFS to the County Council and in the Statement of 

Accounts approved by the Corporate Governance Committee.

23



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment14

Going concern considerations

Question Management response

Are the financial assumptions in that report 

(e.g., future levels of income and 

expenditure) consistent with the Council's 

Business Plan and the financial information 

provided to the Council throughout the 

year?

Yes. 

Established regular MTFS and earmarked funds reporting process to senior management and 

members, combined with departmental and corporate performance reporting against the 

Council’s corporate plans and targets

Are the implications of statutory or policy 

changes appropriately reflected in the 

Business Plan, financial forecasts and 

report on going concern?

Yes. The via the Medium-Term Financial Strategy Plan, which specifically includes 

consideration of both national (e.g. statutory) and local (e.g. policy) issues in terms of their 

potential financial impact.

Have there been any significant issues 

raised with the Corporate Governance 

Committee during the year which could cast 

doubts on the assumptions made? 

(Examples include adverse comments 

raised by internal and external audit 

regarding financial performance or  

significant weaknesses in systems of 

financial control).

No significant issues have been raised.

Does a review of available financial 

information identify any adverse financial 

indicators including negative cash flow?

If so, what action is being taken to improve 

financial performance?

No adverse financial indicators have been identified.

24



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment15

Going concern considerations

Question Management response

Does the Council have sufficient staff in 

post, with the appropriate skills and 

experience, particularly at senior manager 

level, to ensure the delivery of the Council's 

objectives?

If not, what action is being taken to obtain 

those skills?

Yes.

25



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment16

Related parties 

Matters in relation to Related Parties

For local government bodies, the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires compliance with 

International Accounting Standard 24 and disclose transactions with entities/individuals that would be classed as related parties. These may 

include:

■ entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by the Council (i.e. subsidiaries);

■ associates and/or joint ventures;

■ an entity that has an interest in the Council that gives it significant influence over the Council;

■ key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and

■ post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council, or of any entity that is a related party of the 

Council.

A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the Council's 

perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Council must disclose it.

ISA (UK&I) 550 covers auditor responsibilities relating to related party transactions.

Many related party transactions are in the normal course of business and may not carry a higher risk of material misstatement. However in 

some circumstances the nature of the relationships and transaction may give rise to higher risks.

ISA (UK&I) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that 

you have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make 

in the financial statements are complete and accurate. 

Related party considerations have been set out overleaf and management has provided its response.

26



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment17

Related parties consideration
Question Management response

What controls does the Council have in 

place to identify, account for, and 

disclose related party transactions and 

relationships?

A number of arrangements are in place for identifying the nature of a related party and reported 

value including:

• Maintenance of a Register of interests for Members and officers, requiring disclosure of related 

party transactions.

• Annual return from senior managers/officers and members requiring confirmation that read and 

understood the declaration requirements and stating details of any known related party 

interests.

• Review of in-year income and expenditure transactions with known identified related parties 

from prior year or known history.

• Review of related information with subsidiaries, companies and joint ventures, e.g. accounts.

• Review of the accounts payable and receivable systems and identification of amounts paid in 

relation to related parties identified.

• Review of year end debtor and creditor positions in relation to the related parties identified.

• Review of minutes of decision making meetings to identify any member declarations and 

therefore related parties.

27



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment18

Related parties considerations
Question Management response

Who are the Council’s related parties, 

including changes from prior period?
People who are regarded as related parties are:

• Elected members - Responsible for the direct control of the policies of the authority

• Chief Executive,  The Executive Directors and other Senior Officers, as key management 

personnel that have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 

activities of the authority.

• Members of the families and households of members and officers with the ability to influence 

members or officers

Entities that are regarded as related parties are:

• Central government - Has effective control over local authorities, as authorities are incapable 

of acting without statutory authority. Able to limit possibility of independent action by specifying 

transactions and the terms on which they are concluded.

• Other public bodies subject to common control by central government

• Partnerships, companies, trusts or any entities in which members/officers or a member of their 

close family or the same household has a controlling interest,

• Pension Fund

The annual Statements present a detailed analysis of transactions between the authority and its 

related parties.]

Has the Authority entered into any 

transactions with these related parties 

during the period, if so, what are the 

type and purpose of these transactions?

Information is currently being collated as part of the year end work and will be included in the 

Statement of Accounts.

28



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment19

Accounting estimates

Matters in relation to accounting estimates

Local authorities need to apply appropriate estimates in the preparation of their financial statements. 

ISA (UK&I) 540 sets out requirements for auditing accounting estimates. The objective is to gain evidence that the accounting estimates are 

reasonable and the related disclosures are adequate. Under this standard we have to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 

for accounting estimates by understanding how the Council identifies the transactions, events and conditions that may give rise to the need for 

an accounting estimate.

Accounting estimates are used when it is not possible to measure precisely a figure in the accounts. We need to be aware of all material 

estimates that the Council is using as part of its accounts preparation; these are detailed in Appendix A. The audit procedures we conduct on 

the accounting estimate will demonstrate that:

•  the estimate is reasonable; and

•  estimates have been calculated consistently with other accounting estimates within the financial statements.

Accounting estimates considerations have been set out overleaf and management has provided its response.

29



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment20

Accounting estimates

Question Management response

Are the management arrangements for the 

accounting estimates, including identifying 

new estimates or revisions required, 

detailed in Appendix A (below) reasonable?

Yes. 

Prepared from relevant accounting standards, legislation, and guidance issued by CIPFA, 

primarily the Code of Practice. In addition the Technical Accounting Team attend annual 

technical updates to ensure knowledge is kept up to date. The team also use other 

professional officers where appropriate to do so, for example Valuers, Actuaries etc. Material 

new or changes are approved by the s151 officer. 

How are transactions, events, and 

conditions identified that may give rise to 

the need for accounting estimates to be 

recognised or disclosed in the financial 

statements?

MTFS, financial procedures, Cabinet and Chief Management Team approval, schemes of 

delegation to officers.

Are there any changes in circumstances 

that may give rise to new, or the need to 

revise existing, accounting estimates?

No.

How is the Corporate Governance 

Committee provided with assurance that 

the arrangements for accounting estimates 

are adequate?

The Director of Resources and finance team reporting the statements of accounts to the 

committee. All senior staff involved are qualified experienced accounting professionals. In 

certain specialist areas other professional officers are also used as appropriate, including:

A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the Authority with expert advice about the 

assumptions to be applied when estimating the pension liability.

In house qualified valuers are engaged by the Authority to carry out, for the major assets, a 

programme of physical valuations to ensure that their carrying values are subject to 

professional and independent assessment. 

Treasury Management advisors provide fair value estimates for financial instruments.

30



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment21

Appendix A - Accounting estimates
Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of 

degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a 

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Property plant &

equipment

valuations

Valuations for land and buildings are 

undertaken by the in-house valuer in line 

with RICS guidance on the basis of 5 year 

valuation with interim reviews.

Other assets are valued on the basis of 

depreciated historic cost as proxy for fair 

value as relatively short asset lives before 

replacement.

Form of undertaken in 

place between the Finance 

Team and the Valuer that 

sets out the requirements. 

The Valuer will undertake 

the valuations in line with 

the form of undertaking,. 

The finance team will 

review the output and 

check for completeness. 

The overriding requirement 

is that the carrying value is 

not materially different 

from the amount that 

would be determined by 

valuation. The Valuer 

working with the Finance 

Team will also consider 

factors (informed by 

Property Services 

Manager) that would 

indicate where an interim 

valuation is required.

In house valuer 

used.

Valuations are made in-line with 

RICS guidance – reliance on 

expert. Assumptions are set out 

in valuer's report.

No

31



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment22

Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of 

degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a 

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Estimated

remaining useful

lives of PPE

The following asset categories have general 

asset lives:

• Buildings varies from asset to asset, 

usually 50 to 70years

• Equipment/ vehicles average 5 years

• Plant average 5 years

• Infrastructure 40 years

Specific asset lives applied 

to buildings.

Consistent asset lives 

applied to each asset 

category.

In house valuer 

used

The method makes some 

generalisations. For example, 

building lives would vary 

depending on the construction 

materials used. This life would 

be recorded in accordance with 

RICS valuation.

Detailed information is included 

in the valuers report for each 

asset. The lives used for other 

assets are based on operational 

experience of the service areas.

The asset live is then recorded 

in the asset register.

No

Depreciation &

Amortisation

Depreciation is provided on all PPE by the 

systematic allocation of their depreciable 

amounts over their useful lives.  Buildings 

are depreciated over their remaining useful 

economic lives as assessed by the property 

valuer, with no allowance for a residual 

value. No depreciation charge is made for 

the land, community assets, assets under 

construction or assets held for sale.

All other assets with a finite useful life are 

depreciated on a straight-line basis.

Consistent application of 

depreciation method 

across all assets

No The length of the life is 

determined at the point of 

acquisition or revaluation.

Major components are 

depreciated separately.

No

32



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment23

Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of 

degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a 

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Impairments Assets are assessed at the year-end for any 

indication that an asset may be impaired. 

Where indications exist and any possible 

differences are estimated to be material, the 

recoverable amount of the asset is estimated 

and, where this is less than the carrying 

amount of the asset, an impairment loss is 

recognised for the shortfall.

Assets are assessed

at each year-end as to 

whether there is any 

indication that an asset 

may be impaired.

This assessment is made 

by the internal valuer for 

land and buildings and by 

Property Services 

Manager and finance team 

(and other relevant officers 

for the asset type) for other 

assets.

In house valuer 

used

Valuations are made in-line with 

RICS guidance - reliance on 

internal expert.

No

Finance lease 

liability

At the inception of the lease the liability is 

the lower of the fair value of the asset or 

present value of the minimum lease 

payments. Payments are split between the 

finance charge and the element that reduces 

the liability.

Finance team review 

contracts and payments 

over the de-minimus level 

to ensure the lease is 

categorised correctly as a 

finance lease or an 

operating lease.

Calculations supported by 

lease documents.

Not required Assets recognised under 

finance leases are accounted 

for using the policies applied 

generally to such assets, 

subject to depreciation being 

charged over the lease term if 

this is shorter than the asset’s 

estimated useful life (where 

ownership of the asset does not 

transfer to the Council at the 

end of the lease period).

No

33



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment24

Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of 

degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a 

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Pension liability The Council is the administering authority of  

the Leicestershire Local Government 

Pension Scheme. The Council engage the 

Actuary who provides the estimate of the 

pension liability.

Payroll data is provided to 

the Actuary.

Management reconcile this 

estimate of contributions to 

the actuals paid out in the 

year.

Consulting Actuary As disclosed in the actuary's 

report. Complex judgements 

including the discount rate 

used, rate at which salaries are 

projected to increase, changes 

in retirement ages, mortality 

rates and expected returns on 

pension fund assets.

No

Non adjusting

events - events 

after the BS date

Finance Team and S151 Officer makes the 

assessment. If the event is indicative of 

conditions that arose after the balance sheet 

date then this is an unadjusting event. For 

these events only a note to the accounts is 

included, identifying the nature of the event 

and where possible estimates of the financial 

effect. 

Managers notify the 

finance team/ s151 officer

This would be

considered on 

individual

circumstance.

This would be considered on 

individual

circumstance.

N/a

Bad Debt

Provision.

A provision is estimated using knowledge of 

any risk of non recovery for individual debts 

and a proportion basis used based on 

experience of expected credit loss for an 

aged debt listing.

Finance team provide 

detailed guidance to 

departmental finance 

business team on 

approach and reviews 

working papers.

No Past experience No

34



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment25

Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of 

degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a 

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Provisions for

liabilities.

Provisions are made where an event has 

taken place that gives the Council a legal or 

constructive obligation that probably requires 

settlement by a transfer of economic 

benefits, but where the timing of the transfer 

is uncertain. Provisions are charged as an 

expense to the appropriate service line in the 

CI&ES in the year that the Council becomes 

aware of the obligation, and are measured at 

the best estimate at the balance sheet date 

of the expenditure required to settle the 

obligation, taking into account relevant risks 

and uncertainties.

Charged in the year

that the Council becomes 

aware of the obligation. 

No Estimated settlements are 

reviewed at the end of each 

financial year – where it 

becomes less than probable 

that a transfer of economic 

benefits will now be required (or 

a lower settlement than 

anticipated is made), the 

provision is reversed and 

credited back to the relevant 

service. Where some or all of 

the payment required to settle a 

provision is expected to be 

recovered from another party 

(e.g. from an insurance claim), 

this is only recognised as 

income for the relevant service 

if it is virtually certain that 

reimbursement will be received 

by the Council.

No

35



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment26

Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of 

degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a 

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Accruals Finance team provide detailed guidance and 

training to budget managers and other 

finance colleagues on the establishment of 

accruals of expenditure and income. All 

accruals are reviewed before posting to the 

accounts.  Activity is accounted for in the 

financial year that it takes place, not simply 

when cash payments are made or received.

While processes and procedures will be 

maintained to capture all accruals, resources 

will be focused on identifying individual 

transactions of £1,000 and above. 

An Accumulated Absences account (£4m 

17/18) to reflect the value of time owed to 

employees for accrued holidays, TOIL (time 

off in lieu) and flexitime. This balance is 

based on an historic value subject to annual 

review and amendment where there have 

been significant changes in staff numbers or 

working patterns

Detailed guidance and 

manager training.

Review financial systems 

to identify where goods 

have been received but not 

paid for.

Requests of service 

managers to identify any 

other goods or services 

received or provided but 

not paid for, with additional 

challenge concentrating on 

transactions greater than 

£10,000

Review of circumstances 

that indicate the approach 

to annual leave accrual is 

still valid.

No Accruals for income and 

expenditure often based on 

known values.

Where accruals are estimated 

the latest available information 

is used.

The value of the accruals below 

the threshold of £1,000 is not a 

material amount.

The annual leave accrual is 

based on historic records. An 

annual review will be performed 

to assess whether there any 

circumstances that mean the 

historic calculation of annual 

leave is no longer a reasonable 

estimate and whether the 

survey process needs to be 

performed on a partial or 

complete basis.  Events likely to 

trigger such a decision would 

be significant changes in staff 

numbers or working patterns.

No

36



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment27

Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of 

degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a 

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Measurement of 

Financial 

Instruments

Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the 

Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes 

party to the contractual provisions of a 

financial instrument. Borrowings at fixed 

interest rates from either the PWLB or other 

financial institutions are initially measured at 

fair value and carried in the Balance Sheet at 

amortised cost. 

Borrowing at Variable Interest 

Loans linked to the London Inter-bank 

Offered Rate (LIBOR) will be recorded at 
amortised cost. 

Loans at stepped interest rates (LOBO’s) are 

recorded at fair value with interest charged to 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement calculated at the effective rate of 

interest, which discounts estimate future cash 

payments over the life of the instrument 

(essentially an average rate for the expected 

duration of that loan), rather than the cash 
paid in a year. 

Statutory regulations enable the Authority to 

negate the additional interest arising on 

LOBO’s (if loan arranged before November 

2007) by posting a reversal within the 

Movement in Reserves Statement to the 

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account. 

Detailed loans register 

records and reconciliation 

to the accounts and 

external primary evidence 

of loans outstanding, for 

example PWLB statement 

of balances. 

As above

Partial - within the 

notes to the 

accounts the fair 

value of loan 

liabilities is 

disclosed which is 

provided by 

external Treasury 

Management 

Experts (Link Asset 

Services). 

None No

37



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment28

Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of 

degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a 

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Measurement of 

Financial 

Instruments

(New wording)

The borrowings presented in the Balance 

Sheet are made up of the outstanding 

principal repayable plus accrued interest. 

Interest payable in the year is charged to the 

CIES.

Premiums and Discounts Arising from 

Premature Repayment of Debt. 

The Authority continuously reviews existing 

external loans and interest rates being paid, 

and has the option of restructuring or 

refinancing this debt. All such transactions 

are taken to the Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure Statement in the year that the 
repayment is made. 

Statutory regulations enable the Authority to 

negate the additional charge/credit arising on 

such transactions by posting a reversal within 

the Movement in Reserves Statement to the 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account. 

Premiums and discounts arising from 

premature repayments of debt arising since 1 

April 2007 are charged to the Movement in 

Reserves Statement over the lesser of the 

remaining period of the loan(s) being repaid 

or a maximum of 10 years. All outstanding 

premiums arising from earlier periods are 

being charged over a period of up to 25 

years. 

.

As above No None No

38



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP.     Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 2018/19 | Informing the Risk Assessment29

Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of 

degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there 

been a 

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Measurement of 

Financial 

Instruments

(New wording)

Assets 

Loans and Receivables 

These are assets that have determinable 

payments or fixed interest rates with a fixed 

maturity date but are not quoted in an active 

market. 

Soft Loans 

Under certain criteria the Authority provides 

loans to foster parents and to older people 

with physical disabilities. These loans are 

interest free. The total value is considered to 

be immaterial to the Authority’s accounts; 

therefore these loans have not been revalued 

on a fair value basis in accordance with the 

CIPFA COPLAA. 

Fair Value through the Comprehensive 

Income & Expenditure Statement 

Forward investment deals (investment 

negotiated one year but with actual 

settlement in a future year). These are 

accounted for as a derivative between the 

trade and settlement dates. The difference 

between the agreed rate of interest with that 

attributable for a loan negotiated at 31 March 

with similar contractual terms will show a 

gain or loss that is taken to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement. (Note no forward investments in 

2018/19)

.

Detailed records held and 

reconciled regularly.

Detailed records of 

investments made.

No

No

None

None

No

No

39



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Informing the Risk Assessment

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

40



  
   

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE - 10 MAY 2019 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

  
Purpose of Report 
 
1. One of the key roles of the Corporate Governance Committee is to ensure that 

the Council has effective risk management arrangements in place.  This report 
assists the Committee in fulfilling that role by providing a regular overview of 
key risk areas and the measures being taken to address them.  This is to 
enable the Committee to review or challenge progress, as necessary, as well 
as highlight risks that may need to be given further consideration.  This report 
covers: 
 

 The Corporate Risk Register (CRR) – summary of risks. An update on 
each risk is provided in Appendix A. 

 Updates on: - 
o Risk Management Maturity Health Check 
o Counter Fraud 

 
Corporate Risk Register (CRR) 
 
2. The Council maintains Departmental Risk Registers and a Corporate Risk 

Register (CRR).  These registers contain the most significant risks which the 
Council is managing and which are ‘owned’ by Directors and Assistant 
Directors.   
 

3. The CRR is designed to capture strategic risk that applies either corporately or 
to specific departments, which by its nature has a long time span.  The CRR is 
a working document and therefore assurance can be provided that, through 
timetabled review, high/red risks will be added to the CRR as necessary.  
Equally, as further mitigation actions come to fruition and current controls are 
embedded, the risk scores will be reassessed and this will result in some risks 
being removed from the CRR and reflected back within the relevant 
departmental risk register. 
 

4. There have been no movements (in terms of risks added or deleted) since the 
CRR was last presented to the Committee on 18 January 2019. Risk 1.3 has 
been slightly reworded. 
 

41 Agenda Item 7



 

5. The table below is a summary of all the risks on the CRR.  The risks are 
numbered within each category and the most up to date position of each risk is 
shown in Appendix A attached to this report.  
 

6. Detailed updates to risks recorded in the CRR is attached in Appendix B. 
Members are asked  to consider whether in view of the detailed update now 
provided in Appendix A, whether they still require the full CRR as set out in 
Appendix B. 

 

Ref Department Risk Description 

Current 
risk 

Score - 
April 
2019 

Target 
risk 
over 

next 12 
months 

Change 
in 

Current 
Risk 

Score 

1. Medium Term Financial Strategy  

1.1 All MTFS Delivery 25 25  

1.3 CE Failure to maximise developer contributions 16 12  

1.4 CR Claims for uninsured risks put pressure on reserves 16 16  

1.5 C&FS Child placements demand creates budget pressures 25 20  

1.6 C&FS Failure to achieve savings (high needs pupils) 20 16  

1.7 CR Failure to comply with IR35 regulations (self-employment) 20 12  

1.8 CR Partner financial difficulties impact Council services 16 16  

1.9 C&FS 
Failure to resolve immigration status of UAS children 
increases costs 

20 12 
 

2. Health and Social Care Integration 

2.2 A&C Inability to deliver improved outcomes and financial stability 16 16  

2.3 All Failure to meet demand from Welfare Reform Act 16 16  

3. ICT, Information Security 

3.2 All 
Failure to meet information/cyber security governance 
requirements 

16 12  

3.5 All Failure to maintain robust records management 15 10  

3.6 CR (ERP) system not implemented successfully 20 10  

3.7 C&FS Quality of C&FS MI data is too low 16 12  

4. Commissioning 

4.1 All Contractor/Supplier performance not obtained 15 12  

4.2 E&T Arriva are successful in concessionary travel appeal 15 10  

5. Safeguarding 

5.1 C&FS IICSA– seriously unknown historic issues identified 25 20  

6. Brexit 

6.1 All Impact of Brexit on public services 16 16  

7. People 

7.1 CR Sickness absence is not effectively managed 16 12  

7.2 All Failure to recruit & retain staff (E&T, A&C and C&FS) 15 15  

7.3 A&C Lack of sustainable external social care workforce 16 9  

8. Business Continuity 

8.1 CR Critical suppliers fail on business continuity planning 15 15  

9. Environment 

9.1 E&T Impact of Ash Dieback disease 15 10  

9.2 E&T Failure to hold/dispose of waste due to major incident 15 8  

10. Partnership 

10.1 C&FS Failure to secure confidence in mainstream SEND provision 16 6  

42



 

 
7. Following this meeting of the Committee, during the next quarter it is proposed 

to further challenge all risks on the CRR and introduce Action Plans for 
departments to monitor progress against implementing further 
actions/additional controls and ultimately move the risk towards its target score.  
Each quarter, Heads of Service will be required to review their service area 
risks and status on the completion of the further actions/additional controls 
identified with their relevant Assistant Director/Director.  Action Plans will be 
presented to departmental management teams for consideration and further 
challenge if necessary.  Members are asked to support this proposal.  
 

8. In accordance with the Committee’s request at its meeting on 18 January 2019, 
a presentation will be provided as part of this item   on Risk 10.1 - If the Local 
Authority and partners do not succeed in developing an inclusive culture across 
all schools, education providers and partner agencies (including the Parent 
Carer Forum), then it will be difficult to secure parental confidence in the ability 
of the ‘whole system’ to meet the needs of the large majority of children with 
SEND in a mainstream school context. 

 
Risk Management Maturity Health Check Update 
 
9. Risk Management Partners who undertook the risk management health check 

in October last year have  produced their final report and attended a 
scheduled meeting of the Corporate Risk Management Group (7 February 
2019) to discuss the findings and recommendations made.  An action plan is 
being prepared for Chief Officers who will consider the report and the actions 
proposed and a detailed report on this will be provided to this Committee in 
July 2019.  A copy of the consultant’s report is attached as Appendix C for 
Members’ information. 

Counter fraud update 

Local Government Transparency Code (LGTC) 
 
10. Under the Local Government Transparency Code 2015, the County Council is 

required to publish, annually, summary details of fraud investigations including 
the total number of frauds investigated and the total amount spent by the 
authority on the investigation and prosecution of fraud.  Details for 2018/19 
were published by the deadline date of 30th April 2019 and can be viewed via 
the link below: 

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-spending/accounts-
and-payments 

 
National Fraud Initiative 
 
11. Output from the 2018/19 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) was released to local 

authorities at the beginning of February.  NFI is a mandatory data-matching 
exercise co-ordinated by the Cabinet Office which seeks to identify potential 
anomalies and fraud through matching the Council’s data sets, e.g. payroll, 
pensions, creditors, concessionary travel, etc., with those of other mandatory 
participants, including the Department for Work and Pensions deceased 
persons data. 

43

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-spending/accounts-and-payments
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-spending/accounts-and-payments


 

12. Work continues investigating potential anomalies and a full report will be 
provided to the Committee later in the year once investigations are concluded. 

Recommendations 
 

13. It is recommended that the Committee: 
 
a) Approves the current status of the strategic risks facing the County Council; 

 
b) Makes recommendations on any areas which might benefit from further 

examination and identify a risk area for presentation at its next meeting; 
 

c) Considers whether attachment of the full Corporate Risk Register (Appendix 
B) is required for future meetings; 
 

d) Supports the proposal set out in paragraph 7 above, to further challenge 
risks on the CRR in an attempt to move risks to their target score and 
potentially reduce the number reported in the CRR; 
 

e) Notes the final report provided by Risk Management Partners attached as 
Appendix C to this report, noting that a more detailed update will provided at 
the next meeting of the Committee; 
 

f)    Notes the update provided on counter fraud. 
 

Resources Implications 
 

None. 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None. 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

 
None. 
 
Background Papers 
 
Report of the Director of Corporate Resources – ‘Risk Management Update’ – 
Corporate Governance Committee, 19 February, 13 May, 23 September and 25 
November 2016; 17 February, 26 May, 22 September and 17 November 2017; 29 
January, 23 April and 25 July 2018, 24 October 2018, and18 January 2019. 
 
Officers to Contact 

 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources   
Tel: 0116 305 6199  
E-mail: chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
 
 

44

mailto:ctambini@leics.gov.uk


 

Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit and Assurance Service 
Tel: 0116 305 7629 
Email: neil.jones@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A - Corporate Risk Register Update  
 
Appendix B - Full Corporate Risk Register 
 
Appendix C – Risk Management Health Check Report by Risk Management 
Partnership Consultant 
 

45

mailto:neil.jones@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE RISK REGISTER – UPDATE ON RISKS        APPENDIX A  
 

Dept./  
Function 

CRR 
Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 
Risk  

Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 
Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during March 

2019 
 
 

Direction of 
Travel ** 

(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 months) 

1. Medium Term Strategy 
 

All 1.1 
 

Risk around the MTFS 
including the ability to deliver 
savings through service 
redesign and Transformation 
as required in the MTFS, 
impact of the living wage and 
other demand and cost 
pressures. 

25 
 

MTFS 
 

 MTFS approved at County Council. 

 Maintaining position of balanced in the next 2 years. 

 Funding of Capital Schemes increasingly difficult 

 Responded to Fair Funding and Business Rate Retention in February 
2019. Working with County Council’s Network to develop Adult Social 
Care Formula. 

 
Transformation 
 
Transformation Unit is working with all departments to continue to deliver 
existing savings targets and to identify new opportunities for savings 
through the development of relevant business cases. 
 

 
 
 

 
Expected to 

remain 
high/red 

 
 

CE 1.3 If the Council fails to maximise 
developer contributions then 
there could be a failure to fund 
corporate infrastructure 
projects 
 

16 
 

Actions are underway to: 
 

 Complete update of S106 policy;  

 Proposals being developed for a new Corporate Growth Unit;  

 Additional resource will be directed to this area 

 

 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

Amber 
 

CR 1.4 If claims relating to uninsured 
risks materialise or continue to 
increase then LCC will need to 
find increased payments from 
reserves, impacting on funds 
available to support services 
 

16 
 
 

The Court of Appeal hearing between MMI and Equitas in relation to the 
allocation of claims to MMI’s reinsurance programme took place between 
18-20 March. The Court found in favour of Equitas and upheld its appeal. 
All three Judges agreed with the outcome. The MMI board will discuss 
‘next steps’ with its counsel. Given the importance of the issues for MMI 
and its balance sheet, it is considering applying for permission to appeal 
the decision to the Supreme Court. This must be submitted by 30th April. 
 
There is likelihood that the costs of settling future individual mesothelioma 
claims will increase as new and expensive, state of the art treatments in 
the form of immunotherapy are developed. 

 
 

 
 

Expected to  
remain  high/red 

47



Dept./  

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 

(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 
March 2019 

 

 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 

Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

C&FS 1.5 Social Care: 
If the number of high cost 
social care placements (e.g. 
external fostering, residential 
and 16+ supported 
accommodation) increases 
(especially in relation to 
behavioural and CSE issues) 
then there may be significant 
pressures on the children’s 
social care placement budget, 
which funds the care of 
vulnerable children. 
 

25 
 
  
 

Although the number of residential placements has remained constant 
since December 2018 (58), the number of children with high cost care 
packages 9 (to manage risk to young people’s safety) also remains high. 
 
Activity to manage this risk include: 

 MISTLE *: it is too early following implementation of MISTLE for the 
true  impact to be felt, with the first child moving from residential care 
at the end of Feb 19.   

 Care Placement Strategy: is overseen at Directorate level to develop 
and oversees strategies to manage demand and cost in this area 

 
*MISTLE (Multi-disciplinary Intervention Support Team Leicestershire) combines 
multi-agency working and foster care in the local community, with therapeutic 
care for children, teenagers and young adults (8-18). The service is 
commissioned form Family Action. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 

 C&FS 1.6 Education: 
If the High Needs Block 
Development Plan is not 
delivered on time and within 
budget then the number and 
cost of specialist placements is 
likely to exceed current 
predictions and the High Needs 
Block Budget will exceed latest 
forecasts. 
 
 
 
 

20 
(reduced 
from 25) 

 
 
 

Twice as many schools have expressed an interest in the county’s 
specialist provision for Social, Emotional, Mental Health and 
Communication and Interaction.  The Service is optimistic that it can 
establish resource provisions within timescales. However, as demand 
continues to rise, there is a need to maintain a focus on effective inclusive 
practice across all schools. 

 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 

 

48



Dept./  

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 

(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 
March 2019 

 

 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 

Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

CR 1.7 If the Council is not compliant 
with the HRMC IR35 
regulations regarding the 
employment of self-employed 
personnel then there is a risk of 
large financial penalties 

20 
 

The newly appointed compliance post is now leading on this.  A plan is in 
place to tackle new appointments via comms and Human Resources 
Policies (temporary workers and independent contractors) have been 
updated as well as working practices.  This information will be issued 
shortly to managers and then a review of existing appointments will be 
undertaken to ensure compliance. 
 

 

 
Expected to 

move to medium/ 
Amber 

 

CR 1.8 If public sector partners and 
major providers of services to 
the public sector get into 
financial difficulties there could 
be an impact on both the 
Council’s financial position and 
services. 
 

16 
 

A refreshed contract management toolkit is available on the intranet for 
contract managers outlining the requirements for financial monitoring 
(credit scores) at least annually.  A corporate refresh of all High 
Value/Business Critical/High Risk contracts is planned for August 2019. 
The financial standing will then be monitored for the duration of the 
contracts.   
 

 

 
 

Expected to 
increase 

 

C&FS 1.9 If the immigration status of 
unaccompanied asylum-
seeking children (UASC) who 
arrive in the County is not 
resolved, then the Council will 
have to meet additional long 
term funding in relation to its 
housing and care duties.   

20 
 

(increased 
from 16) 

There have been 19 new arrivals over the last two months; a large number 
of these are of school age. It is difficult to predict or not whether this high 
level will continue.  
The budget requirements for 2019-20 were based on a 3 year pattern of 
low number of spontaneous arrivals over colder months and higher 
numbers in warmer months. However January-March has seen a 
sustained high number of arrivals in cold months which was not 
forecasted. Should this pattern of arrival continue, then the budgetary 
requirements will need to be revisited.  
 
There is little information available from the Home Office or Border Control 
Intelligence to assist with this forecasting. Regionally LAs share 
information about numbers of arrivals and it is confirmed that there are 
rising numbers across the region. 
 

 

 
 

Expected to 
remain red/high 

49



Dept./  

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 

(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 
March 2019 

 

 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 

Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

The Council has 3 assigned ‘ports’ for arrival. If UASC arrive in 
Leicestershire’s boundaries, at East Midlands Airport or between Junction 
21 and Donnington Services, it is Council’s responsibility to provide care.  
 
Regular updates are provided to the Lead Member and Director regarding 
the number of arrivals. 
 

2. Health & Social Care Integration 
 

 All 2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Impact on County Council 
services and MTFS of the 
Better Care Together (medium 
term) transformation plan in 
Leicester, Leicestershire and 
Rutland (LLR), could lead to 
inability to deliver improved 
outcomes and financial 
sustainability. 

16 
 
 
 
  

The NHS Long Term Plan was published on 7 January. Every area is to 
develop a plan to deliver these national priorities, including the expectation 
that each area will become an Integrated Care System (ICS). This plan is 
to be submitted to NHS England for approval by the end of summer.  
 
The LLR ICS plan will build on the existing vision and priorities as set out 
by the Better Care Together Partnership, however the new ICS 
arrangements will require significant changes to governance including 
service delivery and commissioning being organised at 3 tiers of system, 
place and neighbourhood levels.  
 
Discussions are underway to determine which services will be planned, 
commissioned and delivered at system level across LLR; Place level with 
the Leicestershire County footprint ; and at neighbourhood/ locality level 
with primary care and locality partners. Future governance arrangements 
will need to reflect these three tiers. 
 
A major reconfiguration of the 3 LLR CCGs is taking place during 2019/20 
in preparation for ICS arrangements, presenting additional leadership risks 
during a key transitional year for the NHS, both in terms of policy and 
financial delivery. 

 

 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 

50



Dept./  

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 

(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 
March 2019 

 

 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 

Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

All 2.3 Challenges caused by the 
Welfare Reform Act 2012 and 
the Welfare Reform and Work 
Act 2016.   

16 The roll out of Universal Credit for most new claims has been completed 
throughout the county.  The Universal Support to assist with new claims 
through to first payment previously provided by the district councils moved 
to Citizens Advice in April 2019.  
 
In January 2019, the Government announced changes to the roll out of 
Universal Credit so that people in receipt of any of the previous legacy 
benefits which included a severe disability premium and who experience a 
change of circumstances which would have triggered a claim for Universal 
Credit are no longer able to claim Universal Credit and will continue to 
claim the legacy benefit until they are subject to Universal Credit 
‘managed migration’ in the future. 
The start of the Government’s ‘managed migration’ process, to move 
existing claimants from the legacy benefits to Universal Credit has been 
delayed from July 2019 to January 2020, with a pilot project in North 
Yorkshire commencing in July 2019.  The Government plans to complete 
managed migration to Universal Credit by the end of 2023. 
 

 

 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 

 

3. ICT, Information Security 
 

CR 
 

3.2 
 

If the Council fails to meet the 
information/cyber security and 
governance requirements then 
there may be breach of the  
statutory obligations  
 

16 With regard to training on Information Security and Data Protection latest 
data on the Council’s Learning Hub shows 88% compliance against a 
target of 90%.  However, ongoing requirements to review training every 12 
months could impact on the compliance rate. 
 
Phase 2 elements of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) 
have been completed have been completed as planned but further work is 
progressing under the Information Governance Board. This focuses on 
implementation of the Information Asset Register solution, Surveillance 
Camera Systems and collaboration systems. 

 

 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

amber 

51



Dept./  

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 

(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 
March 2019 

 

 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 

Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

 

All 3.5 If the Council fails to maintain 
robust records management 
processes to effectively 
manage information under its 
custodianship, personal data 
may not be processed in 
compliance with the Data 
Protection Act 1998 resulting in 
regulatory action and/or 
reputational damage. 
 

15 
 

Following an earlier report to Chief Officers in January 2019, a detailed 
scope is being developed which will result in a plan, and consideration of 
required resource. 

 

 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

amber 

CR 3.6 If a replacement (ERP) system 
is not implemented 
successfully the Council will 
not reap the benefits and  the 
Council’s financial and HR 
activity could be negatively 
impacted upon 
 

20 
 

Testing Strategy has been completed and Managers are currently 
conducting workshops to develop the business scenarios for testing.  
 
Data cleansing (commenced in October 2018) is an ongoing activity and 
will be in place until the programme ends. 
 
Approximately 200 advisory and design workshops have been completed 
with substantial agreement achieved on the system design.  A range of 
areas with functionality gaps have been identified and prioritised 
depending upon the impact upon business processes and user 
experience. These are being discussed with the software vendor and 
implementation partner to agree the best way forward. 
 

 
 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 

C&FS 3.7 If the quality of data in Children 
and Families (C&FS) 
Information Management 
System is too low to satisfy 
statutory requirements (e.g. 

16  
 
 
 

Further tableau reports have been embedded; and are now accessible to 
Team Managers and Business Support. This should lead to improved data 
quality - data returns are due over the next few months. 

 
 

 
 

Expected to 

52



Dept./  

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 

(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 
March 2019 

 

 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 

Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

data returns) this will impact 
upon service delivery 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

move to medium/ 
amber 

4. Commissioning & Procurement 
 

CR 
 

4.1 
 

If the Authority does not obtain 
the required value and level of 
performance from its providers 
and suppliers then the cost of 
services will increase and 
service delivery will be 
impacted. 
 

15 The guidance on setting and monitoring KPIs for Contract Managers went 
live on the toolkit in December 2018 as planned. 
 
Key supplier cost reduction programme delivering £500k savings. Is 
ongoing. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

amber 

E&T 4.2 If Arriva is successful in its 
concessionary travel appeal 
then reimbursement costs for 
the total scheme could 
increase significantly. 
 

15 No change to previously reported position.  
 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

amber 
 

5. Safeguarding 

53



Dept./  

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 

(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 
March 2019 

 

 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 

Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

 

C&FS 
 

5.1 
 

Historical:  
If as a result of a concerted 
effort to explore abuse by the 
Independent Inquiry into Child 
Sexual Abuse (IICSA) and 
Police Operations, then 
evidence of previously 
unknown serious historical 
issues of child sexual 
exploitation (CSE) or abuse is 
identified 

25 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

A Preliminary Hearing has been scheduled by the IICSA for 23 May 2019 
at which details regarding the Public Hearings will be agreed.  

 

 
 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 

 
 

6. Brexit 
 

All 6.1 Uncertainty and significant 
knock on consequences on 
public services (including 
potential legal, regulatory, 
economic and social 
implications), and the local 
economy as a result of the 
United Kingdom leaving the 
European Union. 
 

16  
 

Command, communication and control structures have been established 
within the Council and across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) 
Prepared.  An EU sub-group has been established and specialist cells for 
Communications and Transport.  Reports have been submitted to Chief 
Officers and an All Member Briefing held. Weekly “Situation Reports” are 
submitted to Government in line with MHCLG directions. 
 
Trading Standards: Brexit will bring about significant demands on the 
service to provide business advice on new regulations (e.g. food and 
product safety) and an enforcement response to an expected increase in 
bringing businesses into compliance.   
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 

 

7. People 
 

CR 7.1 If sickness absence is not 16 The Intensive Support Project is ongoing.    

54



Dept./  

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 

(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 
March 2019 

 

 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 

Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

(ALL) effectively managed then staff 
costs, service delivery and staff 
wellbeing will be impacted 

 Trade Unions have not accepted the position with regard to tightening of 
the Absence Management Policy - the initial target is to reduce absence to 
8 days per FTE by August 2019 recognising that the corporate target 
remains at 7.5 days FTE. A Workshop has been held with trade unions 

and steps to resolve policy changes agreed. 

 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

Amber 
 

55



Dept./  
Function 

CRR 
Risk 

No 

Risk Description Current 
Risk  

Score 
(incl 

changes) 

Update 
Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 

March 2019 
 

 

Direction of 
Travel 

(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 

months) 

 

 

 

All 7.2 Recruitment and retention 
 
If departments are unable to 
recruit and retain skilled staff 
promptly then some services 
will be over -reliant on the use 
of agency staff resulting in 
budget overspends and poor 
service delivery  
 

 
15 

(reduced 
from 25 

C&FS (risk score =15) 
 
Positive impact from recruitment and retention strategy has resulted in the 
Department holding fewer vacancies, however nationally there is an issue 
of recruiting and retaining staff. Much of the recruitment success has been 
around recruiting for the Assessed and Supported Year in Employment 
Programme (ASYE) which is positive for the future, nevertheless this 
presents pressures of how these staff are supported (i.e. require extra 
support, knowledge etc. but not in a position to take on the full case load of 
a social worker). 
 
A&C (risk score =12) 
The risk score has been reduced from 16 as the vacancy rate is currently 
low. 
 

 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 

 
 

 A&C 7.3 If the department does not 
have a sustainable external 
workforce to work with it may 
be unable to meet its statutory 
responsibilities. 
 

16 
 

No change to previously reported position 

 
 

Expected to move 
to medium/ 

Amber 
 

8. Business Continuity  
 

CE 8.1 If suppliers of critical 
services  do not have robust 
business continuity plans in 
place, the Council may not be 
able to deliver services 
 
 
 

15 Structure for oversight and agreement of all contracts is not yet in place.  
Enforcement and rigor of guidance is not fully in place. 

 
 

 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 

56



Dept./  
Function 

CRR 
Risk 

No 

Risk Description Current 
Risk  

Score 
(incl 

changes) 

Update 
Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 

March 2019 
 

 

Direction of 
Travel 

(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 

months) 

 

 

 

9. Environment 
 

E&T 9.1 If the ash dieback disease 
causes shedding branches or 
falling trees then there is a 
possible risk to life and 
disruption to the transport 
network. 

15 No change to the previously reported position.  

 
 

Expected to move 
to medium/ 

amber 

E&T 9.2 If there was a major incident 
which results in unplanned site 
closure  
(E.g. fire) then the Council may 
be unable to hold or dispose of 
waste.  

15 
 

No change to the previously reported position  

 
 

Expected to move 
to medium/ 

Amber 

10. Partnerships 
 

C&FS 10.1 If the Local Authority and 
partners do not succeed in 
developing an inclusive culture 
across all schools, education 
providers and partner agencies 
(including the Parent Carer 
Forum), then it will be difficult 
to secure parental confidence 
in the ability of the ‘whole 
system’ to meet the needs of 
the large majority of children 
with SEND in a mainstream 
school context. 

16 
 

Consultation with stakeholders on the new proposed provision has 
emphasised the importance of continued focus and capacity to support 
mainstream schools in being inclusive. This will be a continued feature of 
the high needs block development plan. 

 

 
 
Expected to move 

to green 
 

 
    

57



Dept./  
Function 

CRR 
Risk 

No 

Risk Description Current 
Risk  

Score 
(incl 

changes) 

Update 
Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 

March 2019 
 

 

Direction of 
Travel 

(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 

months) 

 

 

 

 
 
Department 
 

A&C = Adults & Communities E&T =  Environment and Transport  

CE =  Chief Executives PH = Public Health    

CR =  Corporate Resources All = Consolidated risk                                             

C&FS=  Children and Family Services 
 

 

 

**The arrows explain the direction of travel for the risk, i.e. where it is expected to be within the next twelve months after further mitigating 

actions, so that:  

o A horizontal arrow shows that not much movement is expected in the risk; 

o A downward pointing arrow shows that there is an expectation that the risk will be mitigated towards ‘medium’ and would likely be 

removed from the register; 

o An upwards pointing arrow would be less likely, but is possible, since it would show that the already high scoring risk is likely to be 

greater. 

58



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

 
Current Risk 

Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

 Residual Risk 
Action Owner / 

(Date) 
Action 

Complete 
(Yes or 

No) 

Dept. Risk # Risk Causes (s) Consequences (s) Risk Owner List of current controls I L 
Risk 

Score 
Further Actions / Additional 

Controls 
I L 

Risk 
Score 

1.  Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

All 1.1 

Risk around the 

MTFS including 

the ability to 

deliver savings 

through Service 

Redesign/ 

Transformation 

as required in 

the MTFS, 

impact of the 

living wage and 

other demand 

and cost 

pressures 

 

 Reducing government 

funding 

 Increased demand for 

the most vulnerable 

continues to increase: 

Adult Social Care  / 

CYPS  

 Significant 

efficiencies/savings 

already realised and 

implemented thereby 

making it increasingly 

difficult to deliver 

unidentified savings  

 

Service Delivery 

 Negative impact on all services 

as further service cuts will be 

required to reduce deficit 

 

Reputation 

 Significant impact on 

reputation exacerbated by the 

need for quick and potentially 

crude savings if a more 

considered approach not 

adopted 

 

Financial 

 Loss of income 

 Restricted funding from other 

sources 

Chief Executive/ 

All Directors 

 Four year MTFS approved 

and maintaining a balanced 

budget for next 2 years 

 Monitoring processes in 

place at service, 

departmental and corporate 

level 

 Progress with savings 

monitored and reported to 

Scrutiny Commission 

regularly  

 Reporting of Transformation 

Programme aligned with 

Corporate Finance reporting 

 Progress on savings from 

Transformation Programme 

monitored regularly to 

resolve early issues 

 Design Authority 

operational. 

 Transformation Programme 

aligned to MTFS 

 Introduction of the Business 

Consultant role within the 

TU to focus on supporting 

the development of 

Business Case development 

 Deliverability assessments 

on all Business Cases and 

newly identified 

opportunities for savings 

now routinely completed. 

5 5 25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Treat 

 
 

 Further work on the Council’s low 
funding position to make the case 
for increased funding to 
government. 
Responded to Fair Funding and 
Business Rate Retention in 
February 2019. Working with 
County Council’s Network to 
develop Adult Social Care 
Formula 
 

 Funding of capital schemes 
becoming increasingly difficult 
 

 
 
 
Transformation Programme  

 
 

 TU resources are being focused 
on work with all Departments to 
identify new opportunities for 
savings and develop relevant 
business cases 

 
 
 
 

5 5 25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Chief Executive 
/ All Directors 

 
 

During 2019/20 

 

CE 1.3 

If S106 monies 

for the Council 

as a whole are 

not managed 

properly  then 

there could 

financial risks 

as well as legal 

challenges 

 Due to the pooling 

limitations imposed 

by the Community 

Infrastructure Levy 

Regulations 2010 

(as amended) on the 

use of s106 planning 

obligations. 

Financial 

 Failure to secure funds putting 

LCC at financial risk 

Reputation 

 Possible need for challenge / 

defend challenge in high court 

Director of Law 

& Governance 

Head of 

Planning, 

Historic & 

Natural 

Environment 

 Agreed positions 

established with District 

Councils 

 Analysed data of s106 

contributions since 2010 

 Infrastructure and 

Development Oversight 

Group in place- work 

programme and timetable in 

place 

 Approach to projects and 

pooling established (subject 

to individual project 

circumstances).   

 Regular updates to Cabinet  

on planning decisions that 

do not reflect the County 

Council’s section 106 

requirements. 

4 4 16 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Improve procedures and 

practices   

 Lack of staff resources to 

manage all the workload 

 Developer Contributions Policy 

under  review        

 Implement a new corporate 

Growth Unit 

4 3 12 

 

 

 

 

 

Head of 

Planning, 

Historic & 

Natural 

Environment 

 

 
During 2019/20 

 

59



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

 Members notified of 

requests for section106 

contributions that fall within 

their division.     

CR   1.4 

If claims relating 
to uninsured 
risks materialise 
or continue to 
increase then 
LCC will need 
to find 
increased 
payments from 
reserves, 
impacting on 
funds available 
to support 
services 
 

 Estimates from MMI 

continue to report a 

liability 

 Potential to increase 

MMI levy as a result of 

recent foster care 

judgement and could 

impact the SOA. 

 The judgement has an 

unknown impact 

 Any claims arising 

from the time 

Independent were 

insurers would need to 

be self-funded. 

 

Financial 
 

 Amounts involved are large 
and LCC is currently the 
MMI's largest creditor  
 

Service Delivery 
 

 Reduced funds available to 

support services 

 

 

Director  of 

Finance 

(Corporate 

Resources) 

 Detailed review of MMI 

claims undertaken before 

payments made 

 Process for defending 
claims in place 

 Ongoing partnership work 
with MMI to improve claims 
handling to reduce and 
manage losses 

 A separate ‘Uninsured Loss 
Fund’ is established to meet 
to mitigate against such 
consequences of MMI an 
similar situations 

 Training held to inform staff 
an management  who 
undertake placement 
decisions re potential for 
future liabilities following 
Supreme Court decision 
that a local authority can be 
held vicariously liable for the 
wrongful actions of foster 
carers to a child in foster 
care 

4 4 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tolerate  
4 4 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Head of Internal 

Audit Service 

and Insurance 

Manager 

 

 

Ongoing  

 

C&FS 1.5 

Social Care 

If the number of 

high cost social 

care 

placements 

(e.g. external 

fostering, 

residential and 

16+supported 

accommodation

) increases 

(especially in 

relation to 

behavioural and 

CSE issues) 

then there may 

be significant 

pressures on 

the children’s 

social care 

placement 

budget, which 

funds the care 

of vulnerable 

children. 

 
 

 Demand for high cost 

placements increasing 

especially in relation to 

behaviour & CSE 

issues 

Financial 

 High cost and 
overspending of budget 

Director - 

Children & 

Family Services    

 Weekly tracking of 
admissions and discharges 
of Children in Care - Panel 
process reviewed to 
introduce tighter HOS 
control of children entering 
care and legal proceedings 
(Child Decision Making 
Panel established January 
2018) 

 Annual Market Position 
Statements were published 
to ensure marketing and 
recruitment for placement 
sufficiency remains 
appropriately targeted 
(2015-17) - mainstream and 
specialist Foster Carer 
recruitment targets for 
2017-18 will be met by the 
end of April 2018 (one 
month over); two new 
strategies (Recruitment and 
Retention Strategy and 
Adoption and Permanence 
Strategy) will sit under an 
overarching Placement 
Strategy to be launched 
April 2018; targets against 
both these Strategies have 
already been agreed. 

 16+ placement framework 
was introduced during 2016 
and has effectively allowed 
the service to manage costs 
of these placement but 
ensure we have sufficiency 

5 5 25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Word Of Mouth project – six 

year programme of targeted 

savings 

 Consultant advising on 

additional growth and to deliver 

a revised payment scheme  

 Advice being taken for 

additional growth to recruit 

foster carers 

 Approach to Fostering being 

looked at by Transformation unit 

through consideration of use of 

market for contracted residential 

beds 

 

4 5 20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Director - 

Children & 

Family Services    

 

 

  

 
During 2019/20 

 

60



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

to enable to move children 
from more costly 
placements or for UASC. 

 Complex Care Panel with 
health is ongoing, allows 
shared decisions for 
children in care with more 
complex and continuing 
needs 

 Processes have been 
amended so that requires 
for residential placements 
must now be signed off by 
the Director and requests 
for independent fostering 
and 16+ by the AD for CSC 
– this is helping to ensure 
appropriateness and quality 
of requests and allowing 
closer scrutiny of processes 

  Monthly high level DMT 
reviews are ongoing.  Panel 
meetings also held to look 
at high cost placements in 
residential care and to 
ensure that appropriate 
plans and resources are in 
place to support placements 

 Adoption complaints 

significantly reduced during 

2017 with the introduction of 

a dedicated Service 

Manager for Permanence, 

the introduction of a support 

worker following the growth 

bid and a programme of 

training and awareness to 

promote staff understanding 

of the child's permanence 

journey - further 

improvements in 

Permanence (adoption and 

SGO) will be achieved in 

2018, with an ongoing 

programme of awareness, 

introduction of dedicate staff 

for SGO support and 

recruitment of a third 

therapeutic worker for post 

3 year adoption placement 

C&FS 1.6 

Education  

If the High 

Needs Block 

Development 

Plan is not 

delivered on 

time and within 

budget then the 

number and 

cost of 

specialist 

 Services requesting 

support for high needs 

including SEN 

placements. 

 Insufficient budget  

Service Delivery 

 Unable to meet the needs of 

all vulnerable children in a 

cost effective and inclusive 

way 

 Unable to meet the 

department's statutory duties 

around SEND Placements 

within available resources 

People 

 Resources tied up in 

independent provision and 

Director – 

Children & 

Family Services 

 High Needs  Project  Board 
and HNB Development Plan 
in place  

 SEND Sufficiency plan 
based on developing 
inclusion and establishing 
new provision progressing 
through Corporate Approval 
(Corporate schools Group 
17 Dec)       

 Application for SEMH Free 
School to be submitted to 
DfE 

 Work underway with our 

4 5 20 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Development of mainstream 
resource provisions and special 
school capacity:  Expanded and 
new resourced provision is now 
established at Wigston, 
Iveshead, Rawlins Academy 
Hinckley Academy and All 
Saints Primary Wigston from 
April/Sept 2018. Co-production  
with parents has taken place to 
design this provision.  

 Expressions of interest have 
been received from 29 schools 
and academies to develop new 

4 4 16 

 

 

 

Head of Service 

SEND & CDS 

  

 Children & 

Family Services 

 

 
During 2019/20 

 

61



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

placements is 

likely to exceed 

current 

predictions and 

the High Needs 

Block Budget 

will exceed 

latest forecasts 

 

not used in the most efficient 

way to meet needs 

Reputational 

 Bad publicity and low 

confidence in Local Authority 

to support vulnerable children 

and young people  

 Low confidence in ability of 

department to manage it's 

services, budgets and meet 

savings targets (MTFS).  

 Poor outcomes at  SEND 

Inspection 

Financial 

 Budget overspent / continuing 

budget overspend which is 

unsustainable 

 Required savings targets not 

met 

 

 

maintained and academy 
mainstream and special 
schools to increase their 
capacity to meet higher 
levels of need. 

 Work with Behaviour 
Partnerships to increase 
their capacity to offer 
provision 

 New improved contract and 
procurement arrangements 
now in place 

 New extended offer at 
Oakfield for children with 
behavioural difficulties is 
now in place 

 Extended offer at Maplewell 
Hall and Birchwood School 
for children with Autism now 
in place review of pupils in 
independent  provision at 
key transition. 

 additional provision from 
Sept 2018 at Wigston  All 
Saints, Quorn Rawlins and 
Hinckley Academy Dorothy 
Goodman  

resourced provisions, with bids 
currently undergoing evaluation. 

 High Needs Development 
Programme includes a wide 
range of activities to support 
effective inclusion in schools 
and to ensure effective 
processes, including top-up 
funding and activities to 
incentivise schools to support 
children through effective early 
help and support. 

 SENA Service has been 
strengthened and growth bid 
submitted to further increase 
SENO capacity, together with a 
6 month ‘deputy’ post to 
accelerate changes.  

 Panel processes have been 
refreshed to include greater 
input from partners and decision 
making oversight. 

 Post of SEND Inclusion 
Development Officer 
established, to lead on 
sufficiency planning. 

 Independent ‘Challenge’ via 
external company, with 
challenge meeting testing High 
Needs recovery Plan December 
2018. 

CR 1.7 

If the Council is 

non-compliant 

with HRMC 

IR35 

regulations 

regarding the 

employment of 

self -employed 

personnel then 

there is a risk of 

large financial 

penalties 

 Clear Policy not in 
place 

 Guidance, training 
and COMMS not in 
place for managers  

 Lack of monitoring to 
identify contracts 
where issues exist. 
 

Financial 

 Large financial penalties  

Reputation 

 Loss of reputation as a good 

employer  

 Adverse media coverage loss 

of public confidence  

 Legal 

 Risk of legal action against 

the Council for non- 

compliance 

All Directors 

 Guidelines in place  

 New post in place 

 Policy in place  

 Tax expert able to provide 
advice on compliance  

 Management of self- 
employed through Reed 
agency 

 Develop guidance, training 
and improved COMMS for 
managers. Policy and 
process included in 
Managers Digest 
(September 18 ) including 
use of Reed Agency for all 
recruitment activity 

 Human Resources Policies 
(temporary workers and 
independent contractors) 
have been updated as well 
as working practices. 
 

5 4 20 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Review of all current identified 
post outside of Reed 
employment to identify issues 

 Improve the standard of checks 
and information available from 
other employment agencies 
 

4 3 12 

 

 

Assistant 
Director - 
Corporate 
Services 

 
Assistant 
Director – 
Strategic 

Finance & 
Property 

 
Corporate 
Resources 

 

 

During 2019/20 

 

CR 1.8 

If public sector 

partners and 

major providers 

of services to 

the public 

sector get into 

financial 

difficulties there 

could be an 

impact on both 

the Council’s 

financial 

 Monitoring 
arrangements re key 
partners are not in 
place 

Financial 

 Additional budgetary 

pressures  

Director of 

Corporate 

Resources 

 Attendance at LALAT 

 Oversight and monitoring of 
other organisations finances 

 Created a refreshed 
contract management toolkit 
available on the intranet 
outlining the requirements 
of financial monitoring.   

4 4 16 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Extra resources will be put in 
place to assess the financial 
health of maintained schools 
(and academies) and the 
financial planning service 
enhanced to support them. 
 

 Continued use of credit scores 
to inform decision making. Need 
to be aware of their limitations. 
 

 Monitoring of key partner 
organisations including regular 
dialogue 

4 4 16 

 

 

 

 

Assistant 

Director – 

Strategic 

Finance & 

Property 

 

Corporate 

Resources 

 

62



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

position and 

services 

 complete a corporate refresh of 
all HV/BC/HR contracts for 
August 2019, these will then be 
placed on monitor with finance 
for the duration of the contracts.   

 

 

During 2019/20 

C&FS 1.9 

If the 

immigration 

status of 

unaccompanied 

asylum-seeking 

children (UASC) 

who arrive in 

the County is 

not resolved, 

then the Council 

will have to 

meet additional 

long term 

funding in 

relation to its 

housing and 

care duties.   

 

Service Delivery 

 Potential inability of service to 

meet demand from unplanned 

UASC arriving in the County 

People 

 UASC arriving unplanned in 

the County do not get their 

needs addressed and 

appropriate support 

 Pressures on staff (resources 

to deal with UASC) 

Reputational 

 Negative publicity due to 

department being unable to 

meet its statutory duties with 

regards to UASC 

 Threat of Judicial Review and 

Appeals if not meeting 

statutory duties with regards 

to UASC 

Financial 

 Significant cost of providing 

emergency and additional 

support for UASC with 

complex needs 

 National government funding 

unlikely to meet needs of 

UASC arriving unplanned in 

County – additional budgetary 

pressures on department 

Director of 

Children & 

Family Services 

 Development of a specialist 

UASC team  - recruitment of 

manager and  staff to 

specialist UASC team has 

taken place; ongoing 

development of specialist 

skills, knowledge and 

competencies within team 

 Department is part of a 

regional group that is 

looking at processes / 

approaches / potential 

numbers with regards to 

UASC 

4 5 20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 
 Develop a recruitment and 

retention strategy 

4 3 12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assistant 

Director – 

Children’s Social 

Care 

 

 

During 2019/20 

 

2. Health & Social Care Integration 

 

A &C 

 

 

2.2 

 

 

Impact on 

County Council 

services and 

MTFS of the 

Better Care 

Together 

(medium term) 

transformation 

plan in 

Leicester, 

Leicestershire 

and Rutland 

(LLR), could 

lead to inability 

to deliver 

improved 

outcomes and 

financial 

sustainability. 

 the partnership may 

breakdown, the 

Council may 

withdraw from the 

process and levels 

of demand will 

continue to increase 

from partners 

leading to financial 

and safety risks. 

Service Delivery 

 STP programme outcomes are 

not delivered and the 

programme fails leading to 

reputational risks, partnership 

breakdown  and financial 

instability within the health and 

care economy 

 STP care pathway changes fail 

to maintain safe, high quality 

clinical care 

 The shift of care from acute to 

community settings is not 

modelled or implemented 

effectively leading to 

unforeseen pressure in other 

parts of the health and care 

economy 

 

Financial 

 The investment case within the 

SOC in not fully supported, 

Chief Executive 

Director- Adults 

& Communities 

and Director of 

Health and 

Social 

Integration 

 

 

 5 year Strategic Plan has 

identified five key strands for 

change, they include the 

development of : 

 new models of care focused 

on prevention, and moderating 

demand growth, and an 

integrated urgent care offer.  

 A reconfiguration of hospital 

based services, subject to 

consultation.  

 Redesigned pathways to 

deliver improved outcomes for 

patients and residents. 

 STP Governance 

arrangements have been 

developed which includes a 

new System Leadership Team 

(SLT) with membership from 

the five NHS partner 

organisations and the three 

4 4 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 

 The County Council raised 

concerns about the current 

governance and viability of the 

STP and has determined not to 

be a signatory to a further draft 

plan.  The NHS has decided not 

to publish a further plan but to 

promote partnership activity 

under the Better Care Together 

banner.  Progress with any sort 

of medium term local NHS plan 

is largely dependent on the 

award of significant capital 

funding for which a business 

case is being prepared. 

 NHS commissioning 

arrangements are now under 

review 

 

4 6 16 

 

 

 

Director- Adults 

& Communities 

& 

And Director of 

Health and 

Social 

Integration 

 

 

63



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

leading to gaps in the financial 

plan/assumptions for delivering 

the programme 

 The savings from STP are not 

achieved, leading to gaps in 

the financial plan/assumptions 

for delivering the programme. 

 A notional figure of £5m impact 

on ASC has been highlighted 

within the Strategic Outline 

Case. 

 

People 

 Partners are unable to provide 

sufficient staffing resource to 

deliver the programme leading 

to failure to deliver at the 

required pace and scale 

 Lack of LLR integrated 

workforce plans 

 

Reputational 

 The communication and 

engagement plan for BCT is 

ineffective leading to lack of 

public support or opposition to 

the plans 

upper tier local authorities.   

 Refreshed finance and 

capacity modelling is being 

undertaken as part of the 

development of the 

sustainability and 

transformation plan. 

  
   

 
 

    
 

     

All 2.3 

LCC and 

partners do not 

have the 

capacity to 

meet expected 

increase in 

demand caused 

by the Welfare 

Reform Act 

 Decreased income 

 Continual economic 

climate 

 High unemployment / 

Reduction in wage 

increases 

 Changes in the benefit 

system 

 Introduction of 

Universal Credit 

transfers responsibility 

to vulnerable people 

 Inadequate 

information for 

business cases 

jeopardising robust 

decision making 

 More demand for 

advice services 

 No central funding for 

Local Welfare 

Provision post April 

2015 

 PIP migration for new 

and existing service 

users including 

appointee and 

deputyship in receipt 

of DLA who were 

Service Delivery 

 Service users losing 

support/income leading to a 

rise in number of people 

needing support from LCC and 

other local agencies 

 

People 

 Families less able to maintain 

independence 

 Difficulty in identifying and 

implementing effective 

preventative measures 

 'Hard to reach' groups slip 

through the net 

 

Reputation 

 Cases of hardship / lack of 

support in media 

 Potential inspection 

 Public confused as to which 

Agency has responsibility 

 

Financial 

 A&C debt increases 

 Demand led budgets under 

more pressure 

 Risk of litigation / judicial 

review 

All Directors 

The Welfare Reform risk within 

the A&C Departmental Risk 

Register is scored as 6 (Green). 

Work has progressed on this risk 

as follows: 

 

 A&C have been working with 

CE (Policy Team) to group 

and map the risks to see how 

they fit together and 

understand how they flow 

into the strategic risks 

(reputational, service and 

financial) for the Council.  

 This information has been 

shared with Departmental 

Risk Champions  with a view 

to: 

 raise awareness of 

welfare reform risks; 

 Officers within 

Departments to consider 

impacts on their individual 

departments. 

 

 Departments have been 

advised to identify any 

specific risks (welfare reform 

related) and retain and 

monitor via individual 

4 4 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

The largest reduction in benefits 

started in 2018/19 and therefore 

impact has been relatively low and 

additionally universal credit is being 

rolled out across the county at the 

moment.   Therefore this risk will be 

retained at a Corporate level and 

updates will be provided where 

relevant. 

4 4 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All 

Departmental 

Management 

Teams 

 

During 2019/20 

 64



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

under 65 on 8 April 

2013 commences 

13/7/15 

 

 

 Increased risk due to the 

migration from Disability Living 

Allowance to Personal 

independence Payments 

locally effective from 13 July 

2015 over the following 2 

years. The longer term risk has 

also now increased in relation 

to the Governments roll-out 

timetable that most existing 

benefit claimants will be moved 

over to Universal Credit during 

2016 and 2017. However, it 

has now been acknowledged 

that at least 700,000 claimants 

will not be on Universal Credit 

by the end of 2017. 

departmental risk registers. 

Any escalation of risks 

should take the normal route 

3.  ICT, Information Security 

All 3.2 

If the Council 

fails to meet the 

information 

/cyber security 

and governance 

requirements 

then there may 

be breach of the  

statutory 

obligations  

 

 Increased information 

sharing and direct 

access to systems 

across partnerships 

 Increased demand for 

flexible working 

increases vulnerability 

of personal, sensitive 

data taken offsite. 

 More hosted 

technology services 

 Greater emphasis on 

publication of data and 

transparency 

 Greater awareness of 

information rights by 

service users 

 Increased demand to 

open up access to 

personal sensitive 

data and information 

to support integration 

of services and 

development of 

business intelligence. 

 

Service Delivery 

 Diminished public trust in 

ability of Council to provide 

services 

 Failure to comply with Public 

Service Network (PSN) Code 

of Connection standard would 

result in the Council being 

disconnected from PSN 

services, with possible impact 

on delivery of some vital 

services. 

 

People 

 Loss of confidential information 

compromising service user 

safety 

 

Reputation 

 Damage to LCC reputation 

 

Financial 

 Financial penalties 

 

Assistant 

Director – 

Corporate 

Services 

/ Head of 

Information 

Management & 

Technology 

 New, simplified Information 

Security and Acceptable 

Use Policy in place 

 PSN compliance achieved 

 Regular penetration testing 

and enhanced IT health 

checks in place 

 Improved guidance about 

data transfer tools in place 

 Programme of 

communications in place to 

re-inforce data security 

practices  

 Mobile device management 

process in place  

 New security governance 
arrangements in place 

 Increased communication 
and guidance on cyber 
security issues 

 E-learning for all staff in 

place- made mandatory for 

all staff. All staff enrolled 
first of February  2017 

 Induction process includes 
requirements around 
information security 

 New firewall in place 
providing two layers of 
security protection in line 
with PSN best practice 

 E-learning -refresher course 
is now available online on 
the new Learning 
Management System 

 Intrusion Detection Policy 

 Learning Management 
System provides improved 
monitoring of e-learning 
completion. 

 COMMS Plan in place to 
raise awareness with staff                                                                                                                                            

4 4 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Develop a process for ensuring 

refresher training is completed 

and maintained  - ongoing 

requirement to maintain 

compliance rates 

 Work progressing to move  to– 

Phase 2   surveillance and 

camera systems, asset register 

finalisation, procurement of 

assets register system 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4 3 12 

 

 

 

 

 

Assistant 

Director - 

Corporate 

Services  

 
During 2019/20 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

All 3.5 

If the Council 

fails to maintain 

robust records 

management 

processes to 

effectively 

manage 

information 

under its 

custodianship, 

personal data 

may not be 

processed in 

compliance with 

the Data 

Protection Act 

1998 resulting 

in regulatory 

action and/or 

reputational 

damage 

 Lack of a co-

ordinated approach 

in place to index, 

review and manage 

historical  case files 

(paper and 

electronic) with 

regard to retention or 

disposal decisions 

 Retention periods 

could be exceeded 

and therefore 

personal and 

sensitive data held 

longer than 

necessary 

 Retention schedules 

not developed or 

compiled with 

 Indexing training not 

in place or provided 

 

 

 

Service Delivery 

 Service delivery adversely 

affected by out of date data 

 

People 

 Personal information held 

longer than required 

 

Reputation 

 Potential adverse media 

attention and public lack of 

confidence 

 Subject access requests may 

not be compiled with  

 

Financial 

 Potential financial penalties 

 Insurance implications 

 

Legal 

 Non – compliance with IICSA 

Inquiry.  

 Destruction of records could 

lead to a Criminal Offence 

 Non-compliance with ICO and 

Data Protection Act –Principle 

5  

All Directors 

 

 Information Governance 

Board. Monthly monitoring 

of GDPR compliance work 

plan ad regular review of 

risks.             

 Completion of ICO 2017 

audit action plan                                                                 

 

Note : Legal services view is that 

fines for not retaining data when 

it should be retained for example 

in litigation or ICSA would be 

greater than if data is kept 

securely for longer than is legally 

required . However records 

should not be held for an 

indefinite period of time. 

 

 

 

5 

 

 

3 

 

 

15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 More detailed work being 

scoped focusing on greatest 

areas of priority. 

 Plans in place to tackle physical 

file management issues  

 Identification of additional 

resources required  

 

 

 

5 

 

 

2 

 

 

10 

 

 

 

 

 

Director 

(Corporate 

Resources) and 

Director of Law 

and Governance 

 
During 2019/20 

 

CR 3.6 

If the 

replacement 

ERP system is 

not 

implemented 

successfully the 

organisation will 

not reap the 

benefits and the 

organisations 

finance and HR 

activity could be 

negatively 

Impacted. 

 Lack of an agreed 
project plan to 
procure replacement 
system 

 Users are not 
engaged through 
focus groups or 
workshops 

 Monitoring 
arrangements not in 
place to identify early 
any emerging issues 

 Governance 
arrangements not in 
place between 
partners 

Service Delivery 

 Unable to deliver critical 

business services and other 

projects delayed.    

 

Financial  

 Implement cost increase.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

 

Reputation  

 Adverse publicity due to 

negative impact on supplier, 

customers and staff. 

Director of 

Corporate 

Resources 

 Contract agreed for new 
system (Oracle Fusion) 
experienced implementation 
partner procured and 
Programme Director 
appointed. 

 New governance structure 
for implementation phase in 
place                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

5  4 20 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Dedicated Team Manager and 
reporting Lead being recruited  
 

 Early commencement of data 
cleansing to reduce the 
potential for errors. 
 

 Detailed assessment of system 
functionality with requirements 
being undertaken through 
advisory workshop 
 

5  2 10 

 

Assistant 

Director – 

Strategic 

Finance 

Corporate 

Resources 

 

 
During 2019/20 

 

C&FS 3.7 

 

If the quality of 

data in C&FS 

Information 

Management 

System is too 

low to satisfy 

statutory 

requirements 

(e.g. data 

returns) this will 

impact upon 

service delivery 

 Data quality 
processes not 
defined, 
communicated 

 Users not trained 

 Report are not 
routinely produced 
and queries are not 
investigated and 
resolved 

 

 

Service Delivery 

 Inability to effectively plan at a 

strategic and operational level 

(including individual plans for 

children, young people and 

families) 

 Potential for poor inspection 

outcomes 

People 

 Inability to support vulnerable 

children, young people and 

families in Leicestershire 

 Poor outcomes for children, 

young people and families in 

Director of 

C&FS 

 Self-service of improved set 
of data quality reports (tied 
to MOSAIC) 

 Improved training, 
development and guidance 
for staff 

 Data Quality processes 
established and in place 
(such as weekly runs of 
Annex A (Ofsted SIF 
Inspection Framework) data 
files; Statutory data 
validation (as part of 
Statutory returns process); 
and, data matching (NHS 
Number and Education 
Database) 

4 4 16 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Self-service of improved set of 

data quality reports ((tied to 

MOSAIC) 

 Improved training, development 

and guidance for staff 

 Monthly data quality 

improvements meetings with 

associated task groups 

established 

 New Business Support structure 

will provide capacity within 

IM&T to support and guide 

3 4 12 

 

 

Head of 

Business 

Services 

Children & 

Family Services 

 
During 2019/20 

 

66



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

Leicestershire 

Financial 

 Inability to effectively make 

financial plans and therefore 

meet savings targets (i.e. 

MTFS) and plan sustainable 

service delivery in the future 

Reputational 

 Potential for poor inspection 

outcomes 

 Negative publicity for the 

Council and department 

 Ongoing training and 
development (Frameworki 
and Capita) - resource for 
this post currently (Dec 16) 
in discussion with L&D 

 Additional capacity 
(consultant) involved in 
improving practice guidance 
for using IMS. 

 Mosaic reporting group 
established and working 
through reporting 
requirements. 

 L&D resource being moved 
to CFS for closer working 
with IM&TT. 

 

services in data quality and the 

structure has also provided 

capacity within services to 

improve data quality 

4. Commissioning & Procurement 

 

All 

 

4.1 

If the Authority 

does not obtain 

the required 

value and level 

of performance 

from its 

providers and 

suppliers then 

the cost of 

services will 

increase and 

service delivery 

will be impacted 

 

 Lack of robust contract 

management 

/performance 

measures for in-house 

services 

 Robustness of supply 

chain  

 Reduced funding and 

resources 

 Staff turnover leading 

to lack of continuity in 

contract management 

 Insufficient investment 

in contract 

management skills 

and competencies 

Service Delivery 

 Business disruption due to cost 

and time to re-tender the 

contract 

 Standards/quality not met 

resulting in reduced customer 

satisfaction 

 Relationships with 

providers/suppliers deteriorate 

People 

 Additional workload where 

disputes arise 

Reputation 

 Customer complaints 

Financial 

 VfM/ Efficiencies not achieved 

 Increased costs as LCC has to 

pick up the service again 

 Unfunded financial exposure  

 

 

Director – 

Corporate 

Resources & 

Transformation /  

Assistant 

Director – 

Corporate 

Services  

 

 Departments currently 
undertake management and 
monitoring of contracts 
 

 Commissioning & 
Procurement Strategy in 
place with agreed 
framework for measuring 
progress against key 
principles to identify issues 
at earlies opportunity 

 

 New governance 
arrangements in place 

 

 Contract Management 
Framework available in the 
Toolkit 

 Guidance on setting and 
monitoring KPI for contract 
managers has gone live on 
toolkit 

 

 Recruitment completed for 
Commissioning Support 
Unit to  strengthen contract 
management arrangements 
 

 LLR and LCC 
Commissioning 
Programmes completed  

 

5 3 15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 

 Implement improved KPIs for all 

contracts 

 

 Implement training for all contract 

managers 

 

 Complete key supplier cost 

reduction programme and 

achieve savings target for 

2018/19                           

      

4 3 12 

 

 

 

 

 

Head of 

Commissioning 

and 

Procurement 

Support 

 

Corporate 

Resources 

 

 
During 2019/20 

 

67



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

E&T 4.2 

If Arriva is 

successful in its 

concessionary 

travel appeal 

then 

reimbursement 

costs for the 

total scheme 

could increase 

significantly 

 

• Potential for significant additional 

expenditure or contraction of the 

commercial bus service network 

Director E&T 

 Current mitigating actions 
include an appeal response 
to the DfT on 29/1/18 (use 
of external consultant to 
support).  

 Submission of evidence has 
refuted all claims for 
additional costs by Arriva 
save for reclassification of 
service types. The 
timescale for appeal 
determination is possibly up 
to 18 months  

 Using expert consultant 
resource to supplement 
local submission of data to 
the DfT to dispute the 
appeal detail provided by 
Arriva  

5 3 15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Defend and submit appeal detail 

to DfT 

 There is a further risk that if the 

approach adopted by Arriva is 

found to be appropriate then the 

county is likely to be exposed to 

a further financial risk from other 

operators. 

5 2 10 

 

 

 

Assistant 

Director -  

Highways 

Environment & 

Transport 

 

During 2019/20 

 

5.  Safeguarding 

CFS 5.1 

Historic:  

If as a result of 

a concerted 

effort to explore 

abuse by the 

Independent 

Inquiry into 

Child Sexual 

Abuse (IICSA) 

and Police 

Operations, 

then evidence 

of previously 

unknown 

serious 

historical issues 

of child sexual 

exploitation 

(CSE) or abuse 

is identified. 

Historical 

 

Concerted effort to 

explore historical 

exploitation and abuse in 

response to the 

Independent Inquiry and 

Police Operations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Service Delivery 

 Need to review and redesign 

current service in the light of 

lessons learnt 

Reputation 

 Potential adverse media and 

political risk 

Financial 

 Increased cost of settling 

claims and service redesign 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reputation  

Chief Executive 

Reputation & 

Service Delivery 

Director - 

Children & 

Family Services  

Legal   

Director of Law 

& Governance 

 

Financial 

Director - 

Corporate 

Resources 

 

Historical 

• Established Independent 

Inquiry Strategic Governance 

Group to oversee planned 

investigation and information 

gathering 

• Pro-active engagement with 

the Independent Inquiry 

• Refreshed Communication 

Strategy and Implementation 

Plan 

• Appointed Legal Support and 

Counsel 

• Member briefings held (x2) 

• Partnership governance is in 

place 

• CSE Executive Role and 

Terms of Reference revised and 

agreed 

 

5 5 25 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 

Historical 

 Establish close working 

relationships with other 

authorities 

 Further revision of Comms 

Strategy 

 Review of current internal 

governance arrangements 

 Continue to work closely with the 

IICSA team 

 Set funding aside to meet the 

costs of the inquiry 

 Review activity in the light of the 

delay to the Janner investigation 

public hearings 

 Carefully plan activity and monitor 

progress and expenditure 

4 5 20 

 

Reputation  

Chief Executive 

Reputation & 

Service Delivery 

Director - 

Children & 

Family Services  

Legal   

Director of Law 

& Governance 

 

Financial 

Director - 

Corporate 

Resources 

Ongoing 

 

6. Brexit  1.   Brexit 

All 6.1 

Uncertainty and 

significant 

knock on 

consequences 

on public 

services 

(including 

potential legal, 

regulatory, 

economic and 

social 

implications), 

and the local 

economy as a 

Uncertainty  and impact 

on  local government  

Service Delivery 

 Uncertainty around ESIF  and 

other funding streams 

 Uncertainty around any 

potential changes to 

government policy following 

the formation of a new 

government.  Lack of steer for 

local policy making. 

 Impact on the Economy due to 

uncertainty during the 

negotiation period. 

 Impact on staffing in 

commissioning contracts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Monitoring post Brexit 

negotiations and national 

policy direction and maintain 

an overview of the developing 

situation 

 Working with partners to 

maximise benefit from 

existing European bids and 

programmes 

 Review of significant policies 

relevant to the management 

of these risks (e.g. investment 

policy) to ensure they are fit 

for purpose in the new 

4 4 16 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Establish LCC and LRF 3C 

arrangements; Regular reporting 

to CMT and Elected Members, 

MHCLG and LGA 

4 4 16 

 

 

 

 

Assistant Chief 

Executive 

Chief Executives 

Ongoing 

 

68



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

result of the 

United Kingdom 

leaving the 

European Union 

 

involving high numbers of non 

UK citizenship e.g. home care 

and cleaning. 

Legal 

 Changes in UK/EU legislation 

e.g.  procurement, employment  

Financial 

 Uncertainty around EU 

funding, inward investment  

 Further austerity measures 

and demand pressures 

People  

Impact on incumbent workforce 

who have non UK citizenship e.g. 

agency workers 

 

 

 

 

CE/Directors 

environment                                                                                                                                                  

Assess any Impact of the risk 

assessment on the 

assumptions used to 

generate the medium term 

financial plan 

 Access a diverse range of 

external funding opportunities 

 Reflect Brexit Impact in 

revised Enabling Growth Plan 

 Develop policy driven by local 

needs 

 Gather intelligence and model 

future scenarios relating to 

Brexit impacts to inform future 

policy.’ 

 the LLEP's Business Board 

has agreed to monitor Brexit 

impacts (both negative and 

positive) on the economy and 

the Economic Growth Team 

will undertake this work for 

the LLEP 

7. People  

CR 7.1 

If sickness 

absence is not 

effectively 

managed then 

staff costs, 

service delivery 

and staff 

wellbeing will be 

impacted 

 Policy and 

Procedures are not 

in place 

 Lack of training for 

managers 

 Monitoring and 

reporting systems 

are inadequate or 

not in place 

 Support 

mechanisms not in 

place 

 

Service delivery 

 Increased pressure on 

services to provide 

same/more with less 

 Increased requirement for 

temporary/casual staff. 

People 

 Negative impact on staff if 

they perceive absences are 

not managed properly 

 Loss of productivity 

Reputation 

 Avoidable costs to LCC in 

difficult times 

Financial 

 Increased staff costs 

Director of 

Corporate 

Resources  

 Revised Policy in place.  

 HR advice being provided to 

Managers.  

 Training for Managers in 

place.  

 Comprehensive monitoring 

and reporting (Manager; 

Depts, DMT; CMT) to 

identify issues/solutions.  

 Support from Mental Health 

First Aiders being utilised. 

4 4 16 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Targeted work with managers 

and services (Intensive Support 

Project). 

 Develop, agree and implement 

Increment Policy (on hold) 

 Implementation of absence 

management triage project - 

impact reporting at 3; 6 & 12 

mths before full roll out.  Pilot 

has ended – not taken forward 

 Revise Absence Management 

Policy – consultations underway 

with Trade Unions 

 Revise Terms and Conditions 

4 3 12 

 

Assistant 

Director, 

Corporate 

Services 

(Corporate 

Resources) 

 

During 2019/20 

 

All 7.2 

If Depts. are 

unable to recruit 

and retain 

skilled staff 

promptly (social 

workers and 

team 

managers) then 

some services 

will be over-

reliant on the 

use of agency 

staff resulting in 

budget 

overspends and 

poor service 

delivery 

 No Recruitment or 

Retention Strategy 

 

Service Delivery 

 Children and young people 

potentially left at risk of harm  

People 

 Additional training in Signs of 

Safety for agency workers 

 Additional time required for 

permanent staff to support 

agency staff  

 Recruitment and retention of 

staff 

Reputational 

 The Local Authority is not 

seen to support staff through 

impact on recruitment and 

retention 

Financial 

Director of 

Children & 

Family Services 

 Monthly reporting on 

agency staff and associated 

costs 

 Working with Corporate 

communications on a new 

Social Worker recruitment 

campaign  

 Monthly reporting on 

caseloads and supervision 

policy 

 Completed  a growth bid 

and identified establishment 

for additional staff 

 In some areas market 

premia payments are being 

made 

 

5 3 15 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Development of  a recruitment 

and retention strategy 

 Continue actively recruiting to 

permanent posts 

 Continue supporting Social 

Workers, e.g. Newly Qualified 

Social Workers, through 

recruitment and retention 

strategy 

 Working with Agency staff to 

support them to become 

permanent members of staff 

 In house training programme 

being developed in Adults and 

Communities.  

 

5 3 15 

 

 

Assistant 

Directors 

Children’s Social 

Care and Adults 

and 

Communities  

 

During 2019/20 

 

 

69



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

 Additional budget costs 

leading to overspend 

 Required savings targets not 

met 

 

 

 

 

 

 

During 2019/20 

A&C 7.3 

If the 

department 

does not have a 

sustainable 

external 

workforce to 

work with it may 

be unable to 

meet its 

statutory 

responsibilities. 

 

 Recruitment  and 

retention  planning 

not in place 

 No communication 

with homecare 

providers 

 The  Department will not be 

able to meet its statutory 

responsibilities 

Director Adults 

and 

Communities 

 

 A small external workforce 

team has been appointed 

for a two-year period, 

ending spring 2020, to work 

with the authority’s 

providers to target more 

effective recruitment and 

retention through a range of 

interventions.  

4 4 16 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Revised workforce development 

plan is being drafted. 

 New governance arrangements 

being considered 

3 3 9 

Assistant 

Director 

Adults and 

Communities  

 

During 2019/20 

 

8. Business Continuity 

CR 8.1 

If suppliers of 

critical 

services   do 

not have robust 

business 

continuity plans 

in place, the 

Council maybe 

be unable to 

deliver services. 

 No BC framework in 

place i.e. definition 

of a critical supplier 

or identification of 

critical services. 

 Failure to develop a 

BC Plans 

 Guidance or 

communication not 

in place 

 No monitoring of 

supplier or business 

continuity 

compliance for 

critical services  

 Contract 

specifications are 

not clear as to BC 

arrangements 

Service Delivery 

 Delays in services may place 

vulnerable people at risk 

 Re-work /re-planning due to 

clash of priorities  

People                                             

 Council unable to support 

people in receipt of service to 

adverse outcomes for 

individuals  

 Reputation   

 Damage from negative 

publicity and loss of trust with 

the public 

Financial  

 Supplier BC failure results in 

additional costs to source 

alternative providers 

Assistant Chief 

Executive 

Chief 

Executive’s 

Department 

 Contract Management and 

compliance monitoring in 

place.                                                 

 Improved Frameworks for 

commissioning services 

detailing BC requirements. 

 

5 3 15 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 

 Complete an assurance 

exercise to ensure all critical 

contracts have BCP in place. 

 Not all contracts are procured 

through the Corporate 

Commissioning Unit (CCU).  A 

detailed report on current 

practices and concerns to be 

submitted to Chief Officers 

seeking guidance on further 

action 

 Improve and rigor of guidance  

5 3 15 

Head of Policy 

and Strategy 

(CE) 

Resilience & 

Business 

Continuity 

Manager 

 

During 2019/20 

 

9. Environment  

E&T 9.1 

If the ash 

dieback 

disease 

causes 

shedding 

branches or 

falling trees 

then there is a 

possible risk 

to life and 

disruption to 

the transport 

network 

 Lack of preparation 

to deal with the 

impact of Chalara 

i.e. Awareness, 

Planning, Action and 

Recovery 

 Potential for serious physical 

harm/damage to property 

 Potential for insurance claims 

against council 

 Ecological/landscape impacts 

 Reputational damage 

 Financial – additional 

resources to undertake tree 

inspections, replanting 

strategy, availability of 

qualified tree surgeon to 

undertake work 

Director of 

Environment 

and Transport 

 Cross departmental project 

team set up to devise 

approach to council's 

response to Ash Dieback 

including associated costs 

for implementation. 

 

 Assessment of current 

extent and progress of 

disease in Leicestershire. 

  

 Ash Dieback action plan 

produced and reported to 

Cabinet in July 2018. 

 

5 3 15 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Implementation of the cross 

departmental ash dieback 

action plan (to timescales 

included in the plan) is now 

underway. 

5 2 10 

Assistant 

Director 

Highways  & 

Transport 

Environment & 

Transport 

 

During 2019/20 

 

 

70



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

 
 
Department 

    A&C = Adults & Communities E&T =  Environment and Transport 

CE =  Chief Executives PH =  Public Health C&FS = Children and Families Services 

CR =  Corporate Resources All =  Consolidated risk                                            

  
   

 
    

E&T 9.2 

If there was a 

major incident 

which results 

in unplanned 

site closure 

(e.g. fire) then 

the Council 

may be 

unable to hold 

or dispose of 

waste. 

 Lack of preparation 

to deal with the 

impact. 

 

 Waste not  being collected 

 Negative publicity 

 Increased costs 

Director of 

Environment 

and Transport 

 Management of landfill 

contracts – contract 

meetings, renewals, etc 

 Business Continuity Plan in 

place 

 CSWDC arrangements in 

place 

 Delivered programme of 

improvements at 

Loughborough WTS 

5 3 15 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Identify potential site(s) for new 

Waste Transfer Station (WTS) 

and commence work on 

planning permission. 

 Conclude future arrangements  

(CSWDC) 

 Review of BC plan to reflect any 

service changes 

 

4 2 8 

Assistant 

Director 

Environment & 

Waste 

 

During 2019/20 

 

10.1 Partnerships 

C&FS 10.1 

If the Local 

Authority and 

partners do 

not succeed in 

developing an 

inclusive 

culture across 

all schools, 

education 

providers and 

partner 

agencies 

(including the 

Parent Carer 

Forum), then it 

will be difficult 

to secure 

parental 

confidence in 

the ability of 

the ‘whole 

system’ to 

meet the 

needs of the 

large majority 

of children 

with SEND in 

a mainstream 

school context 

 Service Delivery 

 Increased time spent 

addressing complaints and 

attending SEND Tribunals 

People 

 Children, young people and 

families perceive that the 

quality of provision within 

Leicestershire is not 

appropriate to meet leave. 

Reputational 

 Negative publicity for the local 

authority (possible media 

coverage) 

Financial 

 Increased resource needed to 

deal with complaints and 

tribunals 

 Director of 

Children & 

Family Services 

 Appropriate procedures in 

place to deal with 

complaints 

 High Needs Development 

Plan includes range of 

actions and activities to 

develop the right conditions 

for inclusion 

 Communication Strategy to 

promote positive messages, 

including, for example, 

video of new provisions and 

service user views 

 

4 4 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

 Continued implementation of 

High Needs Delivery Plan, 

including Comms Strategy and 

development of the Local Offer 

 Oversight of HNDP by the High 

Needs Board, reporting through 

to SEND Board to ensure 

partnership buy-in 

 Continued dialogue with parent 

Carer Forum and development 

of co-ordinated activity to win 

‘hearts and minds’ 

 

3 2 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Head of Service 

SEND & CDS  

Children and 

Family Services 

 

During 2019/20 

 

71



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

Risk Removed from the Corporate Risk Register 

Dept. CRR Risk 

No 
Risk Description Current 

Risk 

Score 

 Reason  Date of 

Removal 

C&FS 

 

1.2 

 

Local Authority legal requirements to meet deficit budgets 

from maintained schools becoming sponsored academy, and 

pressure from Sponsors to meet repair costs. 

16 Agreed by Corporate Governance Committee  17 November 

2015 

E&T 5.2 

 

LLEP-insufficient funding for transport schemes to deliver 

economic growth and LTP3 /Strategic Plan. Risk regarding 

match funding requirement for the Council 

20 The risk has been downgraded from red to amber as the likelihood has reduced from 4 to 2 following the confirmation of future local growth funding in the Autumn 
2015 Statement (further details to follow in the new year). 
 
As the risk score has been revised from 20 to10, this risk has been removed from the Corporate Risk Register but it will continue to be monitored through the 
Environment & Transportation Departmental Risk Register. 

19 February 

2016 

E &T 4,1 Impact of an increase in unplanned and speculative local 

developments to address the shortfall in the five year 

housing supply which could have an adverse impact on the 

functioning of the transport network. 

15 The risk has been downgraded from red to amber as the likelihood has been reduced from 5 to 4 as a result of Districts having moved through the consultation 
phases and firmer programmes are now in place for publishing Core Strategies. LCC is also starting discussions with Districts on possible cumulative impact studies. 
 
As the risk score has been revised from 15 to 12, this risk has been removed from the Corporate Risk Register but it will continue to be monitored through the 
Environment & Transportation Departmental Risk Register. 

13 May 2016 

A&C 

 

2.1 Care Act 2014 Funding Risk for 2016/17 and beyond due to 

Care Act Phase 2 implementation delayed by Ministers until 

April 2020 

16 The current risk score has been reduced from 16 to 12 as a result of ongoing implementation of the Adult Social Care restructure, which has enabled the department 
to ensure the risk of unfunded posts, is significantly reduced. The Commissioning and Quality Action Plan has been completed and the Care Pathway and Business 
Support action plans are in progress. The risk will continue to be monitored as part of the A&C Departmental Risk Register 

26 May 2017 

C&FS 

 

4.1 

 

Supporting Leicestershire Families (SLF) - If LCC is not able 

to provide adequate outcomes data to partners then partner 

contributions to the pooled budget may not continue. 

15 The risk has been reviewed (Assistant Director – Education & Early Help) and the current risk score re-evaluated and reduced so that this is now being managed 
within the Supporting Leicestershire Families Delivery Plan. The risk has been reduced as all partners have agreed continued funding and further work has been 
undertaken on outcomes data. 
 

26 May 2017 

C&FS 1.7 If suitable placements are unavailable for unaccompanied 

asylum seeking children (UASC) who arrive in the County, 

either planned or unplanned, as a result of :  

 potential mandatory requirement to engage in the 
National Transfer Scheme;  

 resettlement of UASC from Calais in line with the 
requirements of Dublin III agreement and the Dubs 
amendment;  

 continuing response to spontaneous cases of UASC 
arriving in the County 

then there will be significant pressures on meeting the 

department’s statutory duties to UASC as well as financial 

pressures in meeting their complex needs.   

20 The UASC team is now established and the numbers of UASC are not as high as initially forecast. The current risk score as been reduced from 20 to 12. The risk will 
continue to be monitored as part of the Children & Families Services Departmental Risk Register 

22 September 

2017 

CR 3.1 If there is an outage  ICT systems  may not be able to be 

restored quickly  and effectively which could have a major 

impact on service delivery 

 

15 The further mitigating actions have been completed and the current risk score as been reduced from 15 to 12. The risk will continue to be monitored as part of the 
Corporate Resources Departmental Service Risk Register. 

22 September 

2017 

CR 3.4 If there is insufficient capacity to provide information 

technology solutions then service improvements and savings 

will not be achieved. 

16 The current risk score has been reduced from 16 to 12 as a result of ongoing implementation of the New Target Operating Model and improved resource planning 
processes. The risk will continue to be monitored as part of the Corporate Resources Departmental Register 

22 September 

2017 

CFS 5.1 Safeguarding- Current Risk element 

If as a result of a concerted effort by the IICSA and Police 

Operations there is a significant increase in identified cases, 

then the Council does not have the capacity to meet the 

demand on the CSE resources 

25 Note that whilst the ‘Historical’ risk and score is to be retained unchanged in the CRR,  the IICSA
1
 Strategy and Governance Group proposed (6 December 2017) that 

the ‘Current’ risk (If as a result of a concerted effort by the IICSA and Police Operations there is a significant increase in identified cases, then the Council does not 
have the capacity to meet the demand on the CSE resources) should be removed from the CRR, but nevertheless retained (and reworded) in the C&FS Departmental 
Risk Register. 
 
This suggestion is based on the limited connection between historical allegations and the current CSE service which is now established within the departmental 
budget in terms of costs and funding.  
 
1
 The Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse 

 

29 January 

2018 

72



Full Corporate Risk Register   (March 2019)                 APPENDIX B 

 

 

CE 2.5 Health & Social Care Integration (BCF)  

If Health and Care partners fail to deliver the local integration 

programme in accordance with national Better Care Fund 

(BCF) policy, within the financial envelope of the BCF pooled 

budget and by meeting national metrics, then elements of 

BCF funds could be withheld. 

16 The level of financial risk was reduced after a letter was received from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (formerly the Department for 
Communities and Local Government) and Department of Health and Social Care (formerly – Department of Health) Secretaries of State on 6th December 2017 to 
confirm that due to the improved the DTOC (Delayed Transfer of Care) performance that there will be no impact on the Improved Better Care Fund – (IBCF) allocation 
for 2018/19.  
 
The risk will be reviewed following the publication of the National BCF Operational Guidance for 2018/19 which is due to be published soon. 
The current risk score has been re-evaluated and reduced (from 16 to 9) 
 

23 April 2018 

All 3.3 ICT, Information Security (Business Intelligence) 

If there is a failure to provide business intelligence required 

to support transformation, inform commissioning, and 

strategic planning and to complete statutory returns then 

policy will not be evidence based.  

 

15 The current risk score has been reduced from 15 to 12 as good progress has been made across a number of areas: 

 Data and Business Intelligence Strategy and Implementation Plan in place. 

 Ongoing support for front line managers in managing data and provision of Tableau data quality reports to identify weaker areas.  Tableau self-service 

dashboards rolled out across many areas of the council.  BI Development team established and Business Partners in post to manage relationships with each 

Department and with IT.  Ongoing work to improve data quality issues.  Many performance dashboards have an accompanying data quality dashboard. 

The risk will continue to be managed within the CE Departmental Risk Register. 

23 April 2018 

E&T 9.1 Health & Safety (SEN risk assessments) 

If the Service is unable to recruit appropriate skills / 

resources to implement Audit recommendations then service 

users' safety is at risk as well as financial and reputation 

consequences. 

15 All outstanding SEN transport risk assessments were completed by the end of January 2018. Processes have been embedded to ensure assessments are revisited 
with increased staff resource focussing on planned review updates. 
 
The Current Risk Score has been reduced to 5 and the risk will be managed at Departmental level. 
 

23 April 2018 

E&T 10.1 Winter Maintenance 

The absence of a depot in the North East of the County may 

impact on the delivery and the cost of the Winter 

Maintenance programme for 2019/2020 

16 The Department has reduced the impact and likelihood scores leading to a reduction in the current risk score from16 to12.  Property Services are progressing with 
completion of planning consent for Sysonby farm by March 2019. The Department are working on a build programme to deliver facility before end of September 2019.   
 
Removal of the risk from the CRR at this point was queried because of the length of time to obtain planning consent but assurances were received from the Director 
that the risk will be managed within the Environment and Transport Departmental Risk Register 

25 July 2018 

A&C 2.4 Domiciliary Care (HTLAH) 

If the domiciliary care market does not have the capacity to 

provide high quality services to local residents within the 

county, then people may not receive services to meet their 

needs. 

16 The HTLAH project is now closed. This risk was closed and formulated into a market sustainability risk for the department.  The current risk score for social care 
market is 12 and the risk is being managed within the A&C Departmental Risk Register. 
 
 

25 July 2018 

 

73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

© Risk Management Partners   
www.rmpartners.co.uk 

Risk control 

Risk Management Health Check 
Leicestershire County Council 
January 2019 

in partnership with 

 

75



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 2 of 41 

Contents 
Introduction 3 

About Leicestershire County Council 3 

About the Risk Management Health Check 5 

Executive Summary and Recommendations 7 

Executive Summary 7 

Recommendations (Short and Medium Term) 8 

Recommendations (Longer Term) 10 

Risk Management Health Check Findings 11 

Leadership and Management 11 

Strategy and Policy 15 

People 17 

Partnerships, Shared Risks and Resources 20 

Processes 23 

Risk Handling and Assurance 26 

Outcomes and Delivery 29 

Risk Management Survey Results 31 

Appendix 1: Health Check Interviewees 39 

Appendix 2: About RMP 40 

 

The author of this report would like to acknowledge and extend thanks to the significant assistance and support of 

a large number of personnel within Leicestershire County Council, without whom this report would not have been 

made possible. The list of personnel to be thanked for their direct support in commissioning and arranging the Risk 

Management Health Check includes Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources (and sponsor of the Health 

Check), Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit and Assurance, and Jay Maher, Senior Auditor. 

Furthermore, sincere gratitude is expressed to the many participants of the onsite interview process and to those 

who took time out of busy diaries to complete the online risk management survey. A list of all who participated in 

the onsite interview process can be found in Appendix 1 of this report.

Carl Dunckley 
Manager – Risk Consulting 
Gallagher Bassett 

76



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 3 of 41 

Introduction 
 
About Leicestershire County Council 

The Council’s Constitution sets out how it operates. It includes how it makes 
decisions and the procedures it follows to make sure that these are efficient, clear 
and accountable to local people. 

The Council’s political structure is based on a Leader and Cabinet model. 

 

County Councillors 

The Council is made up of 55 councillors who are elected every 4 years. Their main 
duty is to represent the views of their community and constituents. 

All councillors meet 5 times a year at the full County Council meetings; which are 
normally open to the public. The role of the full Council is to: 

• set the budget (including the annual revenue budget and capital 
programme) 

• agree the major plans (Policy Framework) and any changes to them 

• approve changes to the Constitution 

• appoint the Leader and Cabinet Support Members, Scrutiny Commission 
and all main bodies 

• receive reports from the Cabinet and Scrutiny bodies 

• give councillors a chance to direct questions toward the Cabinet, Chairmen 
of boards and committees. 

• deal with Notices of Motion – where members can raise any issue for 
debate 

 

Leader and Cabinet 

The Council appoints the Leader, who is usually the head of the largest political 
group. He or she then appoints the Cabinet. The Cabinet is responsible for all major 
decisions, working within the Budget and Policy Framework approved by the 
County Council, and for making recommendations to the Council on the budget and 
the major plans. 

 

 

 

77



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 4 of 41 

Overview and Scrutiny 

There are a number of permanent Overview and Scrutiny committees. Their 
membership comprises of councillors who are not on the Cabinet. They give advice 
to the Cabinet and Council as a whole. They also monitor the decisions made by 
the Cabinet. Members of the public can attend these meetings, ask questions or 
present petitions. 

The councillors are also involved in developing and reviewing policies through 
review panels. The panels are not formal committees, but their final reports are 
usually made public once their findings are presented. 

 

Regulatory 

In the context of Leicestershire County Council certain non-executive functions fall 
within the remit of a series of committees or boards within what is described as the 
“Regulatory” area. This includes tasks like planning, elections and the members’ 
code of conduct and allowances. 

One of these committees is the Corporate Governance Committee whose primary 
purpose is to promote and maintain high standards within the Authority in relation to 
the operation of the Council's Code of Corporate Governance. 

The Corporate Governance Committee has delegated functions regarding risk 
management, including: 

• the promotion and maintenance within the Authority of high standards in 
relation to the operation of  the Council’s Local Code of Corporate 
Governance and in particular to ensure that an adequate risk management 
framework and associated control environment is in place; 

• to monitor the arrangements for the identification, monitoring and 
management of strategic and operational risk within the Council. 

The current chair of the Corporate Governance Committee is Mr Peter Bedford. 

 

Chief Executive 

The Chief Executive is Mr. John Sinnott. 

 

The Strategic Plan 

The Council’s Strategic Plan sets out its vision and priorities for the County and the 
organisation. 

78



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 5 of 41 

"Working together for the benefit of everyone: Leicestershire County Council’s 
Strategic Plan 2018-22" has been developed by the Council by focusing on the 
things that will make life better for people in Leicestershire, including the 
partnerships needed to make these improvements happen. 

Five strategic outcomes describe the Council’s vision for people in the County: 

1. Strong Economy: Leicestershire’s economy is growing and resilient so that 
people and businesses can fulfil their potential. 

2. Wellbeing and Opportunity: The people of Leicestershire have the 
opportunities and support they need to take control of their health and 
wellbeing. 

3. Keeping People Safe: People in Leicestershire are safe and protected from 
harm. 

4. Great Communities: Leicestershire communities are thriving and integrated 
places where people help and support each other and take pride in their 
local area. 

5. Affordable and Quality Homes: Leicestershire has a choice of quality homes 
that people can afford. 

The plan was adopted by the County Council in December 2017. 

 

 
About the Risk Management Health Check 

The Risk Management Health Check is not an audit, and as such, is intended to 
provide a more intuitive representation of stakeholder views than that usually 
offered within a more typical audit process. 

The Health Check is a multi-level assessment of the degree of maturity and 
effectiveness of current risk management practices. It is designed to provide an 
invaluable third-party perspective on the perceived strengths and weaknesses of 
risk management practices within the organisation and identify opportunities for 
potential improvement.  

The Health Check is based the HM Treasury document ‘Risk Management 
assessment framework: a tool for departments’ (July 2009) and is constructed using 
a series of pre-determined question sets. 

 

Stage 1 – Review of Corporate Risk Management Strategy 

A desk-top review of key documents was undertaken. This review focused upon risk 
management strategies, policies, procedures, and minutes of key meetings in which 
risk management is discussed. 

79



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 6 of 41 

Stage 2 – Stakeholder interviews 

A series of 18 one-hour interviews with key internal stakeholders were undertaken 
between 19th and 26h September 2018 to determine how the risk management 
strategy is implemented and its perceived effectiveness. Interviewees were 
selected from all levels of the management hierarchy from various parts of the 
Council. An overview of the results of the interview process is detailed within the 
section of this report titled ‘Risk Management Health Check Findings’. 

 

Stage 3 – Online risk management survey 

An online risk management survey was sent to 106 members of the organisation’s 
management hierarchy. Of these, 57 (54%) responded. The online survey was 
open from 17th to 28th September 2018. 

The results of the online survey are detailed within the section of this report titled 
‘Risk Management Survey Results’. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

80



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 7 of 41 

Executive Summary and 
Recommendations 
 
Executive Summary 

The Council continues to demonstrate a fundamental commitment to embrace risk 
management as an essential management practice and embed it within the 
organisational culture. 

This commitment is evident as many of the essential building blocks needed to 
maximise the risk management potential of the organisation are now in place, 
including: 

• Risk architecture: defined roles and responsibilities, and robust 
communication and reporting structures. 

• Risk strategy: a corporate risk strategy and policy. 

• Risk protocols: risk guidelines, rules and procedures, methodologies, tools 
and techniques. 

The risk management cause is promoted as an essential management discipline by 
key stakeholders within the organisation. These stakeholders have demonstrated 
an ongoing commitment to invest valuable time and resource into the practice in 
order to maximise the associated value. 

The previous third-party review of the organisation’s risk management approach 
utilised the Alarm CIPFA Benchmarking criteria, which is a self-assessment tool that 
focuses upon seven strands of risk management activity. On a five point scale, the 
organisation achieved a very creditable overall grading of ‘working’ (3), and was on 
the cusp of gaining an improved rating of ‘embedded and integrated’ (4). ‘Driving’ 
(5) remains the highest rating available. This report considers that the work 
undertaken by the Council since publication of the previous third-party review has 
further strengthened the Council’s position in respect of risk management standards 
and practices, thus increasing the likelihood of it attaining the higher grading of  
‘embedded and integrated’ (4) if it were to formally benchmark itself utilising the 
Alarm CIPFA Benchmarking criteria. 

In order to assist the organisation in making further improvements, it should 
consider: 

• Developing a multi-tiered clarity of understanding of the organisation’s risk 
appetite which is translatable into decision-making and behaviours by all 
internal stakeholders. 

• Improving risk management capabilities and understanding through a 
dedicated programme of organisational learning (training) at all levels. 

81



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 8 of 41 

• Improving consistency and efficiencies in risk management, information 
sharing, and reporting through investment in a central Risk Management IT 
system.  

• Celebrating risk management successes, and publishing lessons learned 
from failures. 

• Ensuring risk management is fully aligned to and embedded within 
organisational business planning processes. 

 

 
Recommendations (Short and Medium Term) 

 

No. Recommendation 

1 

The organisation should consider providing further clarity on its risk appetite 
through a clearly articulated statement to address the current inconsistency 
in understanding. This will positively influence decision-making and 
behaviours and provision greater consistency with expectations. 

Ref 
Setting the criteria and arrangements for the organisation’s appetite and tolerance for taking risk (page 

12). 

2 

The organisation should consider developing risk management 
training programmes to address the varying levels of risk 
management knowledge and competency. Risk Management 
training programmes should be targeted at all levels of the 
organisational hierarchy, and should be a constant provision from 
induction through to personal and managerial development. 

 

Ref Provisions to ensure appropriate risk management knowledge, experience and skills (page 20). 

3 

The organisation should consider publicising lessons learned 
from risk management failures in order to improve resilience, as 
well as risk management successes in order to win hearts and 
minds and achieve a greater understanding and commitment by 
internal stakeholders. 

 

Ref Delivery of successful outcomes (page 29). 

4 

The organisation should ensure that there are appropriate formal 
mechanisms in place for identifying, assessing and managing risk within its 
contracts and partnerships. This should include the use of joint risk 
registers, clear allocation of risk responsibilities and accountabilities and 
clear lines of reporting and effective dispute resolution. 

Ref Identifying, assessing and managing risk in partnerships (page 21). 

 

82



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 9 of 41 

No. Recommendation 

5 

The organisation should ensure that risk management is embedded into 
key elements of the organisational dynamic such as recruitment strategies, 
performance and development procedures, and reflected in personal and 
professional objectives and annual appraisals. 

Ref Arrangements for allocation of responsibility (page 19). 

6 
The organisation should ensure that risk management practices are 
consistently applied across all business planning, contract management 
and programme management activities. 

Ref 
Taking key risk judgements and providing clear direction.(page 12) 

Identifying and addressing the implications of risk transfer (page 22) 

7 

The organisation should consider investment in a centralised 
Risk Management IT system. Such systems often offer significant 
advantages such as efficiencies, and enhanced management 
capabilities, reporting and information sharing.  

 

Ref Procedures ensure risk management arrangements are effective and reflect good practice (page 24). 

8 

The organisation should consider encouraging joint working 
enterprises across the specialist risk management functions in 
order to maximise value and outputs and reduce any perceived 
‘silo’ orientation.  

 

Ref Provisions to ensure appropriate risk management knowledge, experience and skills (page 20). 

9 

To ensure continuing oversight of risk after control implementation, the 
organisation should consider creating an Issues Log for risks that are 
removed from risk registers due to their changing values or control status. 
This action ensures that oversight is not lost. 

Ref Effective anticipation and management of risks (page 26). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

83



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 10 of 41 

Recommendations (Longer Term) 

The following recommendations are long term. 

 

No. Recommendation 

10 

The organisation should consider formally expanding the focus of risk 
management to include opportunity risks as well as threats. Currently there 
is a general feeling that risk management is exclusively focused on 
downside (negative) risk. 

Ref Supporting innovation (page 13). 

11 

The organisation should consider further developing Key Risk 
Indicators (KRI’s) and Key Control Indicators (KCI’s) where 
information sources allow, enhancing performance measurement 
and assurance capability for risks and controls over time. 

 

Ref Effective review and assurance (page 28). 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

84



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 11 of 41 

Risk Management Health Check 
Findings 
 

Contained below is a blend of a summary of key findings from the 18 one-hour 
interviews conducted with key internal stakeholders and results of the Risk 
Management Survey. 

All figures presented within the supporting tables are subject to rounding. 

 

 
Leadership and Management 

1. Do senior management support and promote risk management? 

This includes: 

a. Taking key risk judgements and providing clear direction. 

b. Setting the criteria and arrangements for the organisation’s appetite 
and tolerance for taking risk. 

c. Supporting innovation. 

d. Ensuring clear accountability for managing risk. 

e. Driving implementation of improvements in risk management. 

f. Effective communication about risks and issues. 

 

Risk Management Survey Result 

 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that the Senior Management support 

and promote proactive risk management? 

 16% 9% 56% 19% 

Table 1 

Please see table 9 on page 32 for full ‘Leadership and Management’ risk 
management survey results. 

 

 

 

85



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 12 of 41 

Commentary 

a. Taking key risk judgements and providing clear direction. 

Risk management is considered to be well established within the culture of the 
higher levels of the organisation’s management structure. Although not consistent 
across all services areas, for the majority, the practice is generally aligned to key 
organisational objectives, business planning processes and service delivery. 

Through various committees and forums, such as the Corporate Governance 
Committee, the Chief Officer Group etc. risk management is formally and routinely 
considered, ensuring that key risks to the organisation are regularly reviewed and 
where necessary, controls assurance sought. 

The organisation’s Corporate Risk Register is regarded to be a reliable centre point 
to aid focus and scrutiny and is updated as the risk landscape evolves. Formal 
mechanisms are in place to escalate risks from the service areas for consideration 
for inclusion at the strategic level.   

Departmental Management Teams formally consider risk management at regular 
frequencies, however, some doubt was expressed over the depth that these 
considerations may take on occasion as the team’s predisposition to risk or the 
perceived static nature of the department’s risk register may adversely affect 
localised approaches.  

There is generally less certainty expressed by some over the influence risk 
management has within the more operational levels of the organisation, with a 
small number of suggestions being made that the concept is not widely 
acknowledged or formally practiced in parts, remaining the exclusive domain of 
management. 

 

b. Setting the criteria and arrangements for the organisation’s appetite 
and tolerance for taking risk. 

One area which requires further consideration and development relates to the 
organisation defining its risk appetite and tolerance, and communicating it 
effectively throughout the organisation. 

Whilst not a universally held belief throughout the organisation, a significant number 
of personnel within the organisation consider it to be ‘cautious’ in nature, while a 
smaller number expressed a view that there was a general unwillingness to take 
risks, preferring risk avoidance strategies where possible. These viewpoints tend to 
contradict the organisation’s stated position of being ‘open’. 

Clearly more work is required in this area in order to develop a more consistent 
understanding of the concept and the organisation’s true position. 

Due to the interchangeable nature of the accepted vocabulary, it is worthwhile 
providing some definition to the terms risk appetite and risk tolerance.  

86



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 13 of 41 

‘Strengthening Enterprise Risk Management for Strategic Advantage’, COSO, 2009, 
provides the following definitions: 

Risk Appetite: 

“A broad-based description of the desired level of risk that an entity will take in 
pursuit of its mission.”  

Risk Tolerance: 

“Reflects the acceptable variation in outcomes related to specific performance 
measures linked to objectives the entity seeks to achieve.” 

The definitions provided may be considered deceptively simple, as in practice, 
attempting to define organisational risk appetite and tolerance can be difficult to 
achieve in any tangible sense while seeking to avoid ambiguity, contradiction, 
vagueness and a misrepresentation of reality. This is particularly true for public 
sector organisations in comparison to other, such as financial services 
organisations. 

Despite the difficulties, providing clearly articulated statements on risk appetite and 
tolerance can be a very powerful tool, and allow an organisation to better align and 
influence decision-making and risk management. It can influence how the 
organisation is perceived by key stakeholders such as service users, employees, 
and regulators, provide a clear foundation for a risk management framework, and 
influence organisational behaviours and increase capacity for risk-taking. 

A clearly articulated risk appetite statement should: 

• Acknowledge the organisation’s propensity and capacity for taking well-
managed risks. 

• Consider all key aspects of the organisation, inclusive of strategies, 
objectives, and business plans. 

• Consider stakeholder expectations. 

• Consider organisational risk management maturity and capability (skills, 
resources, and systems required to manage risk-taking effectively). 

• Consider and address a tolerance for loss that can be quantified. 

Such statements should be periodically reviewed, approved as the organisation’s 
authoritative risk appetite statements, and communicated effectively throughout the 
organisation. 

 

c. Supporting innovation. 

Fundamentally, effective risk management should support the organisation by 
minimising disruption, maximising efficiencies, innovation, opportunity exploitation 
and, ultimately, the achievement of objectives. 

87



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 14 of 41 

The practice should support organisations as they seek to evolve to meet the 
changing needs and expectations of their stakeholders and respond to the 
changing risk landscape. 

Effective risk-taking should support innovation and creativity in finding solutions to 
challenges and allow organisations to exploit opportunities. In this context, 
successful risk-taking should be acknowledged and support provided despite 
occasional failure if risks were managed well. 

Successful, innovative, and creative risk-taking does take place within the 
organisation, however, positive well-managed risk-taking is not yet seen as an 
accepted cultural dynamic if considered across the entirety of the organisation. 

Within some elements of the organisation, risk management is considered to be 
purely concerned with mitigating the adverse consequences of risk rather than an 
enabler to taking well-managed risks and exploiting opportunities. 

 

d. Ensuring clear accountability for managing risk. 

Clear responsibilities for assessing, reporting and managing identified risk are well 
established within the organisation’s management hierarchy.  

Risk information is actively reported through established communication lines to the 
relevant committee’s and forums.  

What is less certain is whether the more operational and front-line staffing groups 
understand the roles that they play in the risk management process, particularly 
within the context of risk identification and the implementation of appropriate 
controls to mitigate the effects of risk. 

 

e. Driving implementation of improvements in risk management. 

There is clear and proactive support for effective risk management within the 
management hierarchy of the organisation. This is demonstrated in a multitude of 
ways, including the investment of considerable time and resource into the practice, 
the inclusion of risk management as standing items on various committee agendas, 
including the Corporate Governance Committee, the Chief Officer Group, and 
Departmental Management Team meetings and the commitment to the cause which 
is so clearly demonstrated by a number of officers and members. 

Equally, the organisation clearly supports the need for effective risk management to 
be integrated within its core activities. Whether risk management has been fully and 
comprehensively integrated into all core activities such as business planning and 
service delivery across all components of the organisation remains doubtful, with a 
small number of participants suggesting that there is more work to be done. 

 

88



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 15 of 41 

f. Effective communication about risks and issues. 

The organisation maintains a number of committees and forums which are all 
reliant on the effective and efficient provision of reliable information on risk.  

It seems evident that the standards for communicating risks internally within the 
management hierarchy and to the relevant committees are effective. The risk 
information is provided on a regular basis, and receives scrutiny and challenge by 
entities as it moves up through the organisation. 

Where communication of risk information may be considered to be less effective 
would be within the realms of the operational and front-line elements of the 
organisation. The lack of an inclusive organisational risk management culture has 
potentially resulted in a lack of consistent engagement with front line staff and those 
not considered to be within the management hierarchy. As such, communication of 
risk information appropriate to the needs of these employee groups is considered to 
be an area worthy of further consideration. 

Equally, it seems apparent that the organisation does not consistently communicate 
lessons learned throughout the organisation. While the importance of 
communicating successes has been acknowledged through demonstration, it is 
also important to communicate failures and the lessons learned through such 
experiences to ensure opportunities for organisational learning are maximised. 

 
Strategy and Policy 

2. Is there a clear strategy for risk management? 

This includes: 

a. Risk Management Strategy. 

 

Risk Management Survey Result 

 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that, the Council’s Risk Management 

Policy and Strategy is clearly defined, 

understood and communicated? 

4% 11% 26% 47% 12% 

Table 2 

Please see table 12 on page 33 for full ‘Strategy and Policy’ risk management 
survey results. 

 

89



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 16 of 41 

Commentary 

a. Risk Management Strategy. 

The organisation maintains a Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 
which is owned by Head of Internal Audit and Assurance Service, reviewed 
annually, and ratified by the Corporate Management Team annually. 

The objectives of the Council’s Risk Management Strategy are to: 

• Integrate risk management fully into the culture of the Council and into its 
corporate and service planning processes; 

• Improve the framework for identifying, assessing, controlling, reviewing and 
reporting and communicating risks across the Council; 

• Improve the communication of the Council’s approach to risk management; 

• Improve the coordination of risk management activity across the Council; 

• Ensure that the Corporate Management Team (CMT), Corporate 
Governance Committee and external stakeholders can obtain necessary 
assurance that the Council is mitigating the risks of not achieving key 
priorities and thus complying with corporate governance practice; 

• Manage risk in accordance with best practice and ensure compliance with 
statutory requirements; 

• Maintain clear roles, responsibility and reporting lines for risk management 
within the Council; 

• Measure and partake in regular comparison and benchmarking activity. 

The strategy does ensure common understanding of terminology used, and defines 
the purpose and benefits of risk management, as well as structures for monitoring, 
review and assurance of risk management. 

The strategy clearly supports innovation and well-managed risk-taking for improved 
delivery of objectives. 

The strategy does encourage the integration of risk management into established 
procedures and arrangements for departmental business, i.e. policy making, 
planning (e.g. business plans, project management, business resilience etc.). 

The strategy also includes arrangements for the effective communication of risk 
information to internal stakeholders, and where appropriate, external stakeholders. 

The strategy does directly address the issue of risk appetite and tolerance, 
recognising that only by taking risks can the organisation achieve its aims and 
deliver beneficial outcomes to its stakeholders. 

90



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 17 of 41 

Indeed, Annex 1 of the strategy goes some way to expressly define the 
organisation’s risk appetite as ‘open - prepared to consider all delivery options and 
select those with the highest probability of productive outcomes, even when there 
are elevated levels of associated risk’. 

Overall, the organisation’s Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy was 
considered to be an exemplar of best practice in its intention and crafting, carefully 
setting out the organisation’s position and approach and providing useful insight 
into terminology, structures and mechanisms. 

However, despite this, anecdotal evidence suggested that its stated intention of 
‘integrating risk management fully into the culture of the Council and into its 
corporate and service planning processes’ may still have some way to go as: 1) 
knowledge of the strategy was not uniformly acknowledged across all participants 
of the Risk Management Health Check process; 2) risk management is not 
consistently integrated into business planning processes across the entirety of the 
organisation; 3) uncertainty remained within some parties as to how the 
organisation’s approach to risk management fully translates into day-to-day 
activities and behaviours. 

These uncertainties suggest that opportunities remain for improvement within the 
Council’s implementation of its Risk Management Strategy and Policy. These 
opportunities may include the need to offer effective supervision and training to staff 
in areas such as successful implementation of the strategy at a local level, and the 
direct relationship and alignment of risk management with business planning. 

 
People 

3. Are people equipped and supported to manage risk well? 

This includes: 

a. The culture of the organisation. 

b. Arrangements for allocation of responsibility. 

c. Arrangements to ensure staff awareness. 

d. Provisions to ensure appropriate risk management knowledge, 
experience and skills. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

91



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 18 of 41 

Risk Management Survey Result 

 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that, the Council equips and supports 

its staff to manage risk well? 

2% 25% 30% 44%  

Table 3 

Please see table 15 on page 34 for full ‘Strategy and Policy’ risk management 
survey results. 

 

Commentary 

a. The culture of the organisation. 

It may be correct to suggest that a positive risk management culture does exist 
within large components of the organisation, particularly at the higher end of the 
management hierarchy. However, it is not necessarily an all-encompassing cultural 
dynamic that is evident throughout the organisation, and this inconsistency is 
perhaps most evident at the operational level and front line.   

An effective risk culture can assist organisations in influencing behaviours of 
internal stakeholders at a personal level (influencing personal predispositions to 
risk) and at a personal ethical level (influencing moral values and decisions 
making). It is worthwhile pointing out that, despite the media’s tendency to 
apportion blame to individuals, the root cause of many of the organisational 
scandals and failures of recent times has been determined to be poor 
organisational culture and its influence on behaviours. 

Managers and staff have clear reporting lines and mechanisms to raise risk issues, 
however, it is felt that there is some inconsistency in direct engagement with all 
staffing levels. This may be influenced by the level of importance placed on risk 
management by the respective individual departmental management hierarchies. 

Some anxiety associated with failures was reported to be potentially evident within 
a small number of areas of the organisation. As a cultural dynamic, a consequence 
of an anxiety associated with failure may result in a decreased propensity to take 
risk for reward, inadvertently adversely affecting an organisation’s risk appetite in 
real terms. 

Anxiety associated with failure can also adversely affect risk reporting as people 
may not wish to report ‘bad news’ and potentially be held personally accountable. 

An effective risk culture encourages and empowers managers and staff to take 
well-managed risks, provides confidence that concerns and ideas will be heard and 
acted on, and provides acknowledgement and reward for well-managed risk-taking. 

92



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 19 of 41 

In order for the organisation to successfully adopt a more innovative and creative 
approach, it must be prepared to fail from time to time. Risk-takers should be 
supported where it can be demonstrated that, irrespective of the result, the risks 
were well-managed. An absence of anxiety will also allow for the more effective 
challenge of existing practices and the identification of new, innovative ways of 
doing things. 

Ultimately, an effective risk culture will result in risk management being seen as a 
natural part of the established way an organisation going about its business, 
inclusive of planning and achieving objectives. 

 

b. Arrangements for allocation of responsibility. 

In general terms, responsibility for managing risks has been clearly and effectively 
delegated throughout the organisation. There are some minor exceptions where 
personnel report some confusion over precise roles and responsibilities or lack of 
awareness of the role of risk management in more general terms. 

Although risk management is a widely known concept among large parts of the 
organisation, it was reported that it was not successfully embedded into key 
elements of the organisational dynamic such as recruitment strategies, 
performance and development procedures, or reflected in personal and 
professional objectives and annual appraisals. 

 

c. Arrangements to ensure staff awareness. 

Through departmental meetings, employees are generally made aware of the 
importance of effective risk management and the key objectives, priorities and main 
risks facing the relevant department and organisation. Again, it was reported that 
there may be some inconsistency across the different service areas, dependant on 
the value attached to risk management by the relevant management teams. 

The organisation’s Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy is freely 
available through the organisation’s intranet. There is a small but prevailing issue of 
uncertainty as to the level of familiarisation with the organisation’s approach to risk 
management across its entirety, with particular doubts expressed over the lower 
levels of the management hierarchy and the general employee population.  

In addition, some concern was expressed as to the levels of direct supervision and 
guidance which is offered in terms of translation and application of the strategy and 
policy in real terms within business planning and day-to-day activities.  

There seems to be greater confidence in the application of risk management 
principles and practices within the domain of project management, although this 
confidence is not absolute. 

93



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 20 of 41 

d. Provisions to ensure appropriate risk management knowledge, 
experience and skills. 

Access to appropriate risk management advice, guidance and expertise is provided 
via the organisation’s Internal Audit Service. Whilst there is no dedicated Risk 
Manager, many of the typical functions undertaken by such a role have been 
allocated effectively within the Internal Audit Service. 

There are various other personnel throughout the organisation who maintain 
expertise in risk management’s more specialised subject areas such as health and 
safety, insurance and resilience. 

In general terms, the level of risk management knowledge, experience and 
expertise varies across the organisation. For those maintaining significant levels of 
knowledge and experience, this has often been acquired in post or with previous 
employers. 

Although some action is now being undertaken to address identified risk 
management knowledge gaps and inconsistencies through the provision of targeted 
risk management training, it is felt that more needs to be done to develop a 
consistent understanding and approach to risk management across the 
organisation, throughout the management hierarchy and wider employee 
population. 

Training programmes ranging from employee induction through to management 
development are often the most appropriate vehicles for delivering risk 
management awareness improvement programmes and increased risk 
management capabilities. 

The organisation is currently developing its training provision to include eLearning 
capabilities, however, eLearning is generally considered to be an effective 
complimentary provision within effective learning strategies rather than an 
alternative to more traditional and proven methods. 

 
Partnerships, Shared Risks and Resources 

4. Are there effective arrangements for managing risks with partners? 

This includes: 

a. Identifying, assessing and managing risk in partnerships. 

b. Monitoring and reviewing performance. 

c. Provision and testing of contingency arrangements. 

d. Identifying and addressing the implications of risk transfer. 

 

 

94



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 21 of 41 

Risk Management Survey Result 

 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that, there are effective arrangements 

in place for managing risks with partners? 

4% 20% 45% 29% 4% 

Table 4 

Please see table 18 on page 35 for full ‘Strategy and Policy’ risk management 
survey results. 

 

Commentary 

A limited number of opinions were offered on the risk management standards that 
are applied to partnerships. Of those opinions that were expressed, some doubt 
was evident over the consistency of approach across all partnerships in which the 
organisation is engaged. 

Therefore, mindful of the law of small numbers and the extreme results that can be 
seen in such circumstances, it is perhaps more beneficial if the key risk 
management attributes of effective partnership risk management are put forward 
within this component of the report. 

It’s important to note that the level of risk management application should be 
proportionate to the nature, value and size of the partnership. 

 

a. Identifying, assessing and managing risk in partnerships. 

As a general rule, there should be appropriate formal mechanisms for identifying, 
assessing and managing risk within partnerships. This should include: 

• Agreed risk management and assessment methodologies are identified, 
agreed and implemented to ensure compatibility to promote efficiency and 
effectiveness of the approach. 

• Shared partnership risk registers should be developed to ensure that a 
common understanding of risks and risk management is maintained 
amongst all partner organisations. 

• Clarity of risk ownership between partners (including cross-cutting risks), 
roles and responsibilities, authorities, and reporting requirements should be 
established, along with mechanisms for the dynamic allocation of new risk 
which presents itself during the life of the partnership. 

95



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 22 of 41 

• Performance incentives should be considered, where appropriate, to 
enhance partner motivations to manage risks effectively. 

• The organisation maintains an ownership approach to partnership risk even 
where the risk has been transferred to partners. 

 

b. Monitoring and reviewing performance. 

Effective lines of communication, including reporting protocols and rights of access, 
should be developed to ensure that reliable risk information (including key risks, 
performance etc.) is regularly and effectively reported throughout the partnership. 

Joint risk review arrangements should be specified, which include dispute resolution 
protocols. 

 

c. Provision and testing of contingency arrangements. 

Contingency arrangements should be put in place to safeguard the organisation in 
the eventuality of partner or service delivery failure. 

These contingency arrangements should be tested at regular frequencies 
throughout the life of the partnership in order to ensure their effectiveness if 
required. 

 

d. Identifying and addressing the implications of risk transfer. 

The organisation should consider the extent to which risks can be transferred, 
retaining the position that not all risks (e.g. reputation risk, non-delegable duties 
etc.) can be successfully transferred from one party to another, resulting in a 
residual level of risk being retained by the organisation. 

Where risks are transferred from one party to another, clear accountabilities for the 
management of those risks should be defined. 

The persons or entities best positioned to assume responsibility for managing 
partnership risk should take ownership. This may well be assigned on a risk-by-risk 
basis after formal consideration at a joint partnership risk committee. 

Through effective risk management performance monitoring processes, an 
organisational commitment to early intervention should be maintained in the event 
of difficulty being experienced by a partner. 

 

 

96



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 23 of 41 

Processes 

5. Does the organisation have effective risk management processes to 
support the business? 

This includes: 

a. Risk management is fully embedded in the organisation’s business 
processes. 

b. Processes support innovation and the identification and seizing of 
opportunities. 

c. Procedures ensure risk management arrangements are effective and 
reflect good practice. 

d. Processes ensure appropriate resilience. 

 

Risk Management Survey Result 

 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that, risk management is fully 

embedded into the Council’s business? 

 7% 12% 72% 9% 

Table 5 

Please see table 21 on page 36 for full ‘Strategy and Policy’ risk management 
survey results. 

 

Commentary 

a. Risk management is fully embedded in the organisation’s business 
processes. 

There are well documented and established procedures in place to enable the 
organisation to implement the accepted principles of risk management, including 
risk identification, assessment and control. Furthermore, significant and established 
reporting protocols are in place to facilitate the effective communication of risk 
information throughout the organisation. 

Although, it was generally reported that risk management has been largely 
integrated into normative business practices, some inconsistency still remained 
within areas such as business planning, project and programme management, and 
operational management.  

97



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 24 of 41 

Reasons put forward as to the perceived lack of consistency included: 1) risk 
management can sometimes be applied as an after-thought; and 2) it is viewed 
somewhat as a compliance process rather than an active real-time management 
tool, and so is applied superficially rather than in any meaningful way. 

In addition, doubt remained as to whether the relationship between business 
planning and risk management has been fully understood and acknowledged 
throughout the organisation, potentially resulting in something of a disconnect 
between the two related processes. 

 

b. Processes support innovation and the identification and seizing of 
opportunities. 

Fundamentally, risk management supports innovation and creativity by encouraging 
organisation’s to challenge preconceptions about how things are done, and to 
promote change management where it is needed to improve efficiencies, service 
delivery, outcomes, and ultimately achieve objectives. 

The focus of risk management should be on maximising opportunities (positive risk) 
as well as management risks that could adversely affect an organisation (negative 
risks). 

If fully embedded and mature, enhanced risk management capabilities promote an 
increased appetite for risk-taking due to improved competencies, capabilities, and 
confidence. Investment in risk management allows organisations to take more risk 
with confidence over time. 

While it is generally considered that the organisation’s approach to risk is well 
established, its fundamental focus is predominantly towards negative risk with little 
consideration currently made of opportunities. 

 

c. Procedures ensure risk management arrangements are effective and 
reflect good practice. 

The organisation regularly seeks advice from internal and external sources on good 
practice in the development, implementation and maintenance of robust risk 
management processes and systems, and uses these sources to improve risk 
management processes and procedures where necessary. 

98



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 25 of 41 

One area which presents significant scope for improvement relates to the IT 
software systems which are utilised to support risk management activities within the 
organisation. Currently, each service area operates its own unique approach to 
managing risk registers and associated information. Approaches typically include 
the utilisation of Microsoft Excel to capture and management risk information. One 
exception being a service area which utilises a dedicated software package called 
Pentana. The endearing popularity of Microsoft Excel in the business environment 
demonstrates the value that it can offer, however, it cannot, at least in its current 
form, replicate the distinct advantages in the real-time management of risk 
information that are provided by dedicated software packages such as Pentana. 

It was also noted that, despite the interconnected nature of the different risk 
specialisms evident within the organisation, the individual expertise and outputs of 
these specialisms is not routinely brought together to maximise their value and 
address the interconnected nature of risk. 

 

d. Processes ensure appropriate resilience. 

It was reported that the organisation maintains well-developed business resilience 
plans, and that these plans are reviewed at regular intervals to ensure that they 
remain operationally relevant and effective. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

99



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 26 of 41 

Risk Handling and Assurance 

6. Are risks handled well and does the organisation have assurance that 
risk management is delivering successful outcomes and supporting 
creative risk-taking? 

This includes: 

a. Effective anticipation and management of risks. 

b. Effective decision-making. 

c. Effective handling of cross-cutting issues. 

d. Effective review and assurance. 

 

Risk Management Survey Result 

 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that, risks are handled well? 
2% 11% 16% 55% 16% 

Table 6 

Please see table 24 on page 37 for full ‘Strategy and Policy’ risk management 
survey results. 

 

Commentary 

a. Effective anticipation and management of risks. 

Risk registers can never fully capture or illustrate the multi-dimensional risk 
landscape to which organisations are exposed. However, despite this, analysis of 
the organisation’s Corporate Risk Register provides an invaluable insight into the 
effectiveness of the organisation’s approach to risk management and its ability to 
successfully anticipate risk events and manage them effectively. 

The Corporate Risk Register clearly demonstrates a broad and comprehensive 
selection of risks, in type, nature and value, ranging in subject from the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy, through health and social care integration, ICT information 
security, commissioning and procurement, safeguarding, Brexit, people, business 
continuity, health and safety, highways networks winter maintenance, and 
environment. 

Evidence suggests that the Corporate Risk Register is an active management tool 
and is reviewed and updated at regular frequencies. Risk is scrutinised prior to 
inclusion, deep dives into specific risks and controls undertaken when required, and 
risks removed once they have been realised or the uncertainty removed. 

100



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 27 of 41 

What is important in circumstances when risk is removed from a risk register is the 
action that precedes this event. It is recognised that risks evolve over time and 
control measures degrade or become obsolete. In these circumstances, it is 
essential that organisations retain some oversight of controlled risks that no longer 
feature on risk registers. 

Continuing oversight is also important in times of continuing austerity as vital 
resource may be removed or repositioned, thus inadvertently creating increased 
risk exposure but with much reduced ability to manage and respond. 

To address issues such as these, organisations will often create Issues Logs for 
risks that are removed from risk registers due to their changing values or control 
status. This action ensures that oversight is not lost. 

The utility of Issues Logs may be of benefit to the organisation, specifically in 
conjunction with the use of Departmental Risk Registers. 

  

b. Effective decision-making. 

The organisation’s current approach to risk management creates opportunity for a 
risk-based approach to decision-making. It was reported that there is still some 
inconsistency amongst the different components of the organisation in the 
application of risk management as an active management and decision support 
tool, particularly in the realms of business planning, however, in general terms, it is 
felt that risk management methodologies are employed within the majority decision-
making processes. 

As the organisation is a members-led organisation, this is reflected within the 
organisational structure and lines of reporting. Stakeholder’s, such as elected 
members, are afforded oversight of the Corporate Risk Register and opportunity to 
hold Chief Officers to account by selecting specific risks for further scrutiny and 
more detailed analysis. 

 

c. Effective handling of cross-cutting issues. 

There are certain established forums within the organisation whereby cross-cutting 
risk information is shared and discussed. However, the absence of a centralised 
Risk Management IT system tends to render the management of cross-cutting 
risks, including the exchange of information, less consistent and robust than it could 
otherwise be. 

Some doubt was expressed over the consistency of coordination, understanding 
and management of risks with key delivery partners. 

101



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 28 of 41 

Whilst certain areas, such as health and social care integration, were considered to 
be exhibiting characteristics of best practice in the sharing of information, ownership 
of risk, and the maintenance of a project risk register, it was suggested that this 
standard was not wholly representative of a consistent approach to partnerships. 

 

d. Effective review and assurance. 

Systems and structures are in place to provide assurance of the quality and 
effectiveness of risk management. 

Internal risk reporting requirements are placed upon service areas, with nominated 
Risk Champions tasked with leading on compliance with these requirements. Risk 
Champions are of appropriate seniority within their specific areas to positively 
influence risk management processes and approaches and ensure targets are 
generally met. 

External specialist sources of expertise are engaged at regular frequencies to 
provide third-party oversight of the implementation and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s Risk Management Strategy and Policy. 

The Internal Audit Service provides advice and guidance to internal stakeholders on 
issues of risk management, and generally undertake a leading role in 
implementation within the organisation. They also provide assurance to the 
organisation through the provision of detailed reports to key internal stakeholders. 

The use of Key Risk Indicators (KRI’s) and Key Control Indicators (KCI’s) are 
regarded as effective elements of a robust assurance regime as they can provide 
early warning of changes in the risk and control landscape. Equally, they can 
provide assurance that risk is being managed effectively. 

The use of KRI’s and KCI’s is recommended when the maturity of an organisation’s 
approach to risk management has reached an appropriate level of maturity due to 
the perceived complex nature. Their use has yet to be formally established within 
the organisation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

102



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 29 of 41 

Outcomes and Delivery 

7. Does risk management contribute to achieving successful outcomes? 

This includes: 

a. Delivery of successful outcomes. 

b. Maintenance of high reputation for the organisation. 

Risk Management Survey Result 

 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that, risk management is contributing 

to the effective delivery of outcomes? 

2% 7% 23% 61% 7% 

Table 7 

Please see table 27 on page 38 for full ‘Strategy and Policy’ risk management 
survey results. 

Commentary 

a. Delivery of successful outcomes. 

In general terms, it was reported that there was confidence that the organisation’s 
approach to risk management was assisting in the delivery of successful outcomes. 

These successful outcomes include the delivery of organisational objectives, and 
the continued prudent financial management of the organisation in continuing times 
of austerity and uncertainty. 

Despite this, it was suggested that risk management successes and failures are not 
publicised within the organisation at regular frequencies. Celebrating successes are 
invaluable in winning over hearts and minds to an approach which can suffer from a 
misrepresentation as a compliance process or as an additional layer of 
bureaucracy. Equally, publicising failures can serve to remind internal stakeholders 
of the value which risk management can deliver. Of course, risk management 
provides no certainty that failures cannot occur, however, organisational learning 
from experience can be invaluable in ensuring that mistakes are not repeated. 

  

b. Maintenance of high reputation for the organisation. 

The continuing age of austerity within the public sector has created unprecedented 
pressures on Local Authorities to deliver services to an increasing population whilst 
central government funding is significantly reduced. 

103



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 30 of 41 

These pressures ultimately led the government to intervene at Northamptonshire 
County Council due to an inability to realise the required financial savings leading to 
projected budget overspends. 

By comparison, Leicestershire County Council is considered to be in a much more 
stable financial position, primarily due to prudent financial management strategies. 

It was reported that the Council attributes the appropriate value to maintaining its 
reputation, which manifests itself in real terms through its strategies and 
behaviours. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

104



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 31 of 41 

Risk Management Survey Results 
 

The following responses have been extracted from the online risk management 
survey which was run in conjunction with the on-site interview process.  

A total of 106 invitations to participate in the online survey were issued to various 
members of the management hierarchies throughout Adults and Communities, 
Chief Executive's Department, Children and Family Services, Corporate Resources 
Department, Environment and Transport, and Public Health. 

A total of 57 responses were received, equalling a 54% response rate. 

 

Survey Results 

Overview 

The table below provide an overview response from each theme presented within 
the online risk management survey. 
 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that the Senior Management support 

and promote proactive risk management? 

 16% 9% 56% 19% 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that, the Council’s Risk Management 

Policy and Strategy is clearly defined, 

understood and communicated? 

4% 11% 26% 47% 12% 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that, the Council equips and supports 

its staff to manage risk well? 

2% 25% 30% 44%  

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that, there are effective arrangements 

in place for managing risks with partners? 

4% 20% 45% 29% 4% 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that, risk management is fully 

embedded into the Council’s business? 

 7% 12% 72% 9% 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that, risks are handled well? 
2% 11% 16% 55% 16% 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or 

disagree that, risk management is contributing 

to the effective delivery of outcomes? 

2% 7% 23% 61% 7% 

Table 8 

105



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 32 of 41 

Theme 1  

Leadership and Management 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statements about Senior 
Management (Departmental management, Chief Officers and, if appropriate, 
Members)? 
 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

Matters are actively reported through to senior 

leadership when required. 
 2% 5% 61% 32% 

Senior leadership has a good understanding of 

key risks and implications (to service objectives 

/ priorities) facing the Council. 

 5% 2% 42% 51% 

Senior leadership take key risk judgements and 

provide clear direction. 
2% 5% 11% 54% 28% 

Senior leadership ensure clear accountability 

for managing risk. 
 16% 5% 61% 18% 

The criteria for escalating risk is clearly defined 

and communicated. 
2% 11% 12% 46% 30% 

Senior leadership set out clearly the Council’s 

appetite/tolerance for taking risk. 
 14% 21% 42% 23% 

Senior leadership encourage well managed risk 

taking where it supports innovation and 

opportunities. 

4% 18% 21% 47% 11% 

Table 9 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or disagree 

that the Senior Management support and 

promote proactive risk management? 

 16% 9% 56% 19% 

Table 10 

Respondent’s Comments 

“Management of risk is a well-defined process. The issue is the appetite for risk taking is very constrained and 

ownership/accountability not devolved, despite new initiatives in trading services and property management. 

There is still a fear of blame that dominates innovation.” 

“Processes are in place to manage risk.” 

“With high attrition rates it is sometimes difficult to continually embed consistency in our approach and should 

become part of the induction process.” 

“Use of Pentana provides clear guidance.” 

Table 11 

 

106



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 33 of 41 

Theme 2  

Risk Management Strategy and Policy 
To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statements about the 
Council’s Risk Management Policy and Strategy? 
 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

It clearly defines roles and responsibilities.   28% 54% 18% 
It is visibly endorsed by Senior Leadership. 2% 11% 9% 51% 28% 
It remains appropriate and current.  5% 23% 54% 18% 
It specifies the way in which risk is managed 

(i.e. business planning, corporate and 

operational process. 

 4% 30% 49% 18% 

It is subject to regular review.  4% 36% 39% 21% 
It is developed in consultation with relevant 

internal stakeholders. 
 5% 45% 41% 9% 

It is clearly communicated to all. 7% 18% 23% 46% 5% 
Table 12 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or disagree 

that, the Council’s Risk Management Policy and 

Strategy is clearly defined, understood and 

communicated? 

4% 11% 26% 47% 12% 

Table 13 

Respondent’s Comments 

“I don't think it's communicated in a very direct way i.e. you can read the policy but it's not translated into a form 

that people can relate to in their own areas.” 

“Awareness at middle management level is good but could be improved.” 

“Not aware that it exists or that any work is undertaken in this area.” 

“I don't recall any conversation or information on risk management. All too often it feels like we have knee jerk 

responses to particular issues which are often escalated before a thorough understanding…” 

“I'm not sure I knew there was a policy and strategy.” 

Table 14 

 

 

 

 

 

107



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 34 of 41 

Theme 3  

People and Culture 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statements about people 
and culture? 
 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

Everyone is encouraged to raise risk issues. 2% 7% 16% 54% 21% 
Appropriate responsibility for managing risks is 

clearly delegated. 
2% 14% 18% 51% 16% 

Risk management is seen by staff as a positive 

tool which assists the Council in achieving its 

objectives/priorities. 

4% 23% 30% 30% 14% 

Officers are provided with guidance and 

training. 
2% 30% 21% 39% 7% 

Access is provided to advice and expertise from 

relevant Risk Champions and other specialist 

areas of risk. 

5% 21% 35% 33% 5% 

New staff are provided with training on risk 

management. 
7% 37% 32% 16% 9% 

Table 15 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or disagree 

that, the Council equips and supports its staff to 

manage risk well? 

2% 25% 30% 44%  

Table 16 

Respondent’s Comments 

“Often risks that are raised are not thought through, very unlikely, not relevant and naïve.” 

“Haven't heard or seen anything of this nature.” 

“There could be more done with new starters to explain and train in risk management for the council.” 

“An update may be helpful at the senior managers conference?” 

“I think the approach is better in some areas of the Council than in others.” 

“Training is not consistent.” 

Table 17 

 

 

 

 

108



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 35 of 41 

Theme 4 

Partnerships, Shared Risks and Resource 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statements about 
managing risks in partnerships? 
 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

There are appropriate mechanisms in place for 

identifying, assessing and managing risk in 

partnerships. 

2% 11% 41% 38% 9% 

There is clear responsibility and accountability 

for risks where delivery is through partners. 
4% 14% 50% 27% 5% 

There is reliable and regular risk information 

and reporting of key risks shared amongst 

partners. 

4% 16% 54% 21% 5% 

The extent to which risks can be transferred is 

considered and acted upon. 
2% 25% 48% 21% 4% 

Table 18 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or disagree 

that, there are effective arrangements in place 

for managing risks with partners? 

4% 20% 45% 29% 4% 

Table 19 

Respondent’s Comments 

“Overall my experience with partners is positive and risks are shared and there are solid working relationships 

that have been built up over time. My responses reflect that. However, I have also seen instances where this is 

not always the case leaving one or more partners exposed to higher risk and other partners take a backwards 

step. Being more transparent at the start of projects about the levels of risk would either get more commitment 

from all partners, or, if the commitment was vague, then the project needs to be shelved early.” 

“Clear governance mechanisms for key projects/ procurements.” 

“It is not clear to me how partnership risk is managed.” 

Table 20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

109



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 36 of 41 

Theme 5 

Processes 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statements about 
processes? 
 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

Departmental / Service Risk Registers are used 

to score risks using the risk scoring criteria. 
  7% 49% 44% 

High ranking risks are escalated to the next 

level of management. 
 2% 9% 47% 42% 

Departmental/ Service Risk Registers are 

regularly reviewed and updated to ensure that 

they remain current and up to date. 

 4% 11% 47% 39% 

The Departmental Risk Register is regularly 

reported to the Departmental Management 

Team for discussion and approval. 

 4% 12% 37% 47% 

Risk management is embedded in key 

processes e.g. Policy, Project and 

Programmes, Service planning. 

2% 5% 7% 61% 25% 

Controls in place in relation to each risk are 

identified and regularly reviewed to ensure that 

they continue to be effective. 

 7% 14% 51% 28% 

Contingency plans and business continuity 

plans etc. are regularly reviewed 

and tested as appropriate to ensure that they 

remain appropriate 

2% 9% 25% 47% 18% 

Horizon scanning is used to spot emerging 

threats and opportunities. 
4% 5% 39% 40% 12% 

There is early and effective communication of 

risks and issues with internal and external 

stakeholders. 

2% 14% 25% 48% 11% 

Table 21 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or disagree 

that, risk management is fully embedded into the 

Council’s business? 

 7% 12% 72% 9% 

Table 22 

Respondent’s Comments 

“Sometimes there are lapses in the review timetable due to competing priorities.” 

“Identification of risks tends to be undertaken in DMT with little involvement of service managers.” 

“Good departmental governance processes to manage and regularly review risks.” 
Table 23 

110



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 37 of 41 

Theme 6 

Risk Handling and Assurance 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statements about risk 
handling and assurance? 
 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

Few issues result in reputational damage.  2% 18% 58% 23% 
Risks are managed effectively. 2% 7% 16% 56% 19% 
Independent assurance of quality and 

effectiveness of risk management - Internal 

(e.g. Internal Audit Service and Corporate 

Governance Committee) and external - is used 

effectively. 

2% 11% 27% 42% 18% 

Table 24 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or disagree 

that, risks are handled well? 
2% 11% 16% 55% 16% 

Table 25 

Respondent’s Comments 

“I think there is good policy, but due to lack of training consistency across the organisations and within 

departments is patchy.” 

“The process is too focused on completing paperwork and discourages innovative thinking.” 

Table 26 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

111



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 38 of 41 

Theme 7 

Outcomes and Delivery 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statements about 
outcomes and delivery? 
 

Statement 
Strongly 

Disagree 

Tend to 

Disagree 

Neither / 

Don’t 

know 

Tend to 

Agree 

Strongly 

Agree 

The way the Council manages risk ensures that 

programmes and projects are delivered as 

intended. 

2% 13% 13% 65% 7% 

The way the Council manages risk promotes a 

positive view of the Council, e.g. with the public, 

stakeholders and professional bodies. 

2% 9% 27% 50% 13% 

The way the Council manages risk contributes 

to improvements in services and achievement 

of service objectives and priorities. 

4% 13% 21% 54% 9% 

Table 27 

Overall, to what extent do you agree or disagree 

that, risk management is contributing to the 

effective delivery of outcomes? 

2% 7% 23% 61% 7% 

Table 28 

Respondent’s Comments 

“Risk management overtakes innovation and service delivery.” 

“I think there could be more proactive reflection on the extent to which operational risks could damage 

reputation.” 

Table 29 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

112



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 39 of 41 

Appendix 1: Health Check Interviewees  
 

A list of all Leicestershire County Council personnel who generously gave up their 
time to individually participate in the one-hour interview process is provided below: 

 

Adrian Allen, Head of Service Design and Delivery. 

Mr P Bedford, Member (Conservative). 

Mr B Boulter, Member (Liberal Democrats). 

Ann Carruthers, Director of Environment and Transport. 

Cheryl Davenport, Director of Health and Social Care Integration. 

Peter Davis, Assistant Director. 

Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit and Assurance. 

Simon Lawrence, Major Programme Manager. 

Jay Maher, Senior Auditor. 

Jodie March, Head of Service Planning. 

David Marshall-Rowan, Insurance Manager. 

Gordon McFarlane, Assistant Director. 

Jane Moore, Director of Children and Family Services. 

Mr S Sheahan, Member (Labour). 

Mr J Sinnot, Chief Executive. 

Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources. 

Lesley Woodward, Head of Business Support. 

Scott Young, Programme Management Office Manager. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

113



RMP Risk Control 

 
Leicestershire County Council | Risk Management Health Check Report | January 2019 Page 40 of 41 

Appendix 2: About RMP 
 

We are one of the foremost providers of insurance and risk management to the 
public sector, dedicated to providing insurance programmes and practical support to 
risk managers. Since 1993 we have led the market in reducing the total cost of risk; 
offering guidance, advice and free resources to local and central government, 
education and emergency services.  

We're for public sector risk managers. 

Risk management has always been an essential and valuable element of our 
service offering. Our services have been developed in direct response to the needs 
of our clients and include risk reviews to measure, assess and provide assurance 
on the adequacy of risk control measures, development of policy to provide a 
framework to guide and to drive continuous improvement along with training to help 
raise awareness, develop skills and embed change. 

We have a team of qualified and experienced Risk Control Consultants based 
throughout the country; all have extensive experience of working closely with 
organisations within the realms of health and safety and risk management. 

We maintain the depth of knowledge and practical experience necessary to develop 
and deliver effective risk management reviews, health-checks, guidance, and 
training programmes.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

114



 

 

For the public sector 

Risk Management Partners 
67 Lombard Street 
London EC3V 9LJ 
0 20 7204 1800 
www.rmpartners.co.uk 

Risk Management Partners Limited is authorised and  
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Registered office:  
The Walbrook Building, 25 Walbrook, London EC4N 8AW.  
Registered in England and Wales. Company number: 2989025. 

 

115



This page is intentionally left blank



  

  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 10 MAY 2019 
 

DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - 2018/19 
 

JOINT REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to: 
 

(a) Outline the background and approach taken to produce the County 
Council’s 2018/19 draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS); 

 
(b) Present the draft AGS for comment by the Committee prior to sign off 

by the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council. 
 
Background  
 
2. Regulations 6 (1) (a) and (b) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (the 

Regulations) require each English local authority to conduct a review, at least 
once a year, of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and approve 
an annual governance statement (AGS), prepared in accordance with proper 
practices in relation to internal control.  

 
3. ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework’ (the 

Framework) sets the standard for local authority governance in the UK. CIPFA 
and Solace published a revised edition of the Framework in spring 2016.  The 
preparation and publication of an AGS in accordance with the Framework 
fulfils the statutory requirement.  

 
4. The Regulations stipulate that the County Council publishes its approved 

statement of accounts and AGS by no later than 31 July 2019.  Therefore the 
draft AGS will be considered by this Committee in May and the finalised AGS 
will accompany the published accounts. 
 

5. The AGS is an important requirement which enhances public reporting of 
governance matters. In essence, it is an accountability statement from each 
local government body to stakeholders on how well it has delivered on 
governance over the course of the previous year. 
 

6. The AGS encompasses the governance systems applied in both the Authority 
and any significant group entities e.g. ESPO, East Midlands Shared Services 

  
117 Agenda Item 8



 
 

(EMSS), during the financial year being reported.  Commercial and 
collaborative arrangements that the Council is involved in are also reported to 
provide a fuller picture including assurances. 
 

7. To ensure that the AGS reasonably reflects the Committee’s knowledge and 
experience of the Council’s governance and control framework and that the 
conclusions and future challenges are appropriate, CIPFA guidance requires 
high level input from the Committee into the AGS.  The draft 2018/19 AGS is 
attached as an Appendix and any comments by the Committee will be duly 
considered and incorporated as appropriate.  
 

8. The draft Statement has already been considered by a senior management 
group comprising of : 
 

 Head of Law and Deputy Monitoring Officer (on behalf of the Director of 
Law and Governance) 

 Director of Corporate Resources 

 Assistant Director – Strategic Finance and Property  

 Head of Democratic Services  

 Assistant Chief Executive 

 Head of Internal Audit and Assurance Services   

 Members of the Corporate Management Team 
 
Approach 
 
9. The review of the effectiveness of the County Council’s system of internal 

control and overall corporate governance arrangements requires the sources 
of assurance, which the Council relies on, to be brought together and 
reviewed, from both a departmental and corporate view.   
 

10. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) allows the Head of 
Internal Audit and Assurance Service to assist management in drafting the 
AGS. The process followed as explained below, has not changed significantly 
from the previous year.  
 

11. The Framework requires local authorities to review their arrangements against 
their Local Code of Corporate Governance (essentially refers to the 
governance structure in place). The Council’s Local Code of Governance was 
revised and approved by the County Council on 27th September 2017.  The 
Local Code will be reviewed and updated during 2019. The principles 
contained in the Framework have been applied to the preparation of the AGS 
for the financial year 2018/19. 
 

12. To ensure the AGS represents an accurate picture of the governance 
arrangements for the whole Council, each Director was required to complete a 
‘self-assessment’ designed to provide details of the measures in place 
(systems, process, documents etc.) within their departments during the 
financial year 2018/19, to ensure conformance (or otherwise) to the 
Framework. The self-assessment also allowed for the recognition and 

118



 
 

recording of areas where developments are required.   
 

13. The departmental self-assessments required a corresponding score to be 
given reflecting the department’s positions regarding practice, standards and 
quality. This is a gauge of effectiveness.  The application of a more 
quantitative approach to assessing compliance against the principles 
contained in the Framework allows the Committee and public at large to 
obtain necessary assurance that the Council operates within an adequate 
internal control environment, thus complying with the seven core principles 
and best practice. 
 

14. A number of Corporate Assurance Statements were also completed to gain an 
overall organisational perspective of processes in place as described by the 
seven core principles. These statements also allowed for the recognition and 
recording of areas where developments were required. 
 

15. The completed statements were analysed along with various other sources of 
evidence to determine whether there are any significant governance issues 
that should be reported in the AGS.  Other sources included: 
 
a. Reports provided by internal and external audit and other assurance 

sources, and the implications of these reports for the overall governance of 
the Council; 

b. The Head of Internal Audit Service’s annual opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s control environment (its 
framework of governance, risk management and internal control 
arrangements); 

c. Evaluation of any negative media articles. 
 

Outcome of the 2018/19 review of the Governance Framework 
 
16. Guidance states that ‘Significant Governance Issues’ are those that: 

 
a. Seriously prejudice or prevent achievement of a principal objective of the 

authority; 
b. Have resulted in the need to seek additional funding to allow it to be 

resolved, or has resulted in the significant diversion of resources from 
another aspect of the business; 

c. Have led to a material impact on the accounts; 
d. The Corporate Governance Committee advises should be considered as a  

significant issue for reporting in the AGS; 
e. The Head of Internal Audit Service reports on as significant in the annual 

opinion on the internal control environment; 
f. Have attracted significant public interest or have seriously damaged the 

reputation of the organisation; 
g. Have resulted in formal action being undertaken by the Chief Financial 

Officer and/or the Monitoring Officer; 
h. The issue has resulted in a legal breach or prompts intervention from a 

regulator. 
 

119



 
 

17. During their review of the 2018/19 draft AGS the senior management group 
(paragraph 8 above) determined that there were no significant governance 
issues that require reporting.  
 

18. The self-assessment process has confirmed that there is strong evidence of 
good governance.  Nevertheless, further improvements to governance are 
planned in relation to the key challenges facing the Council in 2019/20 and 
throughout the timespan of the current MTFS.  The senior management group 
charged with responsibility for producing the 2018/19 AGS has determined 
that progress on the development areas identified against each Principle in 
Section 5 of the Appendix should be the responsibility of service managers. 
 
Note: Follow up on progressing the implementation of 2017-18 developments 
was undertaken in November 2018 and again in April 2019.  Any 2017-18 
developments that were not carried forward to 2018-19 or reported through 
the Corporate Risk Register process will continue to be monitored.  Similarly, 
the group determined that those areas listed in the Future Challenges - 
Section 8 - will be subject to scrutiny through existing reporting channels.   

 
19. The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2018-19 (the 

Code) states that the AGS should relate to the governance system as it 
applied to the financial year for the accounts that it accompanies.  However, 
significant events or developments relating to the governance system that 
occur between the Balance Sheet date and the date on which the Statement 
of Accounts is signed by the responsible financial officer should also be 
reported. Therefore, in the event of the above occurring, the AGS attached as 
an Appendix to this report would change.   
 

20. Approval and ownership of the AGS has been reflected at corporate level and 
the statement will be signed on behalf of the Council by the Chief Executive 
and Leader of the Council and published on the County Council’s website. 

 
Recommendations  
 
21.  The Committee is requested to: 
 

(a) Consider the draft AGS for 2018/19 attached as an Appendix to this 
report and indicate whether it is consistent with the Committee’s own 
perspective on internal control within the Authority; 
 

(b) Note that the AGS for 2018/19, which may be subject to such changes 
as are required by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting, 
has been prepared in accordance with best practice.  

 

Resource Implications 
 
None. 
 
 
 

120



 
 

Equal Opportunities Implications 
 
None. 
 
Background Papers 
 
CIPFA/SOLACE: Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 
(2016, 2012 and 2007)  
 
2018/19 - Departmental and Corporate self-assessments; 
 
Circulation Under the Local Issues Alert procedure 
 
None 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Lauren Haslam, Director of Law and Governance 
Tel : 0116 305 6240 
Email : lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources  
Tel: 0116 305 6199  
Email: chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mo Seedat, Head of Democratic Services 
Tel : 0116 305 6037 
Email mo.seedat@leics.gov.uk 
 
Tom Purnell, Assistant Chief Executive 
Tel : 0116 305 7019 
Email Tom.Purnell@leics.gov.uk 
 
Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit and Assurance Service 
Tel : 0116 305 7629 
Email : neil.jones@leics.gov.uk 
 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix – Draft Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 

121

mailto:lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk
mailto:chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:mo.seedat@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Tom.Purnell@leics.gov.uk
mailto:neil.jones@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



  APPENDIX 

1 
 

 

  

 

Draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2018/19 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

Leicestershire County Council (the Council) is responsible for ensuring that its business is 

conducted in accordance with prevailing legislation, regulation and government guidance and that 

proper standards of stewardship, conduct, probity and professional competence are set and 

adhered to by all those representing and working for and with the Council. This ensures that the 

services provided to the people of Leicestershire are properly administered and delivered 

economically, efficiently and effectively. In discharging this responsibility, the Council is responsible 

for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs. 

Regulations 6 (1)(a) and (b) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires each English 

local authority to conduct a review, at least once a year, of the effectiveness of its system of internal 

control and approve an annual governance statement (AGS), prepared in accordance with proper 

practices in relation to internal control. The preparation and publication of an AGS in accordance 

with the CIPFA/SOLACE ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework’ (2016) 

fulfils the statutory requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations. The AGS encompasses the 

governance system that applied in both the Authority and any significant group entities (e.g. ESPO, 

EMSS) during the financial year being reported. 

 

2. WHAT IS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE? 

Corporate Governance is defined as how organisations ensure that they are doing the right things, in 

the right way, for the right people in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner. The 

Council’s governance framework comprises the systems and processes, cultures and values by 

which the Council is directed and controlled. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its 

strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate 

services and value for money. 

The CIPFA/SOLACE ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (the 

Framework)’, sets the standard for local authority governance in the UK. A revised edition of the 

Framework was issued in spring 2016 and it must be applied to annual governance statements 

prepared for the financial year 2016/17 onwards. 

The concept underpinning the Framework is that it is helping local government in taking 

responsibility for developing and shaping an informed approach to governance, aimed at achieving 

the highest standards in a measured and proportionate way. The Framework is intended to assist 

authorities individually in reviewing and accounting for their own unique approach. The overall aim 

is to ensure that: 

• resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to priorities 

• there is sound and inclusive decision making 

• there is clear accountability for the use of those resources in order to achieve desired 

outcomes for service users and communities. 

123



  APPENDIX 

2 
 

 

3. LEICESTERSHIRE VISION AND OUTCOMES 
 
In December 2017, the Council agreed a new four year Strategic Plan and Outcomes Framework to 

2022. The Council developed the Plan by focussing on things that will make life better for people in 

Leicestershire and includes the following five priority outcome themes: 

Our Vision : 
Working together for the benefit of everyone 

Strong Economy Wellbeing 
and Opportunity 

 

Keeping People 
Safe 

 

Great Communities 
 

Affordable and 
Quality Homes 

Leicestershire’s 
economy is growing 
and resilient so that 

people and  
businesses can fulfil 

their potential. 

The people of 
Leicestershire have the 

opportunities and 
support they need to 
take control of their 

health and wellbeing. 

People in 
Leicestershire 
are safe and 

protected from 
harm 

Leicestershire 
communities are thriving 

and integrated places 
where people help 

and support each other 
and take pride in their local 

area. 

Leicestershire has a 
choice of quality 

homes that people 
can afford. 

 

The five priority outcome themes encompass a number of supporting outcomes which together form 

the overall Single Outcomes Framework which sets clear priorities for the Authority and enables more 

effective deployment and targeting of its resources. The Annual Delivery Report and Performance 

Compendium (published in December 2018) included an assessment of progress in relation to the 

Outcomes Framework.: https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-

works/leader-and-cabinet/council-performance 

 
The Annual Report outlined the delivery, progress with implementing agreed plans and strategies, 

and achievements over the previous 12 months. The Performance Compendium outlined information 

on current inequality in funding and the Council’s Fair Funding proposals and transformation 

requirements and national and local service pressures.  

 

4. WHAT THE AGS TELLS YOU 

The AGS provides a summarised account of how the Council’s management arrangements are set 

up to meet the principles of good governance and how we obtain assurance that these are both 

effective and appropriate. It is written to provide the reader with a clear, simple assessment of how 

the governance framework has operated over the past financial year and to identify any 

developments required. The main aim of the AGS is to provide the reader with confidence that the 

Council has an effective system of internal control that manages risks to a reasonable level. It 

cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only 

provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. 

The revised Framework requires local authorities to review arrangements against their Local Code 

of Corporate Governance. The Council’s Local Code of Governance was revised so that it is 

consistent with the seven core principles of the Framework and was approved by the Council at its 

meeting on 27 September 2017. 

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2017/9/27/local-code-of-corporate-

governance.pdf 

The Local Code will be reviewed and updated during 2019. The principles contained in the 

Framework have been applied to the preparation of the AGS for the financial year 2018/19. 

 

124

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/leader-and-cabinet/council-performance
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/leader-and-cabinet/council-performance
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2017/9/27/local-code-of-corporate-governance.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2017/9/27/local-code-of-corporate-governance.pdf


  APPENDIX 

3 
 

 

5. REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL 
CONTROL 

There is a statutory requirement in England, for a local authority to ensure that it has a sound 

system of internal control which: -  

(a) facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims and 

objectives; 

(b) ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is effective; and 

(c) includes effective arrangements for the management of risk. 

The authority must (each financial year): -  

(a) conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control, and, 

(b) prepare an annual governance statement; 

To ensure this AGS presents an accurate picture of governance arrangements for the whole 

Council, each Director was required to complete a ‘self-assessment’, which provided details of 

the measures in place within their department to ensure conformance (or otherwise) with the 

seven core principles of the new Framework. 

The self-assessments contained a set of conformance statements under each core principle, 

which required a corresponding score of 1, 2 or 3 to be recorded, based on the criteria below: 

 

Score Definition Description Evidence (all inclusive) 

1 Good 

 

Conformance against the majority of 

the areas of the benchmark is good, 

although there may be minor 

developments required but with a 

limited impact on the ability to achieve 

departmental and Council objectives. 

Strategic, reputational and/or financial 

risks are minor and performance is 

generally on track. 

Many elements of good practice 

to a high standard and high 

quality; 

Substantial assurance can be 

given that coverage of the sub-

principle is operating 

satisfactorily and extends to 

most/all services areas within 

the department 

2 Some 

development

/ areas for 

improvement 

 

There are some developments required 

against areas of the benchmark and the 

department may not deliver some of its 

own and the Council objectives unless 

these are addressed. The management of 

strategic, reputational and/or financial 

risks is inconsistent and performance is 

variable across the department. 

Some elements of good practice to 

a high standard and high quality; 

Moderate assurance can be 

given that coverage of the sub-

principle is working adequately in 

certain service areas, with 

omissions in others; 

Proposal/Plans are in place to 

address perceived shortfalls 

125



  APPENDIX 

4 
 

3 Key 

development 

and many 

areas for 

improvement 

 

Conformance against many/all areas of 

the benchmark is poor and therefore 

delivery of departmental and Council 

objectives is under threat. There are 

many strategic, reputational and/or 

financial risks and performance is off 

track. 

Few elements of good practice to a 

high standard and high quality; 

Coverage of this expectation is 

omitted amongst most areas; 

Proposal/Plans to address 

perceived shortfalls are in early 

stages of development 

 

The application of a more quantitative approach to assessing conformance against the Framework 

allows the Corporate Management Team, Members and the public at large to obtain necessary 

assurance that the Council operates within an adequate governance framework, thus complying with 

the seven core principles and best practice. In addition to the above, senior officers assessed 

arrangements for managing issues that apply across all departments. Whilst the self- assessments 

identified many sources of assurance and were transparent in reporting areas for action, the table 

below includes the key areas where development is deemed necessary.  

 
 Note: some actions are not included in the table below as they are already reported through the  
 Corporate Risk Register.          
  

Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Governance Framework against the 

CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government : Framework (2016) 

Core Principles of 

the Framework 

Overall 

Assessment 

Action to Develop Areas Further  

Principle A: 

Behaving with 

integrity, 

demonstrating 

strong commitment to 

ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of 

law 

 

 

The level of conformance is generally good, however the following 

key developments  are noted: 

• Further work continues with embedding the Council’s revised values 
and behaviours within the revised Annual Performance Reviews 
(From 2017/18 as continuing action) 

• To ensure external providers of services on behalf of the Council are 
required to act with integrity and in compliance with high ethical 
standards expected by the Council, a new Supplier Code of 
Conduct was agreed in September 2018 but further work is needed 
to review the operation and implementation of the new Code. (From 
2017/18 as continuing action). Development of Ethical training for 
Contract Managers (New) 

• Members will require training in the National Planning Policy 
Framework (this provides a framework within which locally-prepared 
plans for housing and other development can be produced). (New) 

• The Members Code of Conduct will be reviewed to have regard to 
the recommendations of the report of the Committee on Standards 
in Public Life – ‘Ethical Standards in Local Government’. (New) 

 

126



  APPENDIX 

5 
 

Principle B: 

Ensuring openness 

and comprehensive 

stakeholder 

engagement 

 

 

The level of conformance is reasonable however further development 

is required in: 

• A corporate Consultation Communications and Engagement 
Group oversees and co-ordinates the Council’s engagement 
activities. The Group will review the impact and outcome of 
consultations including, lessons learnt, and feedback via an 
Annual Report in early summer 2019. (From 2017/18 as 
continuing action) 

• A review of delegated powers of Chief Officers will be concluded 
and as part of that review there will be a reminder of the need to 
record officer decisions where appropriate. (From 2017/18 as 
continuing action) 

Principle C. 

Defining outcomes in 
terms of sustainable 
economic, social, and 
environmental benefit 

 

 

The level of conformance is good  

Principle D. 

Determining the 
interventions necessary 
to optimise the 
achievement of the 
intended outcomes 

 

 

Further development is noted in the following areas: 

• Work is continuing to embed an outcomes-based approach 
following adoption of the Council’s Strategic Plan 2018-22. The 
outcomes framework is being implemented in a phased manner 
with work well advanced on the Affordable and Quality Homes 
outcome and work is being undertaken on the other four. A 
programme of work to ensure the Council’s Policy Framework 
aligns to the Strategic Plan is also underway. (New) 

• The Council has introduced a Social Value Policy statement 
which was approved by Cabinet in October 2018 and will always 
work to ensure that Social Value related activity is aligned to the 
Council’s Strategic Plan and is compliant with all relevant legal 
requirements and good practice.  (New) 

Principle E. 

Developing the entity’s 
capacity including the 
capability of its 
leadership and the 
individuals within it 

 
 The level of conformance is good. 

 

Principle F. 

Managing risks and 
performance through 
robust internal control 
and strong public 
financial management 

 
 The level of conformance is generally good, although the following 

key development is noted: 

• Implementing recommendations from the Risk Management 
Health Check.  (New) 

Principle G. 

Implementing good 
practices in 
transparency reporting 
and audit to deliver 
effective accountability 

 

 

The level of conformance is good, however: 

• Further improvements to health performance reporting to the 
Health and Well Being Board linked to the new NHS Long Term 
Plan and the work of the local Better Together Partnership. 
(New) 

• Whilst the external peer review of the internal audit function 
returned top grading, some areas for development remain 
(From 2017/18 as continuing action). 

127



  APPENDIX 

6 
 

 

A senior management group (comprising the officers below) with responsibility for co-ordinating the 

2018/19 AGS has determined that progressing  areas identified for development against each 

principle above, should be the responsibility of designated service managers during 2019/20. 

 Head of Law and Deputy Monitoring Officer (on behalf of the Council’s Statutory Monitoring  

Officer)  

 Director of Corporate Resources (the Council’s Statutory Chief Financial Officer)  

 Head of Democratic Services 

 Assistant Chief Executive 

 Assistant Director – Strategic Finance & Property 

 Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service 
 

Note: Follow up on progressing the implementation of 2017-18 developments was undertaken in 

November 2018 and again in April 2019. Any 2017-18 developments that were not carried forward 

into 2018-19 or reported through the Corporate Risk Register process will continue to be monitored. 

 

 

6.  OTHER FORMS OF ASSURANCE 

The Framework provides examples of documents, systems and processes that an authority should 

have in place. Using this guidance, the Council can provide assurance that it has effective 

governance arrangements – see section 5. The Council has an approved Local Code of Corporate 

Governance and this provides examples of good governance in practice. 

The Control Environment of Leicestershire County Council 

 
The Council’s Constitution includes Finance and Contract Procedure Rules and Schemes of 

Delegation to Chief Officers. These translate into key operational internal controls such as: control of 

access to systems, offices and assets; segregation of duties; reconciliation of records and accounts; 

decisions and transactions authorised by nominated officers; and production of suitable financial and 

operational management information. These controls demonstrate governance structures in place 

throughout the Council.    

   Internal Audit Service  

 
Internal Audit Service 

Leicestershire County Council Internal Audit Service (LCCIAS) conducts its work in line with the 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the PSIAS). Following an independent assessment, in 

April 2018 LCCIAS was judged to be conforming to the PSIAS. The requirements of the PSIAS 

are contained in the Council’s Internal Audit Charter mandating the purpose, authority and 

responsibility of the internal audit activity.  

The Charter allows the Council’s Head of Internal Audit Service (HoIAS) to also be responsible for 

the administration and development of, and reporting on, the Council’s risk management 

framework. Whilst this does present a potential impairment to independence and objectivity, the 

HoIAS arranges for any assurance engagement to be overseen by someone outside of the 

internal audit activity. An independent risk management maturity health check was undertaken 

during the autumn of 2018. Outcomes were on the whole positive but with an action plan for some 

developments.  

 

128



  APPENDIX 

7 
 

 

In order to meet a PSIAS requirement to form an opinion on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Council’s control environment i.e. its framework of governance, risk 

management and control, the HoIAS constructs an annual risk based plan of audits. Given the 

overall robustness of risk management at the Council, the plan is primarily based on the contents 

of the corporate and departmental risk registers to ensure current and emerging risks are 

adequately covered. Parts of the plan relate to audits of the key financial systems that the External 

Auditor may choose to review to assist their risk assessment when planning the audit of the 

financial accounts. A contingency is retained for unforeseen risks, special projects and 

investigations. 

Internal Audit reports often contain recommendations for improvements. The number, type and 

importance of recommendations affects how the auditor reaches an opinion on the level of 

assurance that can be given that controls are both suitably designed and are being consistently 

applied, and that material risks will likely not arise. The combined sum of individual audit 

opinions and other assurances gained throughout the year (e.g. involvement in governance 

groups, attendance at Committees, evaluations of other assurance providers), facilitate the 

HoIAS to form the annual internal audit opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of 

the Council’s governance, risk management and control framework (i.e. the control 

environment). 

The HoIAS presents an annual report to the Corporate Governance Committee. The annual 

report incorporates the annual internal audit opinion; a summary of the work that supports the 

opinion; and a statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the results of the quality 

assurance and improvement programme. The HoIAS Sub-Opinions for 2018/19 are:  

 Governance – Nothing of significance, adverse nature or character has come to the HoIAS 

attention. As such reasonable assurance is given that the Council’s governance 

arrangements are robust. 

 Risk management - Management has shown good engagement around risk, has welcomed 

the independent review of risk management processes and agreed to implement audit 

recommendations, which further mitigate risk. Therefore reasonable assurance is given that 

risk is managed. 

 Financial and ICT Control – Reasonable assurance can be given that the Council’s core 

financial and I&T controls remain strong. 

Commercial and Collaborative Arrangements 

Commercial  

ESPO is constituted as a joint committee (of 6 local authorities) set up to provide a 

comprehensive professional purchasing service to public sector bodies. It is overseen by a 

Management Committee which has overall strategic responsibility for ESPO. There is also 

Finance and Audit Subcommittee in place. Internal audit is undertaken by the Council’s Internal 

Audit Service as part of the servicing agreement. Similar to the County Council, the HoIAS 

presents an annual report to the Management Committee. The annual report incorporates the 

annual internal audit opinion, which for 2018-19 was positive in each of the three sub 

components of the control environment namely ESPO’s governance, risk management and 

internal control frameworks. Although not required to do so an external audit is also undertaken.  

 

 

129



  APPENDIX 

8 
 

 

ESPO Trading Ltd ESPO’s power to trade is restricted to a limited number of public bodies and 

this market is shrinking. The establishment of a trading company allows ESPO (Trading) to 

trade with other organisations which are in the spirit of public bodies but not described as such 

in the 1970 Act – e.g. Housing Associations, Charities and Voluntary Organisations. The 

Trading is governed under the Companies Act 2006, its Articles of Association and Shareholder 

Agreement. 

The Corporate Asset Investment Fund Strategy guides the Council’s investments in assets 

not directly involved in the delivery of its services. The Strategy requires reporting to various 

member bodies. Reporting on the financial performance is included in the budget monitoring 

reports, on a quarterly basis. 

The Council also has a trading arm- Leicestershire Traded Services (LTS), which sits within 

the Corporate Resources Department. Its activities are overseen by an Officer Board and the 

current Medium Term Financial Strategy assumes an income of £2.7 million from traded 

services. The quarterly financial and performance reports includes the performance of the LTS 

as part of the Corporate Resources Department and these reports are considered by various 

member bodies.  

Collaborative 

East Midlands Shared Service (EMSS) EMSS is constituted under Joint Committee arrangements 

to process payroll/HR and accounts payable and accounts receivable transactions for Leicestershire 

County Council and Nottingham City Council. The internal audit of EMSS is undertaken by 

Nottingham City Council. 

On the basis of audit work undertaken during the 2018-19 financial year, covering financial systems, 

risk and governance, the Head of Internal Audit (HoIA) at Nottingham City Council concluded that a 

“significant” level of assurance could be given that internal control systems are operating effectively 

within EMSS and that no significant issues had been discovered.  

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) - Central Pool.   

The LGPS Central pooled investment arrangements became operational on 1 April 2018. A range of 

collaborative governance vehicles has been established.  

The Council is joint owner of LGPS Central Limited which manages the pooled assets of nine 

Midlands-based local government pension schemes, including Leicestershire. LGPS Central Limited 

is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority as an asset manager and operator of 

alternative investment funds. It has combined assets of approximately £40bn, and represents the 

retirement savings of over 900,000 scheme members across over 2,000 employers. 

The Company aims to use the combined buying power of its Partner Funds to reduce costs, improve 

investment returns and widen the range of available asset classes for investment for the benefit of 

local government pensioners, employees and employers. 

Representatives of each of the funds sit on the LGPS Central Joint Committee which provides 

oversight of the delivery of the objectives of the pool, the delivery of client service, the delivery 

against the LGPS central business case and to deal with common investor issues. The joint 

committee provides assistance, guidance and recommendations to the individual councils, taking 

into consideration the conflicting demands and interests of the participants within the pool. The joint 

committee does not have delegated authority to make binding decisions on behalf of the 

130



  APPENDIX 

9 
 

participating councils.  

Staffordshire County Council Internal Audit Service has led a co-ordinated and collaborative 

approach in relation to developing assurance over the new pooling arrangements operating within 

LGPS Central.  This has involved consultation with all Partner Fund’s internal audit functions 

(including Leicestershire County Council), External Audit Partners, the Practitioners Advisory Forum 

and LGPS Central.  An assurance framework has been established and agreed with audit work 

planned in the new financial year (2019/20). The Local Pensions Committee was advised on 15 

February 2019 that the format of assurance documents and audit programmes had been shared 

with Partner Bodies Internal Audit teams to ensure consistency in approach and that work would 

commence in the next quarter. 

Leicestershire and Rutland Sports Partnership (LRS) 

The Director of Public Health represents the Council, and is vice-chair of the LRS Board of non-

executive directors. There are defined terms of reference which set out the governance 

arrangements and key tasks of the Board. Underneath the Board are a number of sub groups 

(drawn from the Board and co-opted others) to provide additional scrutiny of areas of the business. 

One of those sub-groups in the ‘business, oversight and audit’ committee which oversees business 

planning, financial and risk reporting and reports to the Board quarterly.  

Outside of internal controls there is an external process (the Quest quality scheme for sports and 

leisure) run through Sport England which assesses the strength of the partnership through process 

of interviews with key LRS personnel, Board members and other stakeholders. LRS achieved a 

"Very Good" rating in its 2018 Quest Assessment. 

Leicester and Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership (LLEP) 

 

The Leader of the Council is a member of the LLEP Board. The LLEP Executive and Boards have 

Council representation. In March 2019, Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government 

(MHCLG) informed the LLEP of its performance rating for 2018-19. On Governance the LLEP is 

considered to be good, on Delivery it is rated as exceptional, but on Strategy it is considered to 

require improvement. The LLEP is putting in place measures to address the causes of the latter 

rating, which MHCLG has said are due to: 

 Slow progress in developing the Local Industrial Strategy 

 The absence of an Enterprise Zones business rates agreement and 

 A lack of engagement with key stakeholders both locally and nationally.  

 

It is considered that progress is already being made against each of these but it will be important 

that the LLEP Board ensures that progress is continued. 

 

There have been delays in reaching agreement with the District Councils regarding the use of the 

funds in the business rates pool which has held up investment in economic development and 

infrastructure projects. The Council has been keen to press on with deployment of the bulk of the 

funds which are not subject to dispute and recent more positive discussions suggest that a 

resolution may be within reach. 

 

 

 

 

 

131



  APPENDIX 

10 
 

Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing Board 

 

The Lead Members for adults and children and families, its Chief Executive and appropriate 

Directors are the County Council’s representatives on the Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing 

Board (the Board) which is chaired by the Council’s cabinet lead on Health & Wellbeing. The Board 

is made up of local councillors, GPs, health and social care officials and representatives of patients 

and the public. The Board was set up to lead and direct work to improve the health and wellbeing of 

the population of Leicestershire through the development of improved and integrated health and 

social care services. It: - 

 Identifies needs and priorities across Leicestershire, and publishes and refreshes the 

Leicestershire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) so that future commissioning/policy 

decisions and priorities are based on evidence. 

 Prepares and publishes a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and Plan on behalf of the 

County Council and its partner clinical commissioning groups so that work is done to meet 

the needs identified in the JSNA in a co-ordinated, planned and measurable way. 

 Through its partners, communicates and engages with local people in how they can achieve 

the best possible quality of life and be supported to exercise choice and control over their 

personal health and wellbeing. 

 Approves the Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan including a pooled budget used to transform local 

services so people are provided with better integrated care and support together with 

proposals for its implementation. 

 Has oversight of the use of relevant public sector resources to identify opportunities for the 

further integration of health and social care services. 

 

The BCF is reported quarterly regionally and nationally via NHS England (NHSE) and the Local 

Government Association (LGA) via a nationally prescribed template which is approved quarterly by 

the Board, a process supported operationally by the Integration Executive. The annual BCF plan is 

also submitted via NHSE/LGA regionally and nationally, and is subject to a prescribed national 

assurance process against a number of national conditions, metrics and financial rules. 

 

The work of the Board is reported in an annual report and is also reported in the annual reports of 

Clinical Commissioning Groups. 

 Risk Management  

 
An independent health check of the Council’s risk management maturity by Risk Management 
Partners (RMP) was undertaken in October 2018, the conclusion overall was positive and an action 
plan being developed. 
 

The Corporate Governance Committee has a responsibility to ensure that an effective risk 

management system is in place. Risk management is about identifying and managing risks 

effectively, helping to improve performance and aid bold decision making relating to the 

development of services and the transformation of the wider organisation. The Council’s Risk 

Management Policy and Strategy provide the framework within which these risks can be 

managed. 

The Policy and Strategy were reviewed, revised and approved by Cabinet in February 2019.  

Regular reports and presentations on specific strategic and corporate risks to the Council are 

provided to the Corporate Governance Committee.  

132



  APPENDIX 

11 
 

 
Corporate Governance Committee  

 
The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for promoting and maintaining high standards 

of corporate governance within the Council and receives reports and presentations that deal with 

issues that are paramount to good governance. 

 

With regard to the promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct by members and co-

opted members within the County Council – decisions and minutes are available on the intranet.  

The Committee reviewed one member conduct hearing this year which resulted in a report to the full 

Council. 

 

During 2018/19 the Committee has provided assurance that: an adequate risk management 

framework is in place; the Council’s performance is properly monitored; and that there is proper 

oversight of the financial reporting processes.  The table below provides summary information of 

other key business considered by this Committee during 2018/19 to support the above. 

 Quarterly Risk Management Updates and the Risk Management Policy & Strategy 

 External Audit Plan, Statement of Accounts, Pension Fund Accounts  and Annual Governance 
Statement 

 Quarterly Treasury Management updates and Annual Treasury Management Report 2017/18. 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Plan 

 Internal Audit Service – Annual Plan:, quarterly progress reports including status of   progress High 
Importance recommendations; Annual Report, including opinion on the control environment,  
conformance to PSIAS and Quality Assurance Improvement Programme; Outcome of the Peer 
Review 

 Clinical Governance Annual Report 

 Supplier Code of Conduct 

 Property and Occupants Risk Management Group 

 Prevention of the Facilitation of Tax Evasion – Policy Statement and Procedures 

 Ombudsman Annual Review 2017-18 and Corporate Complaint Handling 

 Information Commissioner’s Office Inspection and GDPR Update 

 Annual Reports : 

o Operation of Members’ Code of Conduct and dealing with complaints 

o Update to the Contract Procedure Rules 

o Grants and Returns 

o Business Continuity and Court Surveillance and Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
(RIPA)  

 

   External Audit  
 

The Council’s external auditors present the findings from their planned audit work to those charged 

with governance. Key conclusions reached are as follows: 

 

• Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017-2021 (KPMG LLP)  
(Value for Money Conclusion) 

133



  APPENDIX 

12 
 

- 2017/18 Budget.  The Authority has made proper arrangements to ensure it took properly-

informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 

taxpayers and local people. 

- 2018/19 and future years planned budget.  Appropriate arrangements are in place to identify and 

achieve savings. However, the Authority needs to continue to closely monitor progress and 

ensure its MTFS is kept up to date.  

- The level of reserves are appropriate for the size of the organisation given the continued 

uncertainties and risks that lie ahead for the whole sector and the individual pressure and 

challenges the Authority faces in the short to medium term. 

 
• Opinion on the 2017/18 Annual Statement of Accounts (KPMG LLP) 

- No significant audit or accounting issues and no material deficiencies in internal control and that 

the Annual Statement of Accounts presented a true and fair view, in accordance with the relevant 

codes and regulation. 

 

• Annual Audit Plan for the 2018/19 Accounts (Grant Thornton LLP) 
- The external audit plan was reported to members in January 2019 and the interim audit was 

completed in March 2019 - no material issues have been reported.  The provision of relevant 

information by the Internal Audit Service will assist Grant Thornton to determine the planned 

audit approach for further testing during June and July 2019 before reporting the Audit Opinion in 

July 2019. 

 

The Role of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO)  

 
Throughout 2018/19, the Director of Corporate Resources undertook the role of the Chief Financial 

Officer (CFO) for the Council. The CFO conforms to the governance requirements and core 

responsibilities of two CIPFA Statements on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer; in Local 

Government (2016) and in the Local Government Pension Scheme (2014). The CFO is a key 

member of the Corporate Management Team and is able to bring influence to bear on all material 

business decisions, ensuring that immediate and long term implications, opportunities and risks, are 

fully considered and in alignment with the MTFS and other corporate strategies. The CFO is aware 

of, and committed to, the five key principles that underpin the role of the CFO, and has completed an 

assurance statement that provides evidence against core activities which strengthen governance 

and financial management across the Council. 

 

The Role of the Head of Internal Audit  

 
The Council’s Internal Audit Service arrangements conform to the governance requirements and core 

responsibilities of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Public Service 

Organisations (2010)*. The Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service undertakes the role of Head 

of Internal Audit Service (HoIAS) and works with key members of the Corporate Management Team 

to give advice and promote good governance throughout the organisation. The HoIAS leads and 

directs the Internal Audit Service so that it makes a full contribution to and meets the needs of the 

Authority and external stakeholders, escalating any concerns and giving assurance on the Council’s 

control environment. The HoIAS has reviewed his conformance to the CIPFA statement providing 

evidence against core activities and responsibilities which strengthen governance, risk management 

and internal control across the Authority. 

 

* A revised Statement is in effect from April 2019 i.e. relevant to compilation of the 2019/20 AGS. 

 

134



  APPENDIX 

13 
 

The Role of the Monitoring Officer  

 
The Monitoring Officer has responsibility for: 

 ensuring that decisions taken comply with all necessary statutory requirements and are 

lawful. Where in the opinion of the Monitoring Officer any decision or proposal is likely to be 

unlawful and lead to maladministration, he/she shall advise the Council and/or Executive 

accordingly, 

 ensuring that decisions taken are in accordance with the Council’s budget and its Policy 

Framework, 

 providing advice on the scope of powers and authority to take decisions 

 

In discharging this role the Monitoring Officer is supported by officers within the Legal and 

Democratic Services Teams. 

 

7. SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES ARISING DURING 2018/19 

This Annual Governance Statement identifies that the Council has effective arrangements in 

place, but that we recognise the need to continuously review, adapt and develop our governance 

arrangements to meet the changing needs of the organisation. Whilst the Council has identified 

areas to be developed (see section 5), it is important to recognise that the senior management 

group (25 March 2019) determined that there were no significant governance issues in 2018/19. 

 

 

8. FUTURE CHALLENGES 
 

Significant challenges faced by the Council such as continuing funding reductions, delays to the 

localisation of business rates, progressing the transformation programme, driving further Health and 

Social Care integration are detailed within the Corporate Risk Register, which is regularly presented 

to the Corporate Management Team and Corporate Governance Committee. Managing these risks 

adequately will be an integral part of both strategic and operational planning; and the day to day 

running, monitoring and maintaining the Council.  

 

Challenges continue to emerge in particular: 

 

 Austerity - The Council is the lowest funded county council in the country and is among the lowest 

funded of all authorities. The Council continues to press for the development of a funding system 

which achieves a much fairer distribution of local government funding than the current system has 

achieved. The Council has responded to Fair Funding and Business Rate Retention in February 

2019 and is seeking more sustainable funding for local services. The Council is developing a 

business case for a more effective unitary council for Leicestershire.  

 The future financial outlook remains challenging with continuing reductions in government funding 

coupled with rising demand. Service pressures are most keenly felt in adult and children’s social 

care and for special educational needs and disability support (SEND). This is creating the 

continued need to make savings and invest in alternative service provision. The most significant 

addition to the MTFS for 2019/20 is the High Needs Development plan that looks to address the 

challenge, including the investment of up to £30 million in a range of cost effective high quality 

provision for children and young people with special education needs. 

 

135



  APPENDIX 

14 
 

 

 The financial risks faced by the Council in delivering the infrastructure necessary to support 

growth in the County are significant.  To address this proposals are being developed for a 

Growth Unit within the Council aimed at ensuring that public services and infrastructure are 

effectively planned over the short, medium and long term across Leicestershire. In addition it will 

seek to ensure that risks associated with the Council’s financial contribution to large scale growth 

and infrastructure projects remain tightly managed by the introduction of cost/risk sharing 

arrangements with district councils and by the securing of funding through developer 

contributions and from government and other external agencies. 

 Leicestershire has been selected as a Business Rate Retention Pilot for 2019/20. The City and 

County areas are expected to benefit from at least £14m of additional funding with £7m forecast 

to be allocated to the County Council. Working alongside Leicester City Council and District 

Councils, suitable governance will need to be put in place to ensure the best use is made of the 

money and in line with Government expectations. 

 The NHS Long Term Plan (published in January 2019) includes a number of areas which are 

likely to have an impact on the Council, both in terms of joint working, operationally in the 

delivery of care, and as a strategic commissioner of services. Each local NHS system is 

expected to respond to the Long Term Plan setting out its local implementation approach and 

financial plans during Autumn 2019.  

 Proposed development of a new target operating model for the adult social care services 

progresses to deliver enhanced outcomes for service users and improved ways of working, 

 The Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse (IICSA) - The Inquiry will investigate 

institutional responses to allegations of child sexual abuse involving the late Lord Janner of 

Braunstone QC. The IICSA announced in September 2018 that Public Hearings for the Janner 

Investigation will be held for 3 weeks in February 2020. A Preliminary Hearing has been 

scheduled by the IICSA for 23 May 2019 at which details regarding the Public Hearings will be 

agreed.  

 Brexit - significant knock on consequences on public services (including potential legal, 

regulatory, economic and social implications) and the local economy as a result of the United 

Kingdom leaving the European Union (EU). The Council has been working closely with partners 

through the Local Resilience Forum (LLR Prepared) and with central Government departments 

on Brexit planning, particularly in relation to a No Deal EU Exit. 

 National Audit Office – Local Authority Governance (published in January 2019) raises questions 
as to whether the local government governance system remains effective; Authorities have faced 
significant challenges since 2010-11 as funding has reduced while demand for key services has 
grown. Not only are the risks from poor governance greater in the current context as the stakes 
are higher, but the process of governance itself is more challenging and complex. Governance 
arrangements have to be effective in a riskier, more time-pressured and less well-resourced 
context. 

 

 

 

 

 

136



  APPENDIX 

15 
 

Chi 

9. CERTIFICATION 
 
We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the 

governance framework by the Corporate Governance Committee and that the arrangements continue 

to be regarded as fit for purpose. 

 

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address any matters to further enhance our 

governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for any 

developments that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation 

and operation as part of our next annual review. 

 

Furthermore, having considered all the principles of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the 

Risk of Fraud and Corruption, we are satisfied that the Council has adopted a response that is 

appropriate for its fraud and corruption risks and commits to maintain its vigilance to tackle fraud. 
 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
John Sinnott Nicholas Rushton 

Chief Executive Leader of the Council 

137



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 10 MAY 2019 
 

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 AND 
THE INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2016 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to: 

 
(a) advise the Committee of changes to legislation relating to the 

acquisition of communications data by local authorities; and 
 

(b) ask the Committee to consider the Covert Surveillance and the 
Acquisition of Communications Data Policy Statement (previously 
referred to as the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) 
and Investigatory Powers Act 2016 (IPA) Policy Statement) which is 
attached to this report. 

 
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 
 
2. The Codes of Practice made under RIPA require elected members of a local 

authority to review the authority’s use of RIPA and set the policy at least 
once a year. They should also consider internal reports on the use of 
surveillance to ensure that it is being applied consistently with the local 
authority’s policy and that the policy remains fit for purpose.  Elected 
members should not, however, be involved in making decisions on specific 
authorisations. 
 

3. On 20 February 2015 this Committee agreed to receive an annual report on 
the use of RIPA.  On 25 November 2016 this Committee agreed changes to 
the Council’s RIPA Policy Statement to reflect best practice and 
recommendations of the Office of Surveillance Commissioners (OSC).  The 
Cabinet subsequently approved the revised Policy Statement at its meeting 
on 13 December 2016 and this was confirmed in 2017 and 2018 to remain fit 
for purpose. 
 

4. On 24 October 2018, this Committee received its annual report setting out 
the Authority’s use of RIPA for the period 1 October 2017 to 30 September 
2018.  It would normally have also carried out its annual review of the 
Council’s RIPA and IPA Policy Statement at this time.  However, it agreed to 
delay that review until such time as the Investigatory Powers Act 2016 had 

139 Agenda Item 9



  
 

been fully implemented and its effect on the Council’s current Policy 
Statement and processes made clear.    

 
Background 
 
5. RIPA provides a framework to ensure investigatory techniques are used in a 

way that is compatible with Article 8 (right to respect for private and family 
life) of the European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR).  RIPA ensures 
that these techniques are used in a regulated way and it includes safeguards 
to prevent abuse of such methods.  Use of these covert techniques will only 
be authorised if considered legal, necessary and proportionate. 

 
6. The Trading Standards Service is the primary user of RIPA within the County 

Council and it mainly undertakes the following three activities: 
 
i. Directed Surveillance – the pre-panned covert surveillance of 

individuals, sometimes involving the use of hidden visual and audio 
equipment. 

ii. Covert Human Intelligence Sources – the use of County Council 
officers, who act as consumers to purchase goods and services, e.g. 
in person, by telephone or via the internet. 

iii. Communications data – the acquisition of communications data, for 
example, subscriber details relating to an internet account, a mobile 
phone or fixed line numbers, but such data does not include the 
contents of the communication itself. 

 
7. In September 2017 the Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) 

took over responsibility for oversight of investigatory powers from the 
Interception of Communications Commissioner’s Office (IOCCO), the OSC 
and the Intelligence Services Commissioner (ISComm).  IPCO are now 
responsible for the audit functions of these former bodies and will have 
oversight of the newly formed Office of Communications Data Authorisations 
as detailed below. 

 
Legislative Changes  

 
8. The Data Retention and Acquisition Regulations (SI 2018/1123) will 

introduce changes (expected by the end of May 2019) to the way in which 
local authorities will in future be able to access communications data.  The 
Regulations amend both the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
and the Investigatory Powers Act 2016 (IPA) by creating a new authorisation 
process for public bodies that seek to obtain communications data for a 
specific criminal investigation.   
 

9. Currently judicial oversight for applications by local authorities to obtain 
communications data rests with magistrates’ courts.  This, however, will now 
be transferred to a new independent body established by the Government, 
the Office of Communications Data Authorisations (OCDA), which will 
consider and authorise all future requests. 
 

140



  
 

 
10. The legislation also requires authorities to enter into a formal collaboration 

agreement with the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) an organisation, 
hosted by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council which specialises in 
providing data and intelligence services to enforcement agencies.  NAFN will 
in future act as the single point of contact between any communications 
service provider and the Council and prepare on the Council’s behalf any 
applications to the OCDA. 

 
11. An application to obtain communications data must first receive senior 

internal approval by the delegated designated person (currently the Team 
Leader for Civil Litigation and Prosecution) before it can be submitted to the 
OCDA for consideration.  An application will therefore only be referred to the 
OCDA if it first meets the Council’s own necessity and proportionality test.   
 

12. Local authorities will be permitted to acquire the less intrusive types of 
communications data, now referred to as ‘entity’ data (e.g. the identity of the 
person to whom services are provided) and ‘events’ data (e.g. the date and 
type of communications, time sent, and duration, frequency of 
communications).  However, it will remain the case that under no 
circumstances will it be permitted to obtain or intercept the content of any 
communications.   
 

13. In order to obtain either type of data, in addition to satisfying the necessity/ 
proportionality test, an authority previously had to show the purpose for the 
application was for the prevention and detection of a crime.  This remains the 
same for ‘entity’ data.  However, for ‘events’ data, the threshold has been 
raised and the purpose must now be for the prevention or detection of a 
‘serious’ crime (e.g. an offence for which an individual could be sentenced to 
imprisonment for a term of 12 months or more, or offences which involve, as 
an integral part, the sending of a communication or a breach of a person’s 
privacy).  
 

14. Any application to the OCDA will be guided by the Council’s revised Policy 
Statement attached, current best practice and the Communications Data 
Code. 
 

Recommendations 
 

15. The Committee is asked to: 
 

(a) Note the changes introduced by the Data Retention and Acquisition 
Regulations (SI 2018/1123); 
 

(b) Recommend to the Cabinet that the revised Policy Statement on the use 
of RIPA and IPA powers attached as an appendix to this report be 
approved.  

 
 
 

141



  
 

 
 
Background Papers 
 
Report to the Corporate Governance Committee on 20 February 2015 and 25 
November 2016 – RIPA 2000 Annual Report 
 
Report to the Cabinet on 13 December 2016 – RIPA – Annual Report 
 
Report to Corporate Governance Committee on 24 October 2018 – RIPA 2000 – 
Annual Report 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
None. 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None arising from this report. 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Lauren Haslam 
Director of Law and Governance 
Tel:  0116 305 6240 
Email: lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk 
 
Gary Connors 
Head of Regulatory Services 
Tel:  0116 305 6536 
Email: gary.connors@leics.gov.uk  
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix  - Covert Surveillance and the Acquisition of Communications Data  

Policy Statement 

142

mailto:lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk
mailto:gary.connors@leics.gov.uk


Covert Surveillance and the Acquisition of “Communications  

Data” Policy Statement 
 
1. This policy sets out how Leicestershire County Council (the Council) will 

comply with the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA), the 
Investigatory Powers Act 2016 (IPA), the Human Rights Act 1998 and the 
European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) - Article 8, when carrying 
out any covert investigatory techniques. If such covert investigatory 
techniques are conducted by the Council, RIPA and the IPA regulates them 
in a manner that is compatible with ECHR, particularly the right to respect 
for private and family life (Article 8). The use of covert investigatory 
techniques is an interference with the rights protected by the ECHR (Article 
8) and there may be a potential violation of those rights, unless the 
interference is in accordance with the law and is necessary in a democratic 
society in the interests of: 

 
 national security; 
 public safety; 
 economic well–being of the country; 
 the prevention of disorder or crime; 
 protecting of health or morals; or 
 the protection of the rights and freedoms of others. 

 
Any such interference must be proportionate requiring a balancing of the 
seriousness of the intrusion against the seriousness of the offence and 
consideration of whether there are other means to obtain the required 
information. 

 
The Council has several specific core functions requiring it to investigate the 
activities of private individuals, groups and organisations within its 
jurisdiction, for the benefit and protection of the greater public. Such 
investigations may require the Council to undertake covert investigatory 
techniques. 

 
2. In accordance with RIPA and the IPA the Council will only use three 

covert investigatory techniques for its core functions (details set out 
below). 

 
” Directed Surveillance” will only be used for the purposes of the 
Council’s investigations. This is covert non-intrusive surveillance, 
which is carried out in such a way that the persons subject to the 
surveillance are unaware that it is or may be taking place. It is 
undertaken for the purposes of a specific investigation or operation 
and is conducted in such a manner, that it is likely to result in the 
obtaining of private information about a person and in circumstances 
other than by way of an immediate response to events, where it would 
not be reasonably practicable to seek authorisation for the 
surveillance. The Council will not undertake surveillance in residential 
properties or private vehicles. 

Appendix 

143



 
 

“Covert Human Intelligence Source” (CHIS) will only be used for the 
purposes of the Council’s investigations. This is an individual, who 
may or may not reveal their identity, establishes or maintains a 
personal or other relationship with another person(s), for the covert 
purpose of obtaining information and disclosing the information to the 
Council. It is immaterial whether information provided by the source is 
given voluntarily or the source is tasked by a public authority to obtain 
the information. A CHIS activity is determined by the manner in which 
the information was covertly obtained and then subsequently passed 
on to the Council.  

 
“Communications Data” (CD) includes the ‘who’, ‘when’, ‘where’, and 
‘how’ of a communication, but not the content i.e. what was said or 
written. The Council may only acquire less intrusive types of CD; “Entity 
data” (e.g. the identity of the person to whom services are provided) or 
“Events Data” (e.g. the date and time sent, duration, frequency of 
communications). The location of the entity or events data at the time 
the communication is sent or received may also be obtained in 
appropriate cases.  

 
The Council is prohibited from obtaining “Content Data”, the meaning 
of the communication, (e.g. what the communication says or contains). 
 

3. Applications for CD are subject to independent examination, scrutiny and 
approval by the Investigatory Powers Commissioner (IPC) through the 
“Office of Communications Data Authorisations” (OCDA)  

 
4. The Council will continue to maintain a collaboration agreement with the 

National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN), to comply with IPA and to ensure any 
investigation follows best practice. The Council will consult and work with 
NAFN throughout the application process to ensure the legal basis for all 
applications are met. NAFN will act as a single point of contact between 
both the communications service providers and the Council concerning the 
request and provision of CD 

 
5. The Council will not acquire CD unless an application for authorisation is 

approved both internally, by designated senior officers and externally, by 
the Office for Communications Data Authorisations (OCDA).  

 
6. An authorisation to acquire CD will remain in force for 1 month, unless a 

further application is made by the Council through NAFN and approved by 
OCDA. The authorisation may be cancelled at any time, by either OCDA or 
the Council.  
 

7. In respect to applications for communications data made under the IPA, the 
“applicable crime purpose” must be met concerning all applications for both 
Entity Data and Events Data. The applicable crime purpose is defined 
differently in relation to each of these data types. Where the CD sought is 

144



Entity Data, the applicable crime purpose is the prevention or detection of 
crime or the prevention of disorder. Where the CD is wholly or partly Events 
Data, the applicable crime purpose is defined as preventing or detecting 
serious crime (the serious crime threshold). Data relating to Events has the 
potential to be more intrusive than data relating to Entities. 
 

8. The Council will not utilise a RIPA “Directed Surveillance” or “Covert Human 
Intelligence Source” authorisation, until an order approving the grant or 
renewal of an authorisation and/or notice(s) has been granted by a 
Magistrates’ Court.  

 
9. Digital investigation, in particular, the review of ‘open source’ material which 

has been placed in the public domain without the expectation of privacy, will 
not normally require a RIPA authorisation. However, the Council will seek 
an authorisation to undertake repeated or systematic examinations of open 
source sites, if such examination is undertaken to build up a picture of a 
person’s activities or lifestyle. The Council will seek a CHIS authorisation if 
there is to be any interaction with the site host, for example, sending 
messages and/or making covert enquiries of any kind.  

 
10. Before an authorisation is submitted to a Magistrates’ Court it must be 

internally authorised by an “Authorising Officer” or a “Designated Person” of 
the Council. Such covert investigatory techniques will only be used where it 
is considered necessary (e.g. to investigate a suspected crime) and 
proportionate (e.g. balancing the seriousness of the intrusion into privacy 
against the seriousness of the offence and whether the information can be 
obtained by other means). The Council will follow the relevant Codes of 
Practice on the scope of powers, necessity and proportionality. 

 
In accordance with the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 the Council will 
only submit a “Directed Surveillance” authorisation to the Magistrates’ Court 
for authorisation, for the purpose of preventing crime, where a criminal 
offence(s) is punishable (whether on summary conviction or indictment) by 
a maximum term of at least 6 months' imprisonment, is suspected, or if the 
offence relates to the underage sale of alcohol tobacco or nicotine inhaling 
products and where the necessity and proportionality tests are met. The 
Council will ensure that any authorisations and/or notices, which are 
granted and/or renewed by the Magistrates’ Court or by the Council’s 
Authorising Officers, are not utilised beyond the statutory time limits 
prescribed. 
 

11. The Council will maintain a list of senior officers, who are designated to 
oversee the covert investigatory techniques specified in paragraph 2, in 
respect of the Council’s internal procedures for authorisations and/or notices 
under RIPA and IPA, prior to the authorisations and/or notice(s) being 
approved by a Magistrates’ Court or the IPC/ OCDA, and to oversee the 
process following such approvals until cancellation. A record of approved 
authorisations and notices will be kept by the Council. The Council’s 
Monitoring Officer, being the Senior Responsible Officer under RIPA, will 
ensure that the senior officers with responsibility for overseeing any covert 

145



investigatory techniques are at Director, Head of Service, Service Manager 
or equivalent level of seniority and are aware of the Council’s obligations to 
comply with RIPA and with this policy. Furthermore, all officers who are 
required to undertake covert techniques will receive appropriate training or 
be appropriately supervised. 

 
12. The Council may undertake any of the covert investigatory techniques 

specified in paragraph 2 above, in respect to the prevention and detection of 
illegal sales of the following age restricted products: Butane, Knives and 
Fireworks, even though these products do not meet the criteria specified in 
the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 and therefore do not attract the 
protections of RIPA, in respect to these covert investigatory techniques. The 
Council believes that it is important that the Council’s Trading Standards 
Service is authorised to use any of the aforementioned covert investigatory 
techniques, in order to undertake enforcement activities in respect of the 
aforementioned products, even though the Council will not be afforded the 
protection of RIPA. The Council will ensure that it continues to comply with 
its obligations under the ECHR (Article 8), by requiring its Trading Standards 
Service to adhere to the same authorisation procedures for RIPA 
authorisations and/or notices, except for the requirement to seek the 
approval of a Magistrates’ Court. 

 
13. The Council will ensure that any other covert investigatory techniques, 

not requiring the approval of a Magistrates’ Court, will be subject to the 
same internal authorisation processes as referred to above. 

 
14. This policy and the procedures for the proper approval of 

authorisations and/or notice(s), the recording of covert investigatory 
techniques, will be reviewed when it is considered appropriate to do 
so. 

 

 

Reviewed April 2019. 
Approved: Cabinet [insert new date] 
 

 

146



 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 10 MAY 2019 
 

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE 
 

ETHICAL STANDARDS IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of the findings of the 

Committee on Standards in Public Life following its review of local government 
ethical standards. 

 
Background 
 
2. The Independent Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) is an advisory 

body funded by the Cabinet Office.  It advises the Prime Minister on ethical 
standards across the whole of public life in England and monitors and reports 
on issues relating to the standards of conduct of all public office holders.   
 

3. In 2018 the Committee undertook a detailed review of the effectiveness of the 
arrangements for standards in local government which had been introduced by 
the Localism Act 2011 and it has recently published its report setting out its 
findings, making a number of recommendations which apply to all tiers of local 
government. 

 
4. The CSPL’s report runs to over 100 pages and a full copy can be accessed via 

the following link – https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/local-government-ethical-standards  

The Committee made 26 recommendations many of which will require changes 
to primary legislation or secondary legislation, and changes to the Local 
Government Transparency Code.  However, the Committee also made a 
number of best practice recommendations which it suggests local authorities 
should use as a benchmark of good ethical practice.   

 
5. An assessment of both sets of recommendations has been undertaken and this 

has confirmed that largely the Council’s arrangements already comply with 
much of what the Committee has proposed.  A summary of the key issues 
raised by the Committee are set out below and a full list of its recommendations 
compared with the Council’s current processes is attached as an Appendix to 
this report.  

  
Summary of the Committee’s Findings 
 
6. The CSPL looked generally at how authorities could better promote high 

standards of conduct and specifically considered the following areas of 
operation of the system –  

147 Agenda Item 10

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/local-government-ethical-standards


 

 The Code of Conduct  

 Arrangements for registration and declaration of interests. 

 The available sanctions. 

 The role of the Independent Person, Monitoring Officer and standards 
committees. 

 Support for parishes. 
 

7. Overall the Committee continued to support the current framework whereby 
local authorities have responsibility for ethical standards, and although the need 
for a central body to govern and adjudicate on standards was considered, it 
found there was no appetite to return to a centrally-regulated system. 
 

8. The Committee accepted that the vast majority of councillors and officers 
maintain high standards of conduct, but found there was clear evidence of 
misconduct, sometimes persistent misconduct, by a few.  It considered there 
was a need for a more consistent approach across all tiers of local government 
and that councils needed more effective tools to enable them to handle serious 
and persistent cases. 
 

9. So far as they relate to a county council, in summary, the Committee’s key 
findings are set out below.  
 
Code of Conduct  
 

10. The Committee determined that codes of conduct are central to maintaining 
ethical standards in public life but that these need to be clear, relevant and 
proportionate.  The review found considerable variation in the length, quality 
and clarity of authorities’ codes which created confusion among members of 
the public, and among councillors who represented more than one tier of local 
government.  The Committee therefore recommends a model code of conduct 
to enhance consistency and quality, though it proposes that use of this should 
be voluntary and capable of being adapted. 
 

11. The Committee further considered that many codes of conduct failed to 
address adequately important areas of behaviour such as social media use and 
bullying and harassment.  It therefore suggests that the scope of codes be 
widened to cover circumstances where a member is purporting to act as a 
member, and that there should be a rebuttable presumption that any public 
action by a councillor is within the scope of the Code including, for example, 
comments made on publicly accessible social media. 
 

12. It is worth noting that the County Council’s Code already includes provisions 
that specifically prohibit bullying and this is given a broad meaning within the 
Council’s guide to the Code.  However, in light of the Committee’s 
recommendations, consideration will be given to expanding this to encompass 
more clearly the increasing use of social media.  The Council has produced and 
circulated to members some guidance on the use of social media and this will 
also be reviewed in light of the Committee’s recommendations.  
 

148



13. Widening the Code to cover circumstances where a ‘member is purporting to 
act as a member’ or to include a presumption that a councillor is acting in an 
official capacity in their public conduct could be considered, however, such an 
extension would not be in line with current legislation.  Members may recall that 
this was something specifically removed by the introduction of the Localism Act. 
 
Registration and Declarations of Interest  

 
14. The Committee found that inconsistences in council codes of conduct were 

particularly marked when it came to interests and what needed to be registered 
and declared.  It therefore considers that a more comprehensive and objective 
system for registering and declaring interests is needed which goes beyond the 
current statutory minimum (i.e. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and other 
Pecuniary Interests).   
 

15. The Committee recommends that the current requirements for registering 
interests be updated to include new categories of non-pecuniary interests (e.g. 
unpaid directorships; trusteeships; management roles in a charity or a body of a 
public nature; and membership of any organisations that seek to influence 
opinion or public policy), a requirement to register gifts and hospitality over a 
value of £50 and provisions that would prevent a member from considering a 
matter which a member of the public with knowledge of the facts would regard 
as so significant as to prejudice their judgement.   
 

16. Members will be aware that the Council’s Code already goes beyond the 
statutory minimum requirements and therefore satisfies much of what the 
Committee is now recommending.  When adopting its new Code in 2012, 
members sought to ensure that this continued to require members to declare 
‘personal interests’ like those referred to by the Committee and to not take part 
in any decisions on matters where those personal interests might lead to bias.  
Members are also required to register gifts and hospitality over a value of £50.  
Members’ registers are updated as soon as any change is notified and in any 
event, the Council also writes to members on an annual basis to ensure 
members registers are kept up to date. 
 

17. In addition to the above, the Committee was of the view that the current 
criminal offences relating to non-registration and non-declaration of disclosable 
pecuniary interests are disproportionate and should be abolished. 
 
Sanctions 

 
18. The Committee determined that the current sanctions available to local 

authorities are insufficient and the lack of robust sanctions damages public 
confidence in the standards system and leaves local authorities with no means 
of enforcing lower level misconduct, or of addressing serious or repeated 
misconduct.  The Committee recommends that Councils be given the power to 
suspend members for up to six months without allowances, subject to the 
agreement of the Independent Person.  The introduction of such a penalty will 
first require a change in legislation. 

 

149



The role of Independent Persons (IP), Monitoring Officers (MO) and 
standards committees 
 

19. If there are to be tougher sanctions the Committee considers that there needs 
to be greater independence in the system.  The Committee concluded that if 
greater sanctions were permitted, the role of the IP should be enhanced and 
the MO should be better supported and protected.  It also considered that local 
authorities should have the discretionary power to establish a standards 
committee to advise on standards issues and decide on alleged breaches and 
sanctions, or a combination of these, and to co-opt the IP to this committee with 
voting rights if they so choose. 
 

20. The Committee also recommends that councils be required to publish annually 
the number of complaints they receive and broadly what those complaints 
relate to, the outcome of those complaints and details of any sanctions 
imposed. 

 
21. The County Council abolished its Standards Committee following the 

introduction of the Localism Act in 2012.  However, all functions and 
responsibilities of that Committee were transferred to the Corporate 
Governance Committee which now has oversite of all conduct matters.  The 
Committee receives an annual report on member conduct issues, including 
details of complaints, and a copy of this report is published on the Council’s 
website.   
 

22. A separate Member Conduct Panel was also established in 2012 to consider 
complaints and to hear matters referred for investigation.  It was considered 
appropriate for this Panel to operate separately from the Corporate Governance 
Committee to ensure there would be no conflict of interest, as decisions of the 
Member Conduct Panel are reported to the Committee allowing for further 
action to be taken where appropriate either on a particular case or through the 
wider promotion of a standards issue within the organisation.  Whilst the 
Independent Persons appointed by the Council do not attend meetings of the 
Corporate Governance Committee, they are invited to attend meetings of the 
Member Conduct Panel in order for the Panel to seek their views when it 
considers a specific complaint.   
 

23. It is the view of the Monitoring Officer that this system is working effectively and 
the establishment of a separate Standards Committee is not necessary for the 
County Council.  The current involvement of the Independent Persons is also 
considered appropriate. 

 
Leadership and Training 
 

24. Overall, the Committee emphasised that an ethical culture starts with tone and 
requires leadership.  Whilst there will always be robust disagreement in a 
political arena, the tone of engagement should be civil and constructive. 
 

25. Given the multi-faceted nature of local government, the Committee emphasised 
that leadership was needed from a range of individuals and groups: an 

150



authority’s standards (or other) committee, the Chief Executive, political group 
leaders, and the Chairman of the Council.   The Committee highlighted the 
need for standards of behaviour to be embedded through effective induction 
and ongoing training and recommended that political groups should require 
their members to attend code of conduct training provided by a local authority 
and that this should be written into national party model group rules.  
 

26. The Committee was also of the view that party discipline, whilst important in 
maintaining high standards, lacked the necessary independence to play a 
central role in the standards system.  It found that whilst political groups have 
an important role to play in maintaining an ethical culture, they should be seen 
as a semi-formal institution sitting between direct advice from officers and 
formal processes by the council, rather than a parallel system to the local 
authority’s standards processes.  The Committee therefore concluded that 
political groups should set clear expectations of behaviour by their members, 
and senior officers should maintain effective relationships with political groups, 
working with them informally to resolve standards issues where appropriate. 
 

27. In Leicestershire, political groups have been proactive in seeking to ensure high 
standards are met by their members and they have taken action in accordance 
with their own group rules where appropriate, including suspending members in 
some cases.     
 

28. Following an election (or by-election) the County Council provides all members 
with a copy of the Council’s Code of Conduct and Planning Code of Practice 
along with a detailed guide to the Code and in particular the rules regarding the 
registration of interests and gifts and hospitality.  Training is also provided to all 
members on both the Code and the Planning Code of Practice and this is 
compulsory for all new members. 

 
Conclusion 
 
29. The Corporate Governance Committee took over responsibility for standards 

matters following the introduction of the Localism Act 2011.  At the same time, 
the Council adopted a new Members' Code of Conduct and a new procedure 
for dealing with allegations of a breach against Members and Co-Opted 
Members.  A brief assessment of these arrangements against the Committee’s 
recommendations has been undertaken and these have been found to meet 
many of the requirements proposed.  However, some improvements will be 
considered as part of the annual review of the Council’s Constitution and 
revised versions of these documents will presented to the Committee for 
approval as necessary alongside the annual report on the Members Code of 
Conduct. 

 
Recommendations 
 
22. The Committee is asked to note the report and provide feedback on the 

recommendations of the Committee on Standards in Public Life as set out in 
the appendix attached. 

 

151



 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None. 
 
Background papers 
 
Guide to the Leicestershire County Council Members’ Code of Conduct 

 
Leicestershire County Council’s Procedure for dealing with allegations of a breach of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 
Report to the Corporate Governance Committee on 24 September 2012 - 
‘Arrangements for dealing with Member Conduct Complaints’ 
 
Report to the Corporate Governance Committee on 26 November 2012 -  
‘Arrangements for dealing with Member Conduct Complaints’ 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
None.   
 
Officer to contact 
 
Lauren Haslam, Director of Law and Governance and 
Monitoring Officer 
Tel: 0116 3056240   
Email: lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk 
 

152

mailto:lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk


No   Recommendation  
 

 Council’s existing position  

 1 The Local Government Association 
should create an updated model code of 
conduct, in consultation with 
representative bodies of councillors and 
officers of all tiers of local government. 
 

 Matter for the LGA. 

 2 The Government should ensure that 
candidates standing for or accepting 
public offices are not required publicly to 
disclose their home address.  The 
Relevant Authorities (Disclosable 
Pecuniary interests) Regulations 2012 
should be amended to clarify that a 
councillor does not need to register their 
home address on an authority’s register 
of interests. 
 

The Government has amended the rules so 
that candidates standing for election are no 
longer required to have their home address 
published on the ballot paper and 
statement of persons nominated.  (The 
Local Elections (Principal Areas) (England 
and Wales) (Amendment) (England) Rules 
2018).  
 
Note – Following an election, the law 
requires the Council to maintain a register 
containing the names and addresses of 
every member that has been elected and 
this register must be made open for public 
inspection.  Members are asked if they 
specifically want to have their addresses 
published on the Council’s website to 
enable constituents to contact them.  
Members are in any event required to 
disclose their home address on their 
register of interest form subject to the 
sensitive interest provisions contained in 
paragraph 4.18 of the Council’s Code.  
Members’ registers are required to be 
published on the Council’s website.   

 

 3 Councillors should be presumed to be 
acting in an official capacity in their 
public conduct, including statements on 
publicly-accessible social media.  
Section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011 
should be amended to permit local 
authorities to presume so when deciding 
upon code of conduct breaches. 
 

Not currently provided for within the 
Council’s Code as, in line with changes 
introduced by the Localism Act 2011, the 
scope of the Council’s Code was restricted 
to apply ‘when a member is acting in their 
capacity as a member of the Authority’.    
Widening the Code as the Committee 
recommends could be considered as a 
local choice option though this would go 
beyond what is provided for under current 
legislation.  Alternatively, Members could 
await the Governments response and any 
change in legislation before taking action 
on this particular issue.  Members’ views 
are sought on this point. 
 

153



It should be noted that the Council has 
prepared an advisory note which has been 
circulated to all Members on the use of 
social media and this will be reviewed and 
updated in light of the Committee’s 
recommendations.  
 

 4  Section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011 
should be amended to state that a local 
authority’s code of conduct applies to a 
member when they claim to act, or give 
the impression they are acting, in their 
capacity as a member or as a 
representative of the local authority.  
 

As above, the scope of the Council’s Code 
was restricted following the introduction of 
the Localism Act 2000 to apply ‘when a 
member is acting in their capacity as a 
member of the Authority’.  Widening the 
Code in accordance with this 
recommendation of the Committee would 
revert the Council’s Code back to the 
position that existed prior to the introduction 
of that Act.  Members could consider this as 
a local choice option or alternatively, await 
the Governments response and any 
change in legislation before taking action.  
Members’ views are sought on this 
point. 
 

 5  The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 
should be amended to include: unpaid 
directorships; trusteeships; management 
roles in a charity or a body of a public 
nature; and membership of any 
organisations that seek to influence 
opinion or public policy.  
 

As a matter of local choice, the Council’s 
Code already requires these types of 
interests to be registered as “personal 
interests”, excluding unpaid directorships.  
Extending the Council’s definition of 
‘personal interests’ could be considered as 
part of the annual review of the Council’s 
constitution.  Members’ views on this are 
sought. 
 

 6 Local authorities should be required to 
establish a register of gifts and 
hospitality, with councillors required to 
record any gifts and hospitality received 
over a value of £50, or totalling £100 
over a year from a single source.  This 
requirement should be included in an 
updated model code of conduct. 
 

As a matter of local choice, Leicestershire’s 
Code already requires members to register 
any gifts or hospitality received over a value 
of £50.  The Council’s Code does not 
currently include a cumulative limit, but this 
could be considered as part of the annual 
review.  Members’ views on this are 
sought. 

 7  Section 31 of the Localism Act 2011 
should be repealed, and replaced with a 
requirement that councils include in their 
code of conduct that a councillor must 
not participate in a discussion or vote in  
a matter to be considered at a meeting if 
they have any interest, whether 
registered or not, “if a member of the 

As a matter of local choice, the Council 
agreed to include provisions within its Code 
to this effect and these are referred to as 
‘”personal interests that might lead to bias”.  
Members are required to leave the room 
during consideration of a matter in which 
they have such an interest and cannot take 
part in, or vote on, such a matter.  A 

154



public, with knowledge of the relevant 
facts, would reasonably regard the 
interest as so significant that it is likely to 
prejudice your consideration or decision-
making in relation to that matter”.  
 

member can give evidence and make 
representations in cases where a member 
of the public could attend for the same 
purpose, but the member must immediately 
leave the meeting thereafter. 
 

 8 The Localism Act 2011 should be 
amended to require that Independent 
Persons are appointed for a fixed term   
of two years, renewable once. 

Imposing such a restriction on the 
appointment of Independent Persons could 
be considered as a matter of local choice.  
However, the view of the Monitoring Officer 
is that as the Council currently has a pool of 
5 Independent Persons who are used 
intermittently over a period of four years, 
such persons are not so regularly involved 
in the Council’s complaints process so as to 
jeopardise their independence.  Restricting 
the ability of Independent Persons to 
reapply for the position beyond what is 
currently required under legislation could 
have an adverse effect on the Council’s 
ability to recruit in the future.  In any event, 
Members who appoint the Independent 
Persons can take into account the extent of 
any existing Independent Persons 
involvement in the Council’s complaints 
handling process.  
 

 9 The Local Government Transparency 
Code should be updated to provide that 
the view of the Independent Person in 
relation to a decision on which they are 
consulted should be formally recorded in 
any decision notice or minutes.  

The views of the Independent Person (IP) 
in respect of a complaint are recorded in 
accordance with the Council’s procedure 
for handling complaints which provide that 
the Monitoring Officer (MO) can consult the 
IP at any stage in the process, including 
prior to any decision to formally investigate 
a complaint.  Where a complaint is referred 
to the Member Conduct Panel the views of 
the Independent Person (IP) will be 
recorded in the minutes of that meeting and 
made public alongside all other documents 
relating to the complaint, particularly when 
this is investigated and the subject of a 
public hearing, unless the Monitoring 
Officer (MO) determines they should be 
regarded as ‘exempt’.   
 

155



 10 A local authority should only be able to 
suspend a councillor where the 
authority’s Independent Person agrees 
both with the finding of a breach and that 
suspending the councillor would be a 
proportionate sanction.  
 

Requires a change in legislation by the 
Government to enable the Council to 
impose a suspension. 

 11 Local authorities should provide legal 
indemnity to Independent Persons if their 
views or advice are disclosed. The 
government should require this through 
secondary legislation if needed.  

The Independent Person’s appointed by the 
Council are regarded as ‘office holders’ and 
already therefore benefit from the cover 
provided under the Council’s ‘Officials’ 
Indemnity Policy’.  

 12 Local authorities should be given the 
discretionary power to establish a 
decision-making standards committee 
with voting independent members and 
voting members from dependent 
parishes, to decide on allegations and 
impose sanctions.  

Following the introduction of the Localism 
Act 2000, the functions of the then 
standards committee are now fulfilled by 
the Council’s Corporate Governance 
Committee and Member Conduct Panel.  
Independent Persons play an active role in 
the Council’s handling of complaints in 
accordance with the Council’s procedure.  It 
is considered that the Council’s current 
approach and the involvement of 
Independent Persons within this are 
working effectively and so no change is 
proposed, though this will be reviewed if a 
change in legislation occurs.   
 

 13 Councillors should be given the right to 
appeal to the Local Government 
Ombudsman (LGO) if their local authority 
imposes a period of suspension for 
breaching the code of conduct.  

Requires a change in legislation by the 
Government both to allow authorities to 
impose a suspension and to introduce an 
appeals process involving the LGO. 

 14 The Local Government Ombudsman 
should be given the power to investigate 
and decide upon an allegation of a code 
of conduct breach by a councillor, and 
the appropriate sanction, on appeal by a 
councillor who has had a suspension 
imposed. The Ombudsman’s decision 
should be binding on the local authority. 

 

Requires a change in legislation by the 
Government to introduce an appeals 
process involving the LGO. 

 15  The Local Government Transparency 
Code should be updated to require 
councils to publish annually: the number 
of code of conduct complaints they 
receive; what the complaints broadly 
relate to (e.g. bullying; conflict of 
interest); the outcome of those 

The Monitoring Officer reports annually to 
the Corporate Governance Committee on 
all complaints received, advising members 
of the number of complaints and whether 
they have been resolved informally or not 
progressed.  This report is published on the 
Council’s website.  In accordance with the 

156



complaints, including if they are rejected 
as trivial or vexations; and any sanctions 
applied. 
 

recommendation of the Committee, more 
detail will be provided in future reports, as 
appropriate, on the nature of the complaints 
received and the reasons why any are not 
progressed. 
 

 16 Local authorities should be given the 
power to suspend councillors, without 
allowances, for up to six months.  

 

Requires a change in legislation by the 
Government enabling councils to impose a 
suspension. 

 17 The government should clarify if councils 
may lawfully bar councillors from council 
premises or withdraw facilities as 
sanctions. These powers should be put 
beyond doubt in legislation if necessary.  

 

Requires clarification by the Government. 

 18 The criminal offences in the Localism Act 
2011 relating to Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests should be abolished.  

 

Requires a change in legislation by the 
Government. 

 19 Parish council clerks should hold an 
appropriate qualification, such as those 
provided by the Society of Local Council 
Clerks.  

 

Not applicable for the County Council – 
relates to parish council clerks. 

 20 Section 27(3) of the Localism Act 2011 
should be amended to state that parish 
councils must adopt the code of conduct 
of their principal authority, with the 
necessary amendments, or the new 
model code.  

 

Not applicable for the County Council – 
relates to district and parish councils. 

 21 Section 28(11) of the Localism Act 2011 
should be amended to state that any 
sanction imposed on a parish councillor 
following the finding of a breach is to be 
determined by the relevant principal 
authority.  

 

Not applicable for the County Council – 
relates to parish councillors. 

 22 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) 
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 
2015 should be amended to provide that 
disciplinary protections for statutory 
officers extend to all disciplinary action, 
not just dismissal.  

 

Requires a change in legislation by the 
Government. 

 23  The Local Government Transparency 
Code should be updated to provide that 
local authorities must ensure that their 
whistleblowing policy specifies a named 

Subject to members’ views, discussions 
can take place with the external auditor to 
ascertain if they are agreeable to this 
recommendation on a voluntary basis in 

157



contact for the external auditor alongside 
their contact details, which should be 
available on the authority’s website.  
 

advance of any change in legislation.  

 24 Councillors should be listed as 
‘prescribed persons’ for the purposes of 
the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998. 
  

Requires a change in legislation by the 
Government. 

 25  Councillors should be required to attend 
formal induction training by their political 
groups.  National parties should add 
such a requirement to their model group 
rules.  

Each political group will have its own 
arrangements/requirements regarding 
ethical standards training. 
 
Note - The Council provides training on 
ethical standards and the Council’s 
Members’ Code of Conduct as part of its 
member induction process.  Ongoing 
training is also provided as part of the 
member learning & development 
programme.  
 

 26 Local Government Association corporate 
peer reviews should also include 
consideration of a local authority’s 
processes for maintaining ethical 
standards.  

 

Matter for the LGA. 

 
Best Practice Recommendations 
 

 1  Local authorities should include 
prohibitions on bullying and harassment  
in codes of conduct.  These should 
include a definition of bullying and 
harassment, supplemented with a list of 
examples of the sort of behaviour 
covered by such a definition. 
  

Currently contained in paragraphs 3.1 and 
3.2 of the Council’s Code.  Amendments to 
the guide to the Code will be considered to 
incorporate a wider definition of bullying in 
accordance with the Committee’s 
recommendations.  

 2  Councils should include provisions in 
their code of conduct requiring 
councillors to comply with any formal 
standards investigation, and prohibiting 
trivial or malicious allegations by 
councillors  

Not currently incorporated into the Council’s 
Code. This is, however, an important 
aspect of ethical conduct because of the 
strong public interest in an effective 
standards system, the maintenance by 
members of an ethical culture and showing 
appropriate respect for the process, and the 
avoidance of the waste of public funds 
through non-compliance and misuse.   
Members views are sought on the 
potential amendment to the Code as 
recommended.  

158



 3 Principal authorities should review their 
code of conduct each year and regularly 
seek, where possible, the views of the 
public, community organisations and 
neighbouring authorities. 

The Council’s code was last reviewed by 
the Corporate Governance Committee in 
September 2017.  Members’ views are 
sought on the recommendation for 
annual review and consultation.  

 4 An authority’s code should be readily 
accessible to both councillors and the 
public, in a prominent position on a 
council’s website and available in 
council premises.  
 

The Council’s Code is embedded in the 
Constitution and, as recommended, is 
already made available on the Council’s 
website in a prominent positon both as part 
of the Constitution and on the complaints 
and comments webpage.   It is also made 
available in hard copy to any visitor on 
request.  
  

 5 Local authorities should update their 
gifts and hospitality register at least 
once per quarter, and publish it in an 
accessible format, such as CSV. 

Members currently update their register of 
interest with details of any gifts and 
hospitality received as and when necessary 
on an ongoing basis and any 
changes/additions to a members register so 
notified are immediately published on the 
Council’s website.  Members are also 
invited to review and update their register 
annually and this includes details of gifts 
and hospitality received.   Members’ views 
are sought on the recommendation for a 
quarterly review. 
 

 6 Councils should publish a clear and 
straight forward public interest test 
against which allegations are filtered 

Complaints are filtered at present against 
the Council’s adopted assessment criteria 
which satisfy the public interest test. 
Members’ views are sought on whether 
the criteria currently used (attached) are 
sufficiently clear. 

 7 Local authorities should have access 
to at least two Independent Persons. 

The Council appointed five Independent 
Persons in 2016 for a period of 4 years.  

 8 An Independent Person should be 
consulted as to whether to undertake 
a formal investigation on an allegation, 
and should be given the option to 
review and comment on allegations 
which the responsible officer is 
minded to dismiss as being without 
merit, vexatious, or trivial. 
 

The Council’s procedure is compliant with 
this recommendation and provides broad 
discretion to the Monitoring Officer and the 
Member Conduct Panel to consult with an 
Independent Person at any stage in the 
process.  

159



 9 Where a local authority makes a 
decision on an allegation of 
misconduct following a formal 
investigation, a decision notice should 
be published as soon as possible on 
its website, including a brief statement 
of facts, the provisions of the code 
engaged by the allegations, the view 
of the Independent Person, the 
reasoning of the decision-maker, and 
any sanction applied. 
 

The Council publishes such decisions on its 
website following a formal investigation as 
part of the minutes of the Member Conduct 
Panel meeting. This includes the 
information referred to in this 
recommendation.  
 
Members are asked to give a view on 
whether any other form of reporting 
should be considered - for example, a 
specific complaints web page. 

 10 A local authority should have 
straightforward and accessible 
guidance on its website on how to 
make a complaint under the code of 
conduct, the process for handling 
complaints, and estimated timescales 
for investigations and outcomes. 

As recommended, the Council’s website 
has clear and accessible guidance on how 
to make a complaint and on the process 
that will be followed once this has been 
received.  A specific form has also been 
created which allows residents to 
make/submit complaints on line, or they 
can email or write to the Monitoring Officer 
direct (see - 
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-
council/how-the-council-works/councillors-
and-conduct/councillor-code-of-conduct) .  
This guidance does not, however, contain 
any detail on the timescales for 
investigation and outcome, as each 
complaint varies and is managed 
accordingly.    
Members’ views are sought on whether 
the guidance should be amended to 
include broad indicative timescales.  
 

 11 Formal standards complaints about 
the conduct of a parish councillor 
towards a clerk should be made by 
the chair or by the parish council as a 
whole, rather than the clerk in all but 
exceptional circumstances. 

Not relevant to the County Council. 

 12 Monitoring Officers’ roles should 
include providing advice, support and 
management of investigations and 
adjudications on alleged breaches to 
parish councils within the remit of the 
principal authority. They should be 
provided with adequate training, 
corporate support and resources to 
undertake this work. 

Not relevant to the County Council. 

160

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/councillors-and-conduct/councillor-code-of-conduct
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/councillors-and-conduct/councillor-code-of-conduct
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/councillors-and-conduct/councillor-code-of-conduct


 13 A local authority should have 
procedures in place to address any 
conflicts of interest when undertaking 
a standards investigation.  Possible 
steps should include asking the 
Monitoring Officer from a different 
authority to undertake the 
investigation. 

The Council’s current guidance provides for 
the Monitoring Officer to arrange for any 
investigation to be undertaken by the 
Deputy Monitoring Officer, another officer of 
the Council or commissioned externally 
(which could include therefore use of a 
Monitoring Officer from a different 
authority).  
 

 14 Councils should report on separate 
bodies they have set up or which they 
own as part of their annual 
governance statement, and give a full 
picture of their relationship with those 
bodies. Separate bodies created by 
local authorities should abide by the 
Nolan principle of openness, and 
publish their board agendas and 
minutes and annual reports in an 
accessible place. 

 

The arrangements established in respect of 
ESPO, which is a separate body which the 
Council has set up/owns in part, already 
satisfy the recommendations made.  
Documents for meetings are made 
available on the Council’s website and 
officers and members appointed to this 
body are obliged to comply with the 
Council’s Members’ and Employee Codes 
of Conduct. The arrangements will be 
reviewed to ensure the best practice 
recommendations apply to all parts of the 
ESPO business including its trading 
company. 
 

 15 Senior officers should meet regularly 
with political group leaders or group 
whips to discuss standards issues. 

Meetings with group leaders currently take 
place on a regular basis.  Though such 
meetings are not standards focused, such 
issues can and are discussed as and when 
necessary.  Such meetings do not involve 
the group whips.   Members views are 
sought on whether or not more formal 
arrangements should be put in place as 
recommended.    
 

 

161



CRITERIA FOR ASSESSING COMPLAINTS 
 
The criteria set out below will be used by the Monitoring Officer and the 
Member Conduct Panel to assess complaints and decide whether they should 
be investigated. 
 
1. Where the information provided is not sufficient to make a decision as to 

whether the complaint should be referred for investigation or other action, no 
further action will be taken on the complaint.  If further information is received, 
the matter will be reconsidered. 

 
2. Where the member complained about is no longer a member of the authority 

but is a member of another authority, the complaint will be referred to the 
Monitoring Officer of that authority to consider. 

 
3. Where the matter complained about has already been subject to a previous 

investigation or other action, it is unlikely that further action will be warranted 
unless substantial new evidence is produced by the complainant and there is 
something more to be gained by pursuing the matter further. 

 
4. Where a considerable period of time has passed since the alleged conduct and 

there would be little benefit in taking action now, it is likely that further action will 
not be warranted. 

 
5. Where the complaint is considered too trivial or not sufficiently serious it is 

unlikely that further action will be warranted.  Where a complaint is judged to be 
relatively minor a balance needs to be drawn between the need to address the 
complaint against the resources which might be involved in undertaking an 
investigation and a hearing. 

 
6. Where a complaint appears to be malicious, politically motivated or tit for tat, it 

is unlikely that further action will be warranted, unless the behaviour alleged is 
exceptionally serious or significant. 

 
7. Where a complaint relates to the content of a political leaflet, it is unlikely that 

further action will be warranted unless the contents enter the realm of extreme 
and deliberately offensive remarks about other people. 

 
8. Where a complaint relates to name calling between members or the use of rude 

or inappropriate language, it is unlikely that further action will be warranted, 
unless there is a special factor to the allegation such as a threat of violence.  

 
9. Complaints that come from council decisions, the implementation of council 

policy (even where this is apparently flawed), the competence of members or 
the accuracy of their statements will not usually warrant investigation. 

 
10. An anonymous complaint should only be referred for investigation or some 

other action if it includes documentary or photographic evidence indicating an 
exceptionally serious or significant matter. 

162



 
 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 10 MAY 2019 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE PROGRESS REPORT 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

 
Purpose of Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to: - 
 

a. provide a summary of work conducted during the period 5 January to 
26 April 2019; 

b. report on progress with implementing high importance 
recommendations; 

c. provide a further brief update on the Internal Audit Service’s resource. 
 

Background 
 

2. Under the County Council’s Constitution, the Committee is required to monitor 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function, which is provided 
by Leicestershire County Council’s Internal Audit Service (LCCIAS).  To do 
this, the Committee receives periodic reports on progress against the annual 
Internal Audit Plan. 
   

3. Most planned audits undertaken are of an ‘assurance’ type, which requires 
undertaking an objective examination of evidence to reach an independent 
opinion on whether risk is being mitigated.  Other planned audits are of a 
‘consulting’ type, which are primarily advisory and guidance to management.  
These add value, for example, by commenting on the effectiveness of controls 
designed before implementing a new system.  Also, unplanned ‘investigation’ 
type audits may be undertaken.  Internal audit staff also undertake other 
control environment related work. 
 

Summary of progress against the Internal Audit Plan 2018-19 
 

4. This report provides in Appendix 1 a summary of work undertaken between 5 
January and 26 April 2019. 
 

5. For assurance audits (pages 1 and 2 of Appendix 1) an ‘opinion’ is given, i.e. 
what level of assurance can be given that material risks are being managed.  
There are usually four levels: full; substantial; partial; and little.  ‘Partial’ ratings 
are normally given when the auditor has reported at least one high importance 
recommendation, which would be reported to this Committee and a follow up 

 
163 Agenda Item 11



 
 

audit would ensue to confirm action had been implemented.  Occasionally, the 
auditor might report a number of recommendations that individually are not 
graded high importance but collectively would require a targeted follow up to 
ensure improvements have been made. 
 

6. LCCIAS also undertakes consulting/advisory type audits (page 3).  Where 
these incur a reasonable amount of resource, they are also included. 
Examples include advice, commentary on management’s intended control 
design and framework and potential implications of changes to systems, 
processes and policies.  Once more, a number of information security risk 
assessments were reviewed and comments provided back to the Information 
Governance Service. 
 

7. Page 4 of Appendix 1 informs of: - 
 

a. Where LCCIAS either undertakes or assists with unplanned 
investigations.  These are not reported to the Committee until the final 
outcome is known.  This quarter, another investigation was started and 
two small scale investigations were concluded. 

b. ‘Other control environment/assurance work’, which gives a flavour of 
where internal auditors are utilised to challenge and improve 
governance, risk management and internal control processes which 
ultimately strengthens the overall control environment. 

 
8. Page 5 of Appendix 1 shows an example of where LCCIAS auditors are 

utilised to undertake work assisting other functions.  An Assistant Auditor 
undertook an insurance claim investigation.  Also, in order to remain effective, 
LCCIAS staff regularly attend training and development events and both 
midlands and national internal audit network events.  A summary of events 
attended during the last quarter is also shown on page 5.    
 

Progress with implementing high importance recommendations 
 

9. The Committee is also tasked with monitoring the implementation of high 
importance recommendations.  Appendix 2 details high importance (HI) 
recommendations and provides a short summary of the issues surrounding 
these.  The relevant manager’s agreement (or otherwise) to implementing the 
recommendation and implementation timescales is shown.  Recommendations 
that have not been reported to the Committee before or where LCCIAS has 
identified that some update has occurred to a previously reported 
recommendation are shown in bold font.  Entries remain on the list until the 
auditor has confirmed (by specific re-testing) that action has been 
implemented. 
 

10. To summarise movements within Appendix 2: - 
 

a. New – Corporate Resources (Property Contracts Awards; 
Leicestershire Schools Music Service) Public Health/A&C (Substance 
Misuse Strategy – Residential Rehabilitation) 

b. Extend - None  

164



 
 

c. Closed – A&C - Area office safes  
 

Internal Audit Service Resources 
 

11. An experienced long serving Senior Auditor left the Authority at the end of 
February.  However, at the beginning of April two experienced and qualified 
auditors were employed on an initial 12 week agency basis and they are 
settling in well.  In addition, a further CIPFA trainee has been seconded from 
Leicester City Council for five months.  Work continues on a structure review. 

 
Resource implications 

 
12. There are no resource implications arising directly from this report. The cost of 

agency staff is being met from staffing budgets. 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

13. There are no discernible equal opportunities implications resulting from the 
audits listed. 
 

Recommendation 
 

14. That the contents of the routine update report be noted 
 
Background Papers 
 
The Constitution of Leicestershire County Council 
 
Report to the Corporate Governance Committee on 25 July 2018 - Internal Audit 
Plan for 2018-19 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

 
None. 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service 
Tel: 0116 305 7629 Email: neil.jones@leics.gov.uk 

 
Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 - Summary of Internal Audit Service work undertaken between 

5 January and 26 April 2019 
Appendix 2 - High Importance Recommendations 
 

165

mailto:neil.jones@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Summary of Internal Audit Service Work – 5th January to 26th April 2019                             Appendix 1 

Assurance Audits 

Department Entity Final report (or 

position at 26/4) 

Opinion HI Rec’n 

Children & Family Services Woodcote Primary School 27-Feb-19 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Sketchley Hill Menphys Nursery 12-Mar-19 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Griffydam Primary School 7-Mar-19 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Newlands Community Primary School 27-Mar-19 Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud - Corporate Induction Process 04-Mar-19 Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud - Employment of Social Care 

Professionals 

27-Feb-19 Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud - Imprest Accounts 11-Apr-19 Substantial  No 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud – Supplier VAT Number Validation 27-Feb-19 Full No 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud - Due Diligence Process - Leasing of 

LCC Industrial Units and other Commercial Properties 

(Serious & Organised Crime) 

26-Apr-19  Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Key ICT Controls 23-Apr-19 Substantial  No 

Consolidated Risk Windows 10 Project 25-Mar-19 Substantial No 

Corporate Resources Leicester-Shire School Music Service 13-Feb-19 Partial Yes 

167



2 

 

Corporate Resources Property contract awards 28-Feb-19 Partial Yes  

Corporate Resources Treasury Management 1-Mar-19 Substantial No 

Public Health Substance Mis-use Strategy – Residential 

Rehabilitation Service 

16-Apr-19 Partial Yes 

Public Health Re-Commissioning of Sexual Health Services 8-Feb-19 Substantial No 

168



3 

 

Consulting audits 

Department Entity Final report (or position at 26/4) 

Consolidated Risk ISRA – Notify.Gov Signed off 13/02/19 

Consolidated Risk Coroners Signed off 21/03/19 

Consolidated Risk Tethering Ongoing  

Consolidated Risk PSN - In March 2019, LCC obtained its PSN certificate valid 

until April 2020. Advice has been given by Internal Audit 

through the PSN working Group. 

Ongoing  

Corporate Resources Fit for the Future Project – IAS continues to liaise with the 

Project Team and Nottingham City Council internal auditors. 

IAS received the Organisational Impact Assessments 

completed following the first round of workshops. These will 

be reviewed to determine what impact any process/system 

changes will have on the Council’s control environment. 

Ongoing 

Corporate Resources  Review of the following Policy and Procedures 

 Advisory re replacement of GCSx 
 

Ongoing  

 

 

 

 

 

169



4 

 

Investigations concluded 

Environment & Transport Staff theft of waste received at LCC waste sites. Combination of staff resignations, dismissals 

and final warnings issued (5 staff in total). 

Corporate Resources Deceased pensioner – forged life certificate  Reported to Police but because overseas 

(NZ) no action – amount (£3.5K) written off 

 

Other control environment/assurance work 

Department Entity Final report (or position 

at 26/4) 

Adults & Communities  Personal Property Working Group Ongoing 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud – attended meeting with DCLG procurement fraud lead.  Ongoing  

Consolidated Risk Property & Occupants Risk Management Group Ongoing 

Consolidated Risk  Prepare April risk management update to CGC including challenge risk scores Ongoing 

Consolidated Risk Reviewed Directors’ self-assessments of governance and assurance to enable 

the Annual Governance Statement to be prepared. Attended Senior Management 

group to agree the AGS   

Complete 

Consolidated Risk National Fraud Initiative Reports distributed to individual departmental contacts Ongoing 

Consolidated Risk Reporting Fraud – Local Government Transparency Code – publish 30 April  Complete.  

Environment & Transport  Assistance with quarterly stock checks (4 of 4 complete) Complete  

 

170



5 

 

Work assisting other functions 

Department Entity   Position 

Corporate Resources  Assistance with insurance investigations Ongoing 

 

Training, development and networks attended during the quarter 

 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum  

 Ethical standards and governance; External audit perspective on governance; Review of AGS and local codes and Local authority 

governance (National Audit Office) 

Institute of Internal Auditors – ICT Audit update 

 Emerging Technologies; Operational Resilience; Cyber Resilience; Third Party Assurances and Digital Transformation (e.g. what the 

Strategy should cover)   

CIPFA Data Analytics for Fraud 

 Current risks within the Counter Fraud Strategy; Understanding the power of data; Approaches to using Data Analytics; Understanding 

the use of technology in Data Analysis and Data cleansing and data sharing  

IA Networks 

 National/Midlands Heads of Internal Audit groups – procurement fraud; GDPR compliance; forming the annual HoIAS opinion 

171



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix 2 

 

High Importance Recommendations at 26 April 2019 

 
Audit Title 

(Director) 

Summary of Finding(s) and Recommendation(s) Management Response Action Date 

(by end of) 

 

Confirmed 

Implemented 

Reported May 

2019 

    

Property 

Contracts 

Awards 

(CR) 

 

Management requested an audit of the award of 

property maintenance contracts and the allocation 

of work. Whilst the audit identified poor practice 

and control, no evidence came to light of any 

wrong doing. Management agreed to act on a 

number of recommendations to strengthen 

control. 

Agreed and a number of key 

improvements have already been 

made. 

 

Regular monthly property meetings 

attended by operational and strategic 

property colleagues have been 

established which provide an 

environment to build relationships and 

trust. The meetings also support joint 

working on initiatives and enable 

information sharing and visibility to 

projects and plans in both service 

areas.  

 

Extra commissioning support resource 

have been secured to assist with the 

development and procurement of new 

frameworks and to re-tender existing 

frameworks which are due for review.  

 

Operational Property Services have 

worked with the Commissioning 

Support Unit to develop a procurement 

approval process to ensure that senior 

property managers have visibility of 

June 2019  

173



 

2 

 

the planned, procurement approach, 

market engagement and the selection 

and appointment of contractors onto a 

framework. 

 

The AD and Head of Service have held 

regular meetings to follow up actions 

post- audit, including regular meetings 

with the relevant budget and contract 

manager in Operational Property 

Services. 

 

Communications have been 

disseminated to managers and budget 

holders reminding them to minimise 

any off-contract spend and identify any 

areas where a new contract or 

framework should be developed for 

supplies or services. 

 

Internal Audit Service will further 

review the management information 

system in late spring. 

 

Leicestershire 

Schools Music 

Service 

(CR) 

 

At management’s request a review of the 

financial, operational and governance 

arrangements in place surrounding the Leicester-

Shire Schools Music Service (LSMS) and it’s at 

arm’s length charity, the Leicester-Shire Music 

and Cultural Trust (LMCT) was undertaken. This 

review included the separation of responsibilities 

between both the LSMS and the LMCT and to 

assess that proper procedures are in place for the 

administration of ensembles.  

 

Agreed 

 

Work is underway to develop new 

operational and governance processes 

which will separate and clarify the 

respective roles of the Trust and the 

LSMS. This will include amended Job 

roles, contracts and alternative 

transport arrangements. 

September 2019   

174



 

3 

 

A number of recommendations and an action plan 

for implementation were agreed with 

management, including improved governance 

arrangements, clearer job roles and 

responsibilities, revised contracts and overtime 

arrangements, revise procurement of transport.  

 

Whilst none of the recommendations was deemed 

individually as “high importance” collectively the 

recommendations will require a targeted follow 

up to ensure improvements have been made. 

 

Substance 

Misuse Strategy 

– Residential 

Rehabilitation 

 

(PH & A&C)  

Findings: - 

 

1. An incorrect discharge date had been input 

to the case management system which 

allowed a provider to be overpaid by just 

over £36,000 for over a year 

2. Whilst the budget is complex (placements 

not directly made by the budget holder and 

contains other charges), monitoring 

procedures were not sufficiently robust. 

Responsibility for the Residential 

Rehabilitation budget is in the process of 

being transferred from Adults & 

Communities to Public Health.  This will 

give the opportunity for current systems 

and processes, for example with regard to 

budget monitoring, to be reviewed by 

Public Health and, where necessary, 

strengthened. 

 

Recommended  

 

1. Recover the overpayment with immediate 

Agreed 

 

1. Recovery by raising a debt is 

underway 

2. When the budget transfers to 

Public Health it will ensure a 

list of individuals that have been 

agreed via the new panel system 

is kept and reviewed monthly 

against invoices and spend.  

Providers will be contacted to 

cross reference invoices 

submitted with individuals in 

rehabilitation.   

 

June 2019  

175



 

4 

 

effect and review current systems to 

determine how controls failed to identify 

this significant error and what processes 

can be modified moving forward to 

prevent recurrence, e.g. tighter budget 

monitoring. 

2. Monthly budget monitoring should 

confirm that all charges to the budget are 

to relevant providers and for current 

service users, cross referencing to a 

dynamic schedule of service users to 

facilitate this process. 

 

176



 

5 

 

 
Reported January 

2018 

    

Office Safes 

(A&C) 

An investigation into the potential misuse of a 

service user’s funds identified that the employee 

under suspicion had been able to deposit a large sum 

of cash into an area office safe, with no evidence of 

questions asked nor checks undertaken and no record 

of the deposit. The safe also contained cash and other 

valuable items held on behalf of service users which 

are not covered by the LCC insurance policy. Visits 

to other sites revealed similar with improvements 

required for controlling access and recording 

contents. 

 

The Department had previously identified gaps in its 

management of service user’s personal property, 

including that in safes and had instigated a multi-

function working group to review and improve 

practice and put into place a policy. Recommended 

that finalisation of the policy should be expedited and 

rolled out to Area Offices regarding safes and 

contents. Unannounced follow up audit visits will 

take place. 

Agreed  

 

The policy was approved at the 

Department’s Management Team (6 

February). 

  

Internal Audit Service will undertake 

further unannounced checks on 

whether procedures are being 

complied with. 

 

 

March 2018 

 

Extend to end of 

June 2018; 

September 2018 

 

January 2019 

 

April 2019 

Yes 

Audit/CGC/19-20/May19/Appendix 2 HI Progress Report      Last Revised 26 April 2019     

   

177



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
10 MAY 2019 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE – ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 

 
 
Purpose 
 
1. To provide the Corporate Governance Committee (the Committee) with 

an annual report on work conducted by the Internal Audit Service.  It is 
then intended to distribute the report to all members of the Council.  

 
Background 
 
2. The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) has delegated responsibility for 

arranging a continuous internal audit.  Under the County Council’s 
Constitution, the Committee is required to monitor the adequacy and 
effectiveness of Leicestershire County Council Internal Audit Service 
(LCCIAS).  One of its specific functions is to consider the Head of 
Internal Audit Service’s (HoIAS) annual report. 

 
Internal Audit Service Annual Report 

 
3. Part 2, ‘Internal Control’ of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) 

provides at section 5 ‘Internal Audit’ that, ‘A relevant authority must 
undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance’. 

 
4. The relevant standards are the United Kingdom Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards (PSIAS) revised in April 2017, and the guidance is 
provided by the accompanying CIPFA Local Government Advisory Note 
(LGAN). 

 
5. The PSIAS require the HoIAS to provide an annual report to ‘the Board’ 

timed to support the annual governance statement. The Internal Audit 
Charter defines the Corporate Governance Committee as the Board and 
recognises that it should formally approve the HoIAS’ annual report. 

 
 

179 Agenda Item 12



6. The annual report must include: 
a. an annual internal audit opinion on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Council’s control environment; 
b. a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived; 
c. a comparison of the work actually undertaken with the work that 

was planned including a summary of the performance of the 
internal audit function; 

d. a statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the results of 
the internal audit Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme (QAIP); 

e. any issues the HoIAS judges particularly relevant to the 
preparation of the annual governance statement. 
 

7. The annual report for 2018-19 is provided in the Appendix. Although not 
a PSIAS requirement, the annual report will be made available to all 
members of the County Council. The report includes the HoIAS opinions 
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s control 
environment (the framework of governance, risk management and 
internal control). The opinions are also contained in the draft AGS. 

 
8. Annex 1 provides detail on how the annual internal audit opinion was 

formed, defines types of audits, the components of the control 
environment and what it is designed to achieve and provides a caveat on 
any opinion reached. 

 
9. Annex 2 lists the audits undertaken during the year. For assurance 

audits the individual audit opinion is given. The Annex also contains 
details of other relevant work undertaken. 

 
10. Annex 3 shows the HoIAS April 2019 self-assessment of conformance 

to the PSIAS and Annex 4 shows the revised Quality Assurance & 
Improvement Programme (QAIP) and actions required in 2019-20. 

 
11. Headlines from the report are: - 

a. Reasonable assurance sub-opinions were given for all three of 
the governance, risk management and internal control 
components of the control environment; 

b. The majority of assurance audits conducted returned substantial 
assurance ratings. Those where less assurance was given will 
be subject to further audit scrutiny; 

c. 87% of jobs were completed by the date of this report, with a 
relatively small carry over; 

d. Days provided increased slightly but this will continue to be a 
priority to be addressed with further recruitment in 2018-19; 

e. There was a budget underspend; 
f. Customer satisfaction remained positive; 
g. The HoIAS self-assessed that LCCIAS continues to generally 

conform to the PSIAS.  

180



Resource Implications 
 
12. The Internal Audit Service budget was considerably underspent primarily 

due to not filling vacancies and long term absences. This has not 
significantly affected coverage but will be rectified in 2018-19  

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
13. There are no specific equality and human rights implications contained 

within the annual summary of work undertaken.   
 
Recommendations 
 
14. That the Committee notes the Internal Audit Service annual report for 

2018-19. 
 

Background Papers 
 
The Constitution of Leicestershire County Council 
Accounts and Audit Regulations (Amendment) 2015 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (revised from April 2017) 
The Internal Audit Plan 2018-19 
 
Circulation under Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
None 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Neil Jones, Head of Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Services 
Tel: 0116 305 7629 
Email: neil.jones@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
List of Appendices 
  
Appendix Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018-19 

 
Annex 1
  

The HoIAS Annual Opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the control environment 2018-19 
 

Annex 2
  

Summary of Internal Audit Service work supporting the HoIAS 
2018-19 opinion 

Annex 3  Summary self-assessment of conformance with PSIAS – April 
2019 
 

Annex 4 Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme (QAIP) – April 
2019 

  

181

mailto:neil.jones@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



  Appendix 

1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
           
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Neil Jones CPFA, Head of Internal Audit Service, 
Leicestershire County Council 

 

26th April 2019 

183



  Appendix 

2 

 

LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 

 
 
Background 

 
1. A common set of Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) was adopted 

in April 2013 and revised from April 2017. The PSIAS encompass the 
mandatory elements of the Global Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA Global) 
International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) as follows: - 

i. The Mission of Internal Audit  
ii. Definition of Internal Auditing 
iii. Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing  
iv. Code of Ethics 
v. International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal 

Auditing 
 

2. Additional requirements and interpretations for the local government sector 
have been inserted into the PSIAS and all principal local authorities must 
make provision for internal audit in accordance with the PSIAS. 
 

3. The objectives of the PSIAS are to: - 
a. define the nature of internal auditing within the UK public sector 
b. set principles for carrying out internal audit in the UK public sector 
c. establish a framework for providing internal audit services, which add 

value to the organisation, leading to improved organisational processes 
and operations 

d. establish the basis for the evaluation of internal audit performance and 
to drive improvement planning 
 

4. The PSIAS require the Head of Internal Audit Service (HoIAS) to provide an 
annual report to ‘the Board’ (Corporate Governance Committee) timed to 
support the annual governance statement. 
 

5. The PSIAS state that the annual report must include: 
a. an annual internal audit opinion on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk and internal control 
frameworks (i.e. the control environment) and disclosure of any 
qualifications to the opinion, together with the reasons for the qualification 

b. a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived (including 
reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies) and disclosure of any 
impairments or restriction in scope 

c. a comparison of the work actually undertaken with the work that was 
planned including a summary of the performance of the internal audit 
function against its performance measures and targets 

d. a statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the results of the 
internal audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) 
and progress against any improvement plans resulting from a QAIP 
external assessment. 

e. any issues the HoIAS judges particularly relevant to the preparation of the 
annual governance statement 

184



  Appendix 

3 

 

 
The Annual Internal Audit Opinion on the Adequacy and Effectiveness of 
Leicestershire County Council’s Control Environment 
 
6. Annex 1 provides detail on how the annual internal audit opinion was 

formed, explains the types of audits undertaken, the components of the 
control environment and what it is designed to achieve, and provides a 
caveat on any opinions reached.  
 

7. Based on an objective assessment of the results of individual audits 
undertaken, actions by management thereafter, and the professional 
judgement of the HoIAS in evaluating other related activities, the following 
sub-opinions have been drawn:-  
 
Governance 
 
Nothing of significance, adverse nature or character has come to the HoIAS 
attention. As such reasonable assurance is given that the Council’s 
governance arrangements are robust.  

 
Risk management 
 
Management has shown good engagement around risk, has welcomed the 
independent review of risk management processes and agreed to implement 
audit recommendations, which further mitigate risk. Therefore reasonable 
assurance is given that risk is managed. 
 
Financial and ICT Control 
 
Reasonable assurance can be given that the Council’s core financial and I&T 
controls remain strong. 
 

8. At the time of writing this report, the outcomes of 9 audits hadn’t been 
concluded with management. It is unlikely there will be any significant 
changes to the sub opinions. 
 

A summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived 
 
9. Annex 2 lists the audits and other work undertaken by LCCIAS during the 

year and where appropriate contains the individual audit opinion. 
 

10. A high proportion of the audits undertaken were ‘assurance’ type defined as 
‘An objective examination of evidence for the purpose of providing an 
independent assessment’. The majority of the audits returned a ‘substantial 
assurance’ rating, meaning the controls in place to reduce exposure to risks 
to achieving the system's objectives were well designed and were being 
operated effectively. On the occasions when there were recommendation(s) 
to bring about improvements, they did not have a high importance (HI) rating 
signifying a particularly serious control weakness had been identified. 
 

11. Six audits were graded ‘partial assurance’ rating. This was because either 
high importance (HI) recommendations (scored against the corporate risk 
management criteria) were identified denoting there was an absence of, or a 

185



  Appendix 

4 

 

weakness in control and achievement of the service’s objectives was open to 
material risk exposure; or whilst there were not any individual HI 
recommendations, the combined sum of the other recommendations was 
sufficient to grade the audit only partial assurance. HI 
recommendations/partial assurance ratings are reported in summary to 
Corporate Governance Committee (the Committee) and they stay in the 
Committee’s domain until the HoIAS has confirmed (by specific re-testing) 
that action has been implemented.  
 

12. Whilst there were only a small number of HI recommendations and the 
HoIAS is satisfied that senior management and Members pay rigorous 
attention to implementing them, he will actively monitor and report slippage in 
implementation which might indicate increasing pressures and strains on the 
control environment.  
  

13. A wide range of ‘consulting’ type audits was undertaken. These can be 
defined as, ‘Advisory and related client service activities, the nature and 
scope of which are intended to add value and improve an organisation’s 
governance, risk management and control processes’. 
 

14. LCCIAS audited 21 of the County’s maintained schools and results were very 
encouraging with all but one of them being graded at substantial assurance. 
 

15. LCCIAS either undertook or assisted (provided guidance and advice to 
management) with 8 new investigations. In 2018-19 investigations have 
continued to use a lot of resource and extended over a lengthy period of 
time. The outcomes of investigations are reported to the Committee only 
once they are concluded so as not to jeopardise any formal (disciplinary or 
Police) investigations. Activity on investigations is produced annually to meet 
the requirements of the Local Government Transparency Code.    
 

16. LCCIAS is the Council’s co-ordinator for provision of data into the biannual 
‘National Fraud Initiative’ (NFI) a nationwide counter-fraud data-matching 
exercise. Outputs from the last round of data matching continued to be 
explored. Additionally, LCCIAS continued to provide information for the 
DCLG funded projects for counter fraud initiatives led by Leicester City 
Council.  
  

17. The PSIAS require that the HoIAS should disclose where reliance is placed 
on work by other assurance bodies. Nottingham City Council Internal Audit 
(NCCIA) provides the internal audit function for East Midlands Shared 
Services (EMSS). During the year NCCIA conducted (amongst others) audits 
of payroll and HR functions, accounts receivable and accounts payable 
transactions and governance. The Head of Internal Audit for NCCIA 
concluded that a “significant” level of assurance can be given that internal 
control systems were operating effectively within EMSS.  
 

18. A ‘potential impairment’ to LCCIAS’ independence and objectivity 
(responsibility for the corporate risk management framework) is declared in 
the Internal Audit Charter. The Charter will need to be reviewed and revised 
in 2019-20 in light of PSIAS guidance on the role of the internal audit function 
in counter fraud activity. 

186



  Appendix 

5 

 

19. The HoIAS is also responsible for the compilation of the Annual Governance 
Statement and oversight of the insurance function and chairs a group 
specifically engaged in the Council’s property and occupants risk. Managing 
these functions gives the HoIAS greater insight into forming an opinion on 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment.  

 
 
A comparison of work undertaken with work planned including a summary of 
the performance of the internal audit function  
 
20. The tables below show performance both in terms of number of audits and 

days allocated. 
 

Table 1 : Overall performance against 2018-19 internal audit plan 
 
 Audits Complete @ 26/4  Incomplete @ 26/4 

Assurance audits 56 47 9 

Consulting audits 35 31 Ongoing = 4 

Investigations - new 8 8 0 

Other control environment 25 18 Ongoing = 7 

Total 124 104 20 

Previous year (at 6/4/18) 120 84 36 

  
21. Internal audit plans are increasingly short term statements of intent rather 

than guaranteed coverage and need to be flexible and retain contingency to 
adapt to changes in risk and priorities. The 2018-19 plan contained a number 
of potential areas for audit that for a variety of reasons didn’t come to fruition 
but were replaced (especially by work on investigations). Only 9 assurance 
audits were ‘incomplete’ at 26 April 2019. Some resource has already been 
utilised in 2019-20 in completing these audits. 

 
22. By 26th April, assurance and consulting audits and investigations (which by 

their nature can have a very long tail) concluded were almost 87% against a 
target of 90%.  
 

23. Total combined assurance ‘productive’ days spent on work relating to the 
County Council were slightly up on the year before. This was primarily due 
to: - 
a. Utilising 2 x trainees for a good part of the year 
b. An emphasis on ‘quick win’ counter fraud audits 
c. Attaining the benefits of synergy in that audits undertaken could also be 

undertaken at Leicester City Council  
d. The service review of the merged team has slipped 
 
Results were: - 
 
Function 
 

18-19 days Previous +/- 

1. Audits (assurance, consulting, investigations) 813 746 67 

2. Other functions (risk, AGS, insurance) 177 197 -20 

3. Corporate duties 79 18 61 

4. Assist other functions 1 5 -4 

Total 1,070 966 104 

 

187



  Appendix 

6 

 

24. The days provided across functions 1-3 was slightly over 10% above that in 
2017-18, and has allowed sufficient breadth of coverage to enable an overall 
positive opinion to be given on the control environment. Nevertheless, the 
HoIAS still considers this to be at the lower end of the scale considering the 
size of the organisation and its risks. Conclusion of the service review and 
recruitment to vacancies remains vital.  
 

25. Employee savings from the aforementioned vacancies and long term 
absences which weren’t filled through agency spend as originally anticipated, 
led to a budget underspend (£65k).  
 

26. The Council’s bi- annual customer services survey (2018) returned 83% of 
respondents to be somewhat satisfied and very satisfied. Returns of audit 
satisfaction questionnaires remain low. Nevertheless, those being audited 
continue to rate service received and value added as ‘very satisfied’.  
 

27. The Service is still using two unique case management systems. However, 
one company has acquired the other and they are developing a single 
platform ready for launch in early 2020.  Nevertheless, the HoIAS can 
continue to provide assurance that there has been rigorous monitoring of due 
professional care and quality. 

 
A statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the results of the internal 
audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) 

 
 

28. The HoIAS undertook a self-assessment of LCCIAS’s conformance to the 
PSIAS. The outcome is summarised in Annex 3. In line with PSIAS Standard 
1321, the HoIAS considers that the County Council’s internal audit activity 
fully conforms with the International Standards for the Professional Practice 
of Internal Auditing because it has achieved the outcomes described in the 
Definition of Internal Auditing, Code of Ethics and Standards and the results 
of the quality assurance and improvement programme support this 
statement.  
 

29. PSIAS Standard 1322 requires the HoIAS to confirm that (based on the 
results of the self-assessment) there were not any significant deviations from 
the PSIAS. 
 

30. The HoIAS has also reviewed the service’s Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme (QAIP) and updated for further actions required. 
This is included as Annex 4 and shows some slippage in actions from last 
year but nothing significant that affects a robust service being provided.   

 
Any issues the HoIAS judges particularly relevant to the preparation of the 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
  
31. The HoIAS has responsibility for overseeing the compilation of the AGS. As 

part of the process, a ‘governance group’ comprising the Director of Law & 
Governance, the Chief Financial Officer, the Head of Democratic Services 
and the Assistant Chief Executive and the HoIAS reviews and agree any 
significant governance issues that should be reported in the AGS.  
 

188



  Appendix 

7 

 

32. For the year 2018-19, there were no significant matters to add to the AGS. 
  
            
  
 

Neil Jones CPFA 
Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service 
LCCIAS 
 
26th April 2019. 

189



This page is intentionally left blank



   

    

 

 
Annex 1 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Neil Jones CPFA, Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service, 

Leicestershire County Council 

 

26th April 2019 

191



   

    

 

Background 
 
The Head of Internal Audit and Assurance Service, Corporate Resources Department 
undertakes the role and responsibilities of the County Council’s Head of Internal Audit Service 
(HoIAS). The HoIAS manages Leicestershire County Council’s Internal Audit Service (LCCIAS). 
LCCIAS has been externally assessed as generally conforming to the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards (the PSIAS) revised from April 2017. The PSIAS require the HoIAS to give an 
annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s control environment 
(its framework of governance, risk management and control). The PSIAS definition of the 
control environment is found at the end of this document, along with further explanation from 
the Institute of Internal Auditors about what an effective system of internal control facilitates.  
 
The HoIAS annual opinion is macro-assurance over a defined period of time (financial year 
2018-19) and combines: 
 

 An objective assessment, based on the results of individual audits undertaken and 
actions taken by management thereafter. Individual internal audit opinions on what level 
of assurance can be given as to whether risk is being identified and adequately 
managed are formed by applying systematic grading to remove any elements of 
subjectivity. Annex 2 lists the audits and other work undertaken during the year and 
where appropriate the individual audit opinion. Individual audit engagements provide 
targeted micro-assurance. 

 

 Professional judgement of the HoIAS based on his knowledge, experience and 
evaluation of other related activities. This provides a holistic, strategic insight into the 
County Council’s control environment.  

 
The results of the above, when combined, form the basis for the HoIAS opinion on the overall 
adequacy of the Council’s control environment (see definitions). However, the caveat at the end 
of the document explains what internal control cannot do i.e. no system of internal control can 
provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, nor can LCCIAS give 
absolute assurance, especially given its limited resource. The work of LCCIAS is intended only 
to provide reasonable assurance on the adequacy of the control environment on the basis of 
the work undertaken and known facts.  
 
Governance related internal audit work 
 
A wide range of assurance and consulting audits (see definitions) and maintained school audits 
were undertaken (coverage includes school governance). On the whole, recommendations 
were relatively minor and where they related to governance, it was to improve it, i.e. not to have 
to establish it. 
 
The HoIAS attends the Corporate Governance Committee (the Committee) to present plans 
and reports on the internal audit activity, and other reports (in his wider role) on risk 
management (including property & occupants risk, counter fraud and insurance) and the Annual 
Governance Statement. Overseeing these other functions enables him to gauge Director and 
Member level governance at first hand. The HoIAS reviews other reports presented to the 
Committee and monitors Members’ engagement as part of his holistic governance assessment.  
 
The HoIAS is part of a senior management group also comprising the Director of Law & 
Governance, the Chief Financial Officer, the Head of Democratic Services and the Assistant 
Chief Executive which each year reviews the draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS).  

192



   

    

 

 
The HoIAS has regular discussions with the Chief Executive, Directors and particularly the 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Monitoring Officer (MO) on governance issues and 
related internal audit aspects. The HoIAS attends Corporate Management Team when required. 
 
HoIAS opinion: - Nothing of significance, adverse nature or character has come to the 
HoIAS attention. As such reasonable assurance is given that the Council’s governance 
arrangements are robust.  
 
Risk management related internal audit work 
 
The majority of audits planned and conducted were ‘risk based’ i.e. ensuring that the Council’s 
management identifies, evaluates and manages risk to achieving its objectives i.e. ensuring 
controls are in place to reduce risk exposure. 
 
Internal Audit Service provides challenge and advice to the completion of Information Security 
Risk Assessments (ISRA). Information and technology (I&T) plays a critical role for all services 
provided by the Council. Therefore, it is vital that I&T risks are effectively identified, assessed, 
managed and reviewed at the appropriate times. 
 
Failure to identify, assess and mitigate I&T risks can lead to serious data breaches, non-
compliance with legislation, financial losses and disruption to business activities. The increase 
in cyber-crime should be taken into account. The Council is not immune to cyber-attacks and 
needs to take all necessary steps to identify and mitigate the risks associated with an attack. 
 
Other risk management work was undertaken in consulting audits and developments to the 
overall control environment.  
 
On the whole, recommendations were relatively minor and they related to improving risk 
management i.e. not to have to establish it.  
 
The HoIAS continues to have responsibility for countering the risk of fraud and the overall 
administration, monitoring and reporting of the corporate risk management framework. The 
PSIAS require that this ‘potential impairment’ to independence and objectivity for the HoIAS is 
declared in the Internal Audit Charter. Counter fraud policies and initiatives and the risk 
management framework are developing at pace. Risk scores and escalations continue to be 
challenged. There was positive engagement in counter fraud risk management at both Director 
(Corporate Management Team) and Member (the Committee) level.  
 
An independent assessment of the effectiveness of the risk management framework was 
undertaken in 2018-19 by experts aligned to the Council’s insurers. The outcome was on the 
whole positive but with some recommendations for improvement, which are being worked 
through    
 
The HoIAS chairs the Property & Occupants Risk Management Group, set up predominantly to 
review the Council’s fire risk position following the Grenfell Tower tragedy, but widened to 
include safety to individuals. Good progress has been made throughout the year and an annual 
report was presented to Corporate Governance Committee.  
 
 
 

193



   

    

 

HoIAS opinion: Management has shown good engagement around risk, has welcomed 
the independent review of risk management processes and agreed to implement audit 
recommendations, which further mitigate risk. Therefore reasonable assurance is given 
that risk is managed. 
 
Financial (and I&T) Controls related internal audit work 
 
A number of assurance audits were undertaken that were predominantly a financial or I&T 
control theme. Almost all returned substantial assurance, and all grants audited met their 
conditions in order to be certified. 
 
In addition, maintained school audits were undertaken where audit coverage includes school 
financial control. All but one of those audits returned substantial assurance. 
 
Whilst the results of audits conducted on financial and I&T controls were on the whole positive, 
there continues to be a need for investigations into control failings, albeit not specific to any 
particular service or theme. Management acted quickly and appropriately to improve the 
controls required.  
 
Some Internal Audit Service resource was diverted to assist clearing homecare payments 
queries. Whilst this is not a pure audit function is does provide a viewpoint on financial control. 
 
HoIAS opinion: Reasonable assurance can be given that the Council’s core financial and 
I&T controls remain strong.  
 
Other assurances – East Midlands Shared Service (EMSS) 
 
Internal audit activity for EMSS is the responsibility of the Head of Internal Audit (HoIA) at 
Nottingham City Council. For 2018-19 the HoIA concluded, ‘On the basis of audit work 
undertaken during the 2018-19 financial year, covering financial systems, risk and governance, 
the Head of Internal Audit (HoIA) at Nottingham City Council concluded that a “significant” level 
of assurance could be given that internal control systems are operating effectively within EMSS 
and that no significant issues had been discovered. 
 

194



   

    

 

Definitions 
 
The revised 2017 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the PSIAS) define the following: - 
 
Assurance audit 
 
An objective examination of evidence for the purpose of providing an independent assessment 
on governance, risk management and control processes for the organisation. Examples may 
include financial, performance, compliance, system security and due diligence engagements. 
 
Consulting audit 
 
Advisory and related client service activities, the nature and scope of which are agreed with the 
client, are intended to add value and improve an organisation’s governance, risk management 
and control processes without the internal auditor assuming management responsibility. 
Examples include counsel, advice, facilitation and training. 
 
Control 
 
Any action taken by management, the board and other parties to manage risk and increase the 
likelihood that established objectives and goals will be achieved. Management plans, organises 
and directs the performance of sufficient actions to provide reasonable assurance that 
objectives and goals will be achieved. 
 
Control Environment 
 
The attitude and actions of the board and management regarding the importance of control 
within the organisation. The control environment provides the discipline and structure for the 
achievement of the primary objectives of the system of internal control. The control environment 
includes the following elements: - 
 

 Integrity and ethical values 

 Management’s philosophy and operating style 

 Organisational structure. 

 Assignment of authority and responsibility. 

 Human resource policies and practices. 

 Competence of personnel. 
 
The Institute of Internal Auditors further explains that the control environment is the foundation 
on which an effective system of internal control is built and operated in an organisation that 
strives to achieve its strategic objectives, provide reliable financial reporting to internal and 
external stakeholders, operate its business efficiently and effectively, comply with all applicable 
laws and regulations, and safeguard its assets.                                                                               
 

195



   

    

 

Caveat 
 
The Financial Reporting Council in an Auditing Practices Board briefing paper, ‘Providing 
Assurance on the Effectiveness of Internal Control’ explains what internal control cannot do, 
namely: -    
 
‘A sound system of internal control reduces, but cannot eliminate, the possibility of poor 
judgement in decision making, human error, control processes being deliberately circumvented 
by employees or others, management overriding controls and the occurrence of unforeseen 
circumstances. A sound system of internal control therefore provides reasonable, but not 
absolute assurance that an organisation will not be hindered in achieving its objectives, or in the 
orderly and legitimate conduct of its business, by circumstances which may reasonably be 
foreseen. A system of internal control cannot, however, provide protection with certainty against 
an organisation failing to meet its objectives, or all material errors, losses, fraud or breaches of 
laws and regulations’. 

196



  Annex 2 

1 

 

Summary of Internal Audit Service work supporting the HoIAS opinion 2018-19 

Assurance audits 

Department Entity Final report (or 

position at 26/4/19) 

Opinion HI Rec’n 

Adults & Communities Alerts to Care Packages  18-Apr-18 Substantial No 

Adults & Communities Area office safes  – security/contents - procedures 18-Apr-19 Partial Yes  

Adults & Communities Managing finances of vulnerable people Draft pending TBC TBC 

Children & Family Services Placements Budget (LAC Action Plan) 3-Aug-18 Substantial  No 

Children & Family Services Wymeswold CE Primary School 27-Apr-18 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Woodstone Community Primary School 4-May-18 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Thurlaston Primary School 3-May-18 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Heather Primary School 11-May-18 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Oxley Primary School 25-May-18 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Foxton Primary School 29-Jun-18 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Scalford CE Primary School 6-Jul-18 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Warren Hills Nursery 23-Oct-18 Substantial  No 

Children & Family Services The Hall School 26-Oct-18 Substantial  No 

197



  Annex 2 

2 

 

Children & Family Services Sketchley Hill Primary School 13-Nov-18 Substantial  No 

Children & Family Services Thistly Meadow Primary School 15-Nov-18 Substantial  No 

Children & Family Services Westfield Junior School 23-Nov-18 Substantial  No 

Children & Family Services Swithland St Leonard’s CE Primary School 29-Nov-18 Substantial  No 

Children & Family Services Wigston Menphys Nursery School 28-Nov-18 Substantial  No 

Children & Family Services Cossington CE Primary School 11-Jan-19 Partial Yes 

Children & Family Services St Botolphs CE Primary School 6-Dec-18 Substantial  No 

Children & Family Services Desford Community Primary School 14-Dec-18 Substantial  No 

Children & Family Services Woodcote Primary School 27-Feb-19 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Sketchley Hill Menphys Nursery 12-Mar-19 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Griffydam Primary School 7-Mar-19 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Newlands Community Primary School 27-Mar-19 Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Aged Debt Management 12-Jun-18 Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Faster Payments 23-Apr-18 Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Request For Payment Procedures 07-Aug-18 Substantial  No 

Consolidated Risk Data Quality - Card Access 10-Oct-18 Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Key ICT Controls (2017-18 completion) 06-Aug-18 Substantial No 

198



  Annex 2 

3 

 

Consolidated Risk Key ICT Controls (2018-19) 23-Apr-19 Substantial  No 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud – Travel Claims 18-Sept-18 Substantial  No 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud - Corporate Induction Process 04-Mar-19 Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud – Employ’t Social Care Professionals 27-Feb-19 Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud - Imprest Accounts 11-Apr-19 Substantial  No 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud – Supplier VAT Number Validation 27-Feb-19 Full No 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud - Gifts and Hospitality Registers Draft pending TBC TBC 

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud – Overtime W-I-P TBC TBC 

Consolidated Risk (Serious & Organised Crime) Counter Fraud - Due 

Diligence Process - Leasing of LCC Industrial Units and 

other Commercial Properties  

26-Apr-19  Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk (Serious & Organised Crime) Counter Fraud – Taxi 

contracts 

 

Draft pending TBC TBC 

Consolidated Risk (Serious & Organised Crime) Counter Fraud – Data 

washing (with Police) 

 

W-I-P TBC TBC 

Consolidated Risk Windows 10 Project 25-Mar-19 Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Information security incident management Draft pending TBC TBC 

Consolidated Risk Payments made using ‘generic’ element Draft pending TBC TBC 

199



  Annex 2 

4 

 

Consolidated Risk Income remittance reconciliation Draft pending TBC TBC 

Corporate Resources  WAN Replacement Project - Implementation Stage 30-Jun-18 Substantial  No 

Corporate Resources Leicester-Shire School Music Service 13-Feb-19 Partial Yes 

Corporate Resources Property contract awards 28-Feb-19 Partial Yes  

Corporate Resources Treasury Management 1-Mar-19 Substantial No 

Environment & Transport Vehicle fleet – motor insurance database 6-Jul-18 Substantial No  

Environment & Transport Recycling & household waste sites – income Draft pending TBC TBC 

Public Health Clinical Governance Framework 8-May-18 Partial Yes 

Public Health Usage of Grant 11-May-18 Full No 

Public Health Residential Rehabilitation Service 16-Apr-19 Partial Yes 

Public Health Re-Commissioning of Sexual Health Services 8-Feb-19 Substantial No 

200



  Annex 2 

5 

 

Consulting audits 

Department Entity Final report (or position at 

26/4/19) 

Consolidated Risk Information Security Risk Assessments – 28 x advisory/commentary on 

higher importance risk assessments 

Complete  

Consolidated Risk GDPR Readiness – part 2  Complete  

Consolidated Risk Risk management related advice on Local Pension Board and Bradgate 

Park Trust 

Complete  

Corporate Resources Fit for the future (Oracle replacement project) - working with Nottingham 

City Council internal auditors to avoid any duplication of work. Continue to 

liaise with NCC on any key risks coming out from the FFtF workshops that 

impact on LCC systems and processes. 5 ISRAs are due. The first on 

Data Migration has been reviewed and comments provided to the ICT 

Work stream Lead. 

Ongoing 

Corporate Resources Advice to Corporate HR regarding M-Star contract, specifically the 

avoidance of penalty fees when agency staff move from temporary to 

permanent positions. 

Concluded – no formal report 

Corporate Resources  Attendance at Information Assurance Group  and IT Security Controls 

Groups;  2 x Advisory; 1 x IDEA work for Pensions; Review of 15 x Policies 

and Procedures (mainly due to GDPR changes): also; 

 Advisory on the replacement of the current penetration test 
provider  

 Current issues being identified from the ISRA process, information 
provided to the Data Protection Officer 

Ongoing  

201



  Annex 2 

6 

 

 Outcome and results of the LGA Cyber Security stocktake and way 
forward  

 Advisory re replacement of GCSx 
 

Consolidated Risk Wide Area Network – control advice Ongoing  

Corporate Resources Follow up External Audit ISA260 Report 2017/18 Complete  

Consolidated Risk PSN - In March 2019, LCC obtained its PSN certificate valid until April 

2020. Advice has been given by Internal Audit through the PSN working 

Group. 

Ongoing  

 

202



  Annex 2 

7 

 

Investigations 

Department Entity Outcome  

Adults & Communities Irregular practice for service user bank accounts.  No funds stolen. Resigned  

Adults & Communities Accusations by relative that the funds of a service user in residential care 

were being misused  

Care home visited. No evidence 

to support 

Chief Executive Evidence of claiming single persons discount whilst co-habiting Passed to council tax authority 

EMSS  Academy email hacked; bank coordinates changed on a payment form by 

an unauthorised person, which was then sent to EMSS for a payment 

which was made.   

Reported to Action Fraud.  

Environment & Transport  Misuse of travel pass by a service users family member Passed on to issuing LA 

Corporate Resources Suspected ‘false’ invoicing Unproved but re-training 

Environment & Transport Staff theft of waste received at LCC waste sites. Combination of staff 

resignations, dismissals and 

final warnings issued (5 staff in 

total). 

Corporate Resources Deceased pensioner – forged life certificate  Reported to Police but because 

overseas (NZ) no action – 

amount (£3.5K) written off 

 

 

 

203



  Annex 2 

8 

 

Other control environment/assurance work 

Department Entity Final report (or position at 

26/4/19) 

Adults & Communities Personal Property Working Group Ongoing 

Adults & Communities  Disabled Facilities Grant Complete 

Children & Family Services Supporting Families Claim (August 2018) Complete 

Children & Family Services Supporting Families – assist preparation for and review external audit Complete  

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud 

 planning for NFI 2018-19 

 progressing blue badge amnesty campaign 

 blue badge investigations in conjunction with Leicester City 
Council 

 publishing requirements under the Local Government 
Transparency Code 

 CIPFA fraud and corruption tracker (annual survey), 

 write new tax evasion policy and revision of anti-fraud policies and 
procedures and fraud risk assessment ; 

 contact Police for serious and organised crime work 

 arranged comms for International Fraud Awareness Week 

 attended Police fraud training 

 meeting with DCLG procurement fraud lead 
. 

Ongoing  

Consolidated Risk Completion of ‘inquiries’ forms to assist the annual audit of the Council’s 

financial statements & brief Chair of Corporate Governance Committee 

Complete  

Consolidated Risk Property & Occupants Risk Mgt Group – 11 meetings; Annual Report Ongoing 

204



  Annex 2 

9 

 

Consolidated Risk External Audit requirements – provision of narrative for 2017/18 Financial 

Statements on governance and risk related areas 

Complete  

Consolidated Risk Annual Governance Statement 2017-18:and 2018-19 

 Update and issue Departmental and Corporate guidance; 

 Collate responses from Departments, further challenges and 
comments from Chief Officers; 

 Compilation of draft and final AGS 
.                

Complete 

Consolidated Risk Consultation, review, and approval of the Risk Management Strategy and 

Policy 

Complete  

Consolidated Risk Re-establishment of the Corporate Risk Management Group and 3 x 

meetings 

Meeting in May and ongoing (2 

meetings scheduled) 

Consolidated Risk Work with Business Intelligence – Performance Team to refine and 

reformat excel risk register reports for preparation of Tableau 

Dashboards for Corporate and Departmental Risk Registers 

Complete  

Consolidated Risk Provision of ongoing risk management training to new Departmental Risk 

Champions and Senior Officers on specific risk areas 

Ongoing 

Consolidated Risk Development of risk management pages for SharePoint Ongoing 

Consolidated Risk Attendance at East Midlands Region Risk Management Group (2x) and 

share risk management related information with Group Members 

Ongoing  

Consolidated Risk Welfare Reform Risk:  Meeting held with Departmental Risk Champions 

(June) to share the information produced by Chief Executive (Policy 

Team) with a view to : 

 raise awareness of welfare reform risks; 

Complete  

205



  Annex 2 

10 

 

 Officers to consider impacts on their individual departments. 

Consolidated Risk NFI 2018-19 Data download completed   Complete 

Consolidated Risk National Fraud Initiative Reports distributed to departmental contacts Ongoing 

Consolidated Risk Reporting Fraud – Local Government Transparency Code – publish 30 

April  

Complete.  

Corporate Resources Carbon Reduction Targets – note energy efficiency improvements are 

reducing consumption which reduces charges 

Signed off 11-07-18 

Environment & Transport Grant Reviews & Certifications: 

 Integrated Transport, Highway Maintenance, Pothole Action Fund 
and National Productivity Incentive Fund 

 Pothole Fund additional grant 

 Flood Resilience Funding 

 Bus Service Operators Grant  
 

Complete 

Environment & Transport  Assistance with quarterly stock checks (4 of 4 complete) Complete  

 

Work assisting other functions 

Department Entity   Position 

Adults & Communities Following a formal complaint, Audit Manager appointed as Decision 

Maker. 

Staff member resigned. 

Corporate Resources An Audit Manager assisted with interviews within Strategic Finance Staff appointed. 

Corporate Resources  Assistance with insurance investigations Ongoing 

206



  Annex 2 

11 

 

Training, development and networks attended during  (mid October 2018 to 31 March 2019) 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum  

 Professional internal audit standards - Role of the HoIAS; Annual reports and the HoIAS opinion; widening the scope of internal audit 

 Auditing culture & ethics; financial resilience; cyber risks; projects and efficiencies in audit planning 

 Governance – role of the leadership team and audit committee; LEPs and financial resilience 

 Ethical standards and governance; EA perspective on governance; Review of AGS and local codes and LA governance (NAO) 

Networks 

 National/Midlands HoIAS groups – pension pooling; risk appetite; use of data analytics; provide input to the NAO study on LA  

governance and accountability; procurement fraud; GDPR compliance; forming the annual HoIAS opinion 

 Contract audit group – including Public Health contracts 

 Information technology audit group – including GDPR position; use of data analytics; payment card industry related controls 

 Local Audit Quality Forum – practitioners including EA’s guidance to risks and assurances for financial resilience and sustainability 

Institute of Internal Auditors – ICT Audit update 

 Emerging Technologies; Operational Resilience; Cyber Resilience; 3rd Party Assurances and Digital Transformation 

CIPFA Data Analytics for Fraud 

 Current risks within the Counter Fraud Strategy; Understanding the power of data; Approaches to using Data Analytics; Understanding 

the use of technology in Data Analysis and Data cleansing and data sharing  

Leicestershire Police - fraud and cyber protection 

207



T
his page is intentionally left blank



LCCIAS –Summary Self-Assessment Conformance to PSIAS – April 2019    Annex 3 
 

 

Requirement 
 

GC PC DNC Notes supporting assessment at 26th April 2019 

Mission of internal audit Y    

Definition of Internal Auditing Y    

Core Principles Y   QAIP records the need to better demonstrate quality and 
continuous improvement 

Code of Ethics 
 

Y 
 

  Review of self-assessments underway. Interest have been 
lodged, reviewed and decisions made 

1000 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 
 

Y   In the process of informing of internal audit’s right of access  
etc to City Council 

1100 Independence and Objectivity 
 

Y    

1110 Organisational Independence 
 

Y   Chief Executive and Board do not take part in performance 
appraisal and resource setting 

1111 Direct Interaction with the Board 
 

Y   1112 - Adequate safeguards (e.g. independent, objective 
review) in place for risk management role 

1120 Individual Objectivity 
 

Y    

1130 Impairment to Independence or Objectivity 
 

Y    

1200 Proficiency and Due Professional Care Y    

1210 Proficiency 
 

Y   ICT audit resource is stretched – under review  

1220 Due Professional Care 
 

Y    

1230 Continuing Professional Development 
 

Y    

1300 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
 

Y   Designed & implemented but needs updates on actions  

1310 Requirements of the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme 
 

Y    

209



LCCIAS –Summary Self-Assessment Conformance to PSIAS – April 2019    Annex 3 
 

 

1311 Internal Assessments 
 

Y   Periodic self-assessments not undertaken by another source 
 

1312 External Assessments 
 

Y   EQA was completed in April 2018 ‘generally conforms’. 

1320 Reporting on the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme 
 

Y   Now established reporting against the QAIP 

1321 Use of ‘Conforms with the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing’ 
 

Y    

1322 Disclosure of Non-conformance 
 

Y    

4 Performance Standards 
 

Y    

2000 Managing the Internal Audit Activity 
 

Y    

2010 Planning 
 

Y   Risk-based plan has not previously incorporated or linked to a 
strategic or high level statement 

2020 Communication and Approval 
 

Y    

2030 Resource Management 
 

Y   Openly reported resource issues and plans during year  

2040 Policies and Procedures 
 

Y   Audit manual needs updating to incorporate working 
procedures 

2050 Coordination 
 

Y   Fruitful meetings and sharing of information with 3 x incoming 
External Auditors  

2060 Reporting to Senior Management and the Board 
 

Y    

2070 External Service Provider and Organisational Responsibility for 
Internal Auditing 

Y   I inform City and Fire 

2100 Nature of Work Y    

2110 Governance Y    

210



LCCIAS –Summary Self-Assessment Conformance to PSIAS – April 2019    Annex 3 
 

 

2120 Risk Management 
 

Y    

2130 Control 
 

Y    

2200 Engagement Planning 
 

Y    

2210 Engagement Objectives 
 

Y   Need a further understanding of Value for money criteria 

2220 Engagement Scope 
 

Y   Need a further understanding of significant consulting 
opportunities requirements 

2240 Engagement Work Programme 
 

Y    

2300 Performing the Engagement 
 

Y    

2310 Identifying Information 
 

Y    

2320 Analysis and Evaluation 
 

Y    

2330 Documenting Information 
 

Y    

2340 Engagement Supervision 
 

Y    

2400 Communicating Results  
 

Y    

2410 Criteria for Communicating 
 

Y    

2420 Quality of Communications 
 

Y    

2421 Errors and Omissions 
 

Y    

2430 Use of ‘Conducted in Conformance with the International 
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing’ 

Y    

211



LCCIAS –Summary Self-Assessment Conformance to PSIAS – April 2019    Annex 3 
 

 

2431 Engagement Disclosure of Non-conformance Y    

2440 Disseminating Results 
 

Y    

2450 Overall Opinion 
 

Y    

2500 Monitoring Progress 
 

Y   
 

 

2600 Communicating the Acceptance of Risks 
 

Y    

 
Explanations of ‘conformance’ 
 
GC – “Generally Conforms” means the assessor has concluded that the relevant structures, policies, and procedures of the activity, as well as the processes by 
which they are applied, comply with the requirements of the individual Standard or element of the Code of Ethics in all material respects. For the sections and 
major categories, this means that there is general conformity to a majority of the individual Standards or elements of the Code of Ethics, and at least partial 
conformity to the others, within the section/category. There may be significant opportunities for improvement, but these should not represent situations where the 
activity has not implemented the Standards or the Code of Ethics, has not applied them effectively, or has not achieved their stated objectives. As indicated above, 
general conformance does not require complete/perfect conformance, the ideal situation, “successful practice,” etc. 
 

PC – “Partially Conforms” means the evaluator has concluded that the activity is making good-faith efforts to comply with the requirements of the individual 
Standard or element of the Code of Ethics, section, or major category, but falls short of achieving some major objectives. These will usually represent significant 
opportunities for improvement in effectively applying the Standards or Code of Ethics and/or achieving their objectives. Some deficiencies may be beyond the 
control of the activity and may result in recommendations to senior management or the board of the organisation. 
 

DNC – “Does Not Conform” means the evaluator has concluded that the activity is not aware of, is not making good-faith efforts to comply with, or is failing to 
achieve many/all of the objectives of the individual Standard or element of the Code of Ethics, section, or major category. These deficiencies will usually have a 
significant negative impact on the activity’s effectiveness and its potential to add value to the organisation. These may also represent significant opportunities for 
improvement, including actions by senior management or the board. 
 
Neil Jones 
Head of Internal Audit Service  
Leicestershire County Council 
26th April 2019 

212



LCCIAS - Quality Assurance Improvement Programme – April 2019 – Annex 4 
 

26th April 2019 Page 1 
 

 
Role 
 

 
Responsibilities (& actions required) 

 
Evidence (& actions required) 

Head of Internal Audit Service 
Develop, maintain and report on a 
Quality Assurance Improvement 
Programme (QAIP) 
 

 Develop and maintain the governance structure for the Internal 
Audit Service including: 

o Internal Audit Strategy approved by Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO) (action #1) 

o Internal Audit Charter(s) – revised in line with IASAB 
changes when required and reported to Committees 

o Internal Audit Annual Service Plan 
o Counter Fraud Annual Work Plan 
o Combined Assurance Model  

 Develop and maintain internal audit policy and practice to ensure 
that they conform to the Mission, Purpose, Core Principles and 
Definition of Internal Audit, Code of Ethics and the Standards 

 Undertake an annual PSIAS self-assessment to ensure 
conformance  

 Annual self-assessment against the CIPFA Statement on the role 
of the Head of Internal Audit in Local Government (revised April 
2019 so report to senior management & governance arenas in 
2019) (#9).  

 Annually arrange, review and record staff: - 
o self-assessments against the Standards’ Code of Ethics – 

reminder to review and update 
o declarations of interest ditto 

 Ensure independent external quality assessment is performed at 
least once every 5 years 

 Maintain an improvement plan on the results of ongoing and 
periodic assessments of quality  

 Communicate the results of the QAIP to senior management and 
the appropriate bodies’ committees with responsibility for the 

 Roles and responsibilities are 
clearly identified in job 
descriptions/person specifications 

 Audit Charters approved by 
respective senior management 
and committees responsible for 
the internal audit function  

 Up to date guidance (but requires 
a new Audit Manual) (#2) 

 Annual PSIAS internal self-
assessment and QAIP 
improvement plan (#3)  

 Head of Internal Audit Service 
annual report and opinion on 
governance, risk and control 
includes the results of the QAIP 

 Balanced Internal Audit Plan - 
appropriately resourced  

 Performance framework sets out 
requirements for people strategy 
and performance monitoring (#4). 

 Annual appraisal performance of 
HoIAS by AD Strategic Finance & 
Property ( informed by others) and 
throughout the team using the 
corporate model (being revised 
summer ’18) (#4) 

 HoIAS review of contentious, 

213



LCCIAS - Quality Assurance Improvement Programme – April 2019 – Annex 4 
 

26th April 2019 Page 2 
 

 
Role 
 

 
Responsibilities (& actions required) 

 
Evidence (& actions required) 

internal audit function namely: - 
o Corporate Governance Committee – Leicestershire County 

Council 
o Finance & Audit Subcommittee and Management 

Committee – ESPO 
o Pension Board – Leicestershire Pension Fund 
o Corporate Governance  Committee – Leicestershire Fire & 

Rescue Service 
o Audit & Risk Committee – Leicester City Council 

 Report any significant non-conformance in the appropriate bodies’ 
Annual Report and Annual Governance Statement. 

 Inform  any annual review of the system of internal audit 
undertaken by the organisation 

 Undertake regular stakeholder communications to assess the 
degree to which the Internal Audit Service meets customer 
expectations (formal and informal) (#5)  

 induction programmes, training plans (#6) and associated training 
activities  

 maintain training records and training evaluation procedures 

 ensure professional staff are completing their institutes’ CPD (#7) 

 the ongoing investment in tools to support the effective 
performance of internal audit work (for example data interrogation 
software) 

 Undertake periodic benchmarking and/or obtain information on 
operating arrangements and relevant best practice from other 
similar audit providers for comparison purposes – already done 
through national and midlands networks, TISONLINE, BGF, IIA, 
CIPFA, IFAC etc 

sensitive draft reports and sign off 

 Rotation of team supervision / 
people 
 

214



LCCIAS - Quality Assurance Improvement Programme – April 2019 – Annex 4 
 

26th April 2019 Page 3 
 

 
Role 
 

 
Responsibilities (& actions required) 

 
Evidence (& actions required) 

Head of Internal Audit Service 
Obtain periodic assurance that 
engagement planning, fieldwork 
conduct and reporting 
/communicating results adheres 
to audit standards 

Periodic quality assurance assessments 
Review work performed to ensure conformance with the Mission, 
Purpose, Core Principles and Definition of Internal Audit, Code of 
Ethics and the Standards and LCCIAS policies and procedures – to 
include the following key stages (#7): 
 
Audit Process 
o Ensure engagements were conducted in accordance with 

practice. 
o That the Audit Manager allocated the right people, with 

appropriate skills and experience, to perform the audit  
o Quality of engagement planning and supervision  
o Quality of working papers and evidence to support conclusions 

and recommendations.   
o Depth/scope of Audit Manager review points 
o Quality of communications of results and the final report 
o Assess how well the audit delivered and added value to 

governance, risk and control framework of the organisation 
 

Performance 
o Ensure the work was achieved within budgets (time/pace) 
o Achieved performance standards 

 
People 
o Ensure individual auditors are trained and developed with 

appropriate performance evaluations undertaken at audit 
engagement level and individual performance appraisal are 
completed 

 Recording the outcome of ongoing 
QA – using standard checklist 
based on conformance with 
definition of IA, code of ethics and 
Standards on a sample of audits.  

 Monitoring of the outcome of post 
audit debrief discussions  

 Monitoring of the outcome of post 
audit questionnaire feedback –  

 Monthly 1:1 for Audit Managers 

 Annual performance appraisal and 
6 monthly reviews completed 

 Individual training and 
development plans 

 Service training and development 
plan  

215



LCCIAS - Quality Assurance Improvement Programme – April 2019 – Annex 4 
 

26th April 2019 Page 4 
 

 
Role 
 

 
Responsibilities (& actions required) 

 
Evidence (& actions required) 

Audit Managers 
Obtain on-going assurance that 
engagement planning, fieldwork 
conduct and reporting 
/communicating results  adheres 
to audit practice standards 
 
Undertake engagement 
supervision and review to varying 
degrees 

 

Ongoing monitoring – quality built into the audit process 
Quality checks and oversight undertaken throughout the audit 
engagement ensuring that processes and practice are consistently 
applied and working effectively.   It covers the whole of the audit 
process but primarily these key stages: 
 
 
Engagement Planning 
o Ensure that the audit engagement is allocated with the appropriate 

resources - right people with the right skills to identify significant 
issues 

o Provide suitable instructions at the outset of the engagement 
o Risks relevant to the activity under review have been assessed 

and the scope and coverage of the audit reflects this risk 
assessment 

o Exclusions are sensible 
o Other lines of defence have been identified and recoded 
o Approve the Terms of Engagement (ToE) prior to the 

commencement of the fieldwork 
  

Fieldwork 
o Ensure that audits are conducted as planned and that any 

(significant?) variations are approved in advance of undertaking 
them 

o Ensure that appropriate controls and tests are used to deliver the 
expected assurance results 

o Ensure the correct test score has been applied based on the 
evidence collated 

o Ensure that findings, conclusions and recommendations are 

 ToE agreed with auditors & 
approved  

 ToE monitored for delivery – 
budget and pace 

 Sign off controls and tests to 
ensure compatible with the audit 
scope 

 Review and sign-off working 
papers and draft report 

 Supervision – 1:1 

 Completion of review check list 

 Completion of post audit de-brief 

 Review of customer feedback  

 Quarterly progress meetings with 
large clients County, ESPO, Fire 
and City reports completed for 
each client  

 Annual conflict of interest form &  
assessment at each audit 
engagement 

 Assist HoIAS to follow up on HI 
recommendations and reporting to 
Committees 

 Oversee Business Support 
Service follow up of audit recs  
 

216



LCCIAS - Quality Assurance Improvement Programme – April 2019 – Annex 4 
 

26th April 2019 Page 5 
 

 
Role 
 

 
Responsibilities (& actions required) 

 
Evidence (& actions required) 

adequately supported by relevant, reliable and sufficient evidence 
o Ensure that appropriate working papers have been prepared and 

maintained – with information gathered is adequately described 
and retained.  

o That the evidence gathered identifies the cause and effect 
(impact) of the issues identified and their significance.   

o Ensure that work identified in the planning stage has been 
completed  

 
Communicating results / report 
o Ensuring that reports are accurate, objective, clear, concise and 

timely 
o Obtain assurance  that key findings have been sufficiently 

communicated to the client so no surprises at the closure meeting 
o Review and sign off the draft report 
o Ensure high importance recommendations are re-tested to ensure 

implementation 
o For other recommendations ensure the Business Support Service 

is following up at the required time and gaining sufficient 
information to confirm implementation  

 
Performance 
o Ensure that the work is achieved within the resource budget (time 

budgets and  date span) 
o Sign off Post Audit Debrief with individual auditor at the end of 

each audit engagement identifying opportunities for improvement 
at the audit and individual level 

  
Monitor overall performance of team 

217



LCCIAS - Quality Assurance Improvement Programme – April 2019 – Annex 4 
 

26th April 2019 Page 6 
 

 
Role 
 

 
Responsibilities (& actions required) 

 
Evidence (& actions required) 

o Develop and maintain audit schedule for each client 
o Complete quarterly progress reports for each area of client 

responsibility  
o Undertake regular liaison meetings with clients  

  

218



LCCIAS - Quality Assurance Improvement Programme – April 2019 – Annex 4 
 

26th April 2019 Page 7 
 

 
Role 
 

 
Responsibilities (& actions required) 

 
Evidence (& actions required) 

Auditors 
Behave at all times in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics / Code of 
Conduct. 
Conduct all audit engagements in 
accordance with audit practice 
standards 
 
Promote the standards and their 
use throughout the Internal Audit 
Activity 
Commitment to delivering quality 
services 

Take full responsibility for the sufficiency of audit procedures to find 
out what could be reasonably found by a prudent and informed 
auditor.   
 
Display due professional care  in the performance of their 
responsibilities – maintaining  

o Integrity 
o Objectivity 
o Confidentiality  
o Competency  

 
All work conforms to written policies and practice notes, including: - 
 
Engagement Planning 
 

o Ensuring right resources used  
o Conduct (or be given by the Audit Manager) a preliminary 

assessment of the risks to the activity under review – 
identifying relevant information / potential significant issues 

o Determine the audit approach and scope of the review to 
enable the objectives of the audit engagement to be achieved 
and an assurance opinion to be given on the governance, risk 
and control arrangements of the activity.   Agree this approach 
and the audit work plan with Audit Manager 

o Co-ordinate / correlate audit work with other sources of 
assurances   

o Develop and agree Terms of Engagement client brief – clearly 
articulating the assurance we intend to provide – scope of our 
work and any limitations (what we are not going to review) – 

 Completion of relevant case 
management systems sections   

 Working papers 
o System notes – with linked 

relevant information 
o Testing strategy / results 
o Review 

 Draft report 

 Post Audit De-Brief Document 

 Post Audit Questionnaire 

 Records of 1:1 and individual 
improvement actions 

 Performance appraisal including 
training and development plan 

 Completion of CPD where 
required (#7) 

219



LCCIAS - Quality Assurance Improvement Programme – April 2019 – Annex 4 
 

26th April 2019 Page 8 
 

 
Role 
 

 
Responsibilities (& actions required) 

 
Evidence (& actions required) 

ensure the ToE meets client expectations 
o Adhere to planning practice standards 

 
Fieldwork 

o Adhere to working paper practice standards 
o Ensure that sufficient and relevant work has been performed to 

substantiate findings and that the information has been 
effectively reported to the client on a timely and factual basis. 

o Ensure that the steps identified in the audit plan and audit 
testing programme have been completed effectively 

o Identify sufficient, reliable, relevant and useful information to 
achieve the engagement objectives 

o Document relevant information to support testing results and 
the report 

o Ensure that conclusions and results are based on appropriate 
analyses and evaluations - should be factual, adequate and 
convincing so that a prudent, informed person would reach the 
same conclusions of the auditor.   

 
Communicating results / report 

o Adhere to reporting practice note 
o Communicate significant findings during the audit so no 

surprises at the closure meeting discussing the draft report 
o Draft audit report – meeting the engagement objectives and 

scope giving appropriate conclusions, recommendations and 
action plans.  Provide an overall assurance opinion based on 
significance and importance of the finding / activity. 

o Ensure that reports are accurate, objective, clear, concise and 
timely 

220



LCCIAS - Quality Assurance Improvement Programme – April 2019 – Annex 4 
 

26th April 2019 Page 9 
 

 
Role 
 

 
Responsibilities (& actions required) 

 
Evidence (& actions required) 

 
Performance 

o Audit engagement is delivered on time and within budget 
o Post audit debrief (PAD) is completed for all audit 

engagements identifying what's gone well, lessons learnt and 
any opportunities for improvement 

o Post Audit Questionnaire is completed for all audit 
engagements obtaining customer feedback 

o Audit work plan developed and agreed with Audit Manager 
 

 

 
Role 
 

 
Responsibilities (& actions required) 

 
Evidence (& actions required) 

External Suppliers 
 
Deliver agreed internal audit 
reviews 

Developed and maintain Quality Assurance Improvement Programme  
 
Audit Process 

 Provide draft report and supporting working papers  

 Expected to follow our client engagement process and complete 
quality assurance documents  

Confirmation that they conform to the 
PSIAS 
Complete: 

 planning document 

 Audit check list  

 Review check list  

 Obtain feedback -  Post Audit 
Questionnaire 

 Post Audit Debrief 
 

 

221



LCCIAS - Quality Assurance Improvement Programme – April 2019 – Annex 4 
 

26th April 2019 Page 10 
 

Actions (due date) following review and revision of QAIP in April 2019 

1. Devise internal audit strategy to be approved by Chief Financial Officer (by end of September 2019) 

2. Create an internal audit manual that adequately defines policy and procedures (September 2019) 

3. Build on this inaugural QAIP improvement plan including considering peer review suggestions (ongoing) 

4. Revise IAS performance framework in line with County corporate requirements (June 2019) 

5. Develop more regular formal assessments of IAS quality and value with key stakeholders (June 2019) 

6. Re-introduce formal training plans in APR process (June 2019) 

7. Introduce formal checks on professional staff completing CPD (May 2019) 

8. Re-introduce HoIAS periodic second review of engagement records (May 2019) 

9. Report to SMTs/governance arenas the revised Role of HoIA in LG (July 2019)  

 

 

Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service………………………………………………………..26th April 2019  

               

Declan Keegan, AD Corporate Resources (Strategic Finance & Property)……………………………………26th April 2019 

222



 
 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE - 10 MAY 2019 

 
INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE AUDIT PLAN 2019-20 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide members with information about the 

County Council’s outline Internal Audit Plan for 2019-20 and internal audit 
resource allocated both to other assurance functions and in providing service to 
other organisations. 
 

Background 
 
2. Under the County Council’s Constitution, the Committee is required to monitor 

the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal audit, with a specific 
function to consider the annual Internal Audit Plan, which outlines where audit 
focus will be in 2019-20.  Internal audit is an essential component of the 
Council’s corporate governance and assurance framework.  

 
Construction of the 2019-20 Plan 
 
3. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the PSIAS) which were revised from 

April 2017 require the Head of Internal Audit Service to establish a risk-based 
plan to determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the 
County Council’s agenda and priorities.  The plan must take into account the 
requirement for the Head of Internal Audit Service (HoIAS) to produce an annual 
internal audit opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
control environment.  The scope of internal audit activity should be wide ranging. 

 
4. The PSIAS advise that when constructing the plan, the HoIAS should take into 

account the risk management framework, including using risk appetite levels set 
by management for the different activities or parts of the organisation. 
 

5. The HoIAS has responsibility for the development of, monitoring and reporting on 
the Council’s corporate risk management framework.  In order to conform to 
PSIAS 1130, this potential impairment to independence and objectivity is 
included within the Internal Audit Charter along with controls that would need to 
be applied if an internal audit of the framework was undertaken. 
 

223 Agenda Item 13



 
 

6. An independent ‘health check’ of the Council’s risk management maturity was 
undertaken by a consultant from Risk Management Partners (RMP) in late 
autumn 2018.  His report was overall positive. The consultant considered that the 
work undertaken by the Council since publication of a previous third-party 
(independent) review (2012) has further strengthened the Council’s position in 
respect of risk management standards and practices, thus increasing the 
likelihood of it attaining the higher grading of ‘embedded and integrated’ (4) if it 
were to formally benchmark itself utilising the Alarm CIPFA Benchmarking 
criteria.  Nevertheless, the consultant recognised some issues and suggested 
possible actions to address these. The consultant’s report is shared for 
information with Members under a separate item on the agenda for this meeting. 
Chief Officers will now consider the actions proposed in detail which will feed in 
to a review of the Risk Management Strategy over the summer. The risk 
management Policy Statement was reviewed and revised and received by the 
Committee at its meeting of 18 January 2019 before being approved by Cabinet 
and County Council in February 2019.  
 

7. Overseeing that the corporate framework is being consistently applied, reviewing 
the quarterly updating of department risk registers, confirming their consideration 
by departmental management teams and producing the Corporate Risk Register 
for review by Chief Officers and this Committee, ensures the HoIAS is kept up to 
date with the risk environment.  This increases the HoIAS’ confidence in the 
Council’s approach to identifying, evaluating and managing risk, which in turn 
allows for greater reliance to be placed on management’s risk assessments and 
consequently internal audit resource to be better targeted towards higher risks 
and flexed in accordance with major shifts in the risk environment.  
  

8. The HoIAS is also responsible for developing and promoting the Council’s 
approach to countering the risk of fraud and corruption.  A significant amount of 
work continues including reviews, revisions and developments of a suite of anti-
fraud and corruption policies, procedures, guidance and tools, which enables the 
Council to report conformance to the principles of the CIPFA Code of Practice on 
Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (2014).  An exercise to identify fraud 
risks to the Council is conducted biennially which facilitates targeted counter 
fraud audits and related activity.  Counter fraud campaigns are planned which 
may lead to investigations.  The Council’s exposure to Serious and Organised 
Crime remains a priority and further targeted audits are planned in 2019-20.   
 

9. The HoIAS also oversees the management of the Council’s insurance function. 
This adds to the compendium of knowledge on the Council’s overall risk portfolio 
and can give an indication as to where internal audit assurance may be needed 
e.g. to reduce the possibility of claims occurring. 
 

10. Since September 2017, following the Grenfell Tower fire tragedy, the HoIAS has 
responsibility for chairing a specific group of service experts set up to evaluate 
risks to the Council’s owned and procured properties and persons that occupy 

224



 
 

them.  The scope of the group’s work has increased such that specific risks 
relating to design and build, procurement, health and safety and compliance are 
routinely discussed, which adds to the HoIAS knowledge of risk management.      
 

11. The PSIAS require that the risk-based plan should explain the HoIAS’ approach 
to using other sources of assurance when forming the annual internal audit 
opinion and any work required by LCCIAS to place reliance upon those other 
sources.  The HoIAS is responsible for compiling both the Local Code of 
Corporate Governance and the Annual Governance Statement (AGS).  These 
processes include receiving and reviewing departments’ annual self-
assessments of their governance and assurance arrangements.  Directors are 
requested to identify and record specific examples of other sources of assurance 
both internal and external (e.g. independent assurance from inspections, 
compliance reviews etc.), the objective and scope of the assurance, when it 
occurred and what was the outcome/overall opinion.  Compiling the 2018-19 
AGS has not only revealed some good information on other forms of assurance, 
but also identified where some planned developments have slipped thereby 
adding to the potential for internal audit review.  
 

12. Each individual audit engagement requires the auditor to identify any other 
assurances received.  Where these are considered as fundamental to the 
achievement of objectives, then a view on the robustness of the assurance will 
be formed.  To assist this and avoid subjectivity, guidance developed by the 
Institute of Internal Auditors will be adopted. 
   

13. Additionally, the HoIAS has scope to plan audits that are either outside of, or ‘cut 
across’ risk register boundaries, for example:  
 

a. the requirement to undertake internal audits each year on the key financial 
systems which the Council’s External Auditor has the opportunity to use in 
its judgement of risk when planning the annual audit of the financial 
accounts (the scope of work will continue to be discussed with the 
Council’s External Auditors Grant Thornton); 

b. co-ordinating requests for information to support the National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI) for the Cabinet Office and ensuring any data matches are 
investigated (the previous cycle of NFI which started in October 2018 
continues); 

c. certifications of grants and returns for government departments; 
d. conducting specific follow up audits where high importance (HI) 

recommendations have previously been made to ensure action has been 
taken and the risk has been mitigated;  

e. general advice on governance, risks and controls; researching County 
related emerging issues, and consulting with departments and reporting 
back to them, the Director of Corporate Resources, other Chief Officers 
and the Corporate Governance Committee; 

225



 
 

f. a contingency remains for any unplanned audit work, including 
investigations and other unknowns such as staff vacancies arising or job 
overruns because of unforeseen findings. 

 
14. The 2019-20 plan aims to give the optimum audit coverage within the resources 

available.  Though it is compiled and presented as a plan of work, it must be 
recognised that it is only a statement of intent, and there is a need for flexibility to 
review and adjust it as necessary in response to changes in the Council’s 
business, risks, operations, programs, systems, and controls.  The HoIAS will 
discuss and agree material changes with the Director of Corporate Resources 
and these will be reported to the Committee. 
 

15. Detailed Terms of Engagement covering each audit’s scope and any areas for 
exclusion are agreed with the relevant risk owners in advance of each audit.  The 
Committee will continue to receive quarterly reports on progress against the plan 
detailing the audits completed, the category, what opinion was reached and 
summaries of any high importance recommendations. 

 
Themes emerging in the 2019-20 Plan 
 
16. Risks contained within Corporate and Departmental Risk Registers remain key 

documents to explaining the Authority’s current and future objectives and 
priorities and what are the key risks to achieving them.   
 

17. Areas of focus in 2019-20 include: - 
 

a. The continuing impact of significant financial challenges especially around 
the costs of adults and children’s SEND placements. 

b. Monitoring that new target operating model for adult social care services 
progresses to deliver enhanced outcomes for service users and improved 
ways of working. 

c. Mitigating the significant financial risks faced by the Council in delivering 
the infrastructure necessary to support growth (including a number of 
major capital projects) in the County.  

d. Local arrangements for the Business Rate Retention Pilot for 2019/20. 
e. The control environments supporting significant treasury and capital asset 

investments. 
f. The planning, transition and implementation of the Council’s major 

programme to change its financial, payroll and HR system under the 
banner ‘Fit for the Future’. The HoIAS will revise the joint internal audit 
plan for the programme with his counterpart at Nottingham City Council to 
cover programme assurance, the impacts on each council’s business 
systems and interfaces and those within EMSS. 

g. Developing commercial service offers and ensuring that all income is 
collected. 

226



 
 

h. Robust arrangements for procurement and contract monitoring including 
compliance to the Supplier’s Code of Conduct. 

i. Preparation for the impact of major changes caused by Brexit.  
j. The risks behind failure to further integrate health and social care services 

under the Government’s NHS Long Term Plan. 
k. Dependency on information technology to support both transformational 

change and embedded processes. 
l. The risks of failure to successfully implement systems changes. 
m. Requirements to secure information and data amongst a range of partners 

and users so as to be compliant with GDPR. 
n. Countering the risk of fraud and corruption. 
o. Implementing any governance changes that might arise following the 

National Audit Office report on ‘Local Authority Governance’ and the report 
of the Committee on Standards in Public Life ‘Ethical Standards in Local 
Government’.  

  
18. Resource is utilised in servicing the requirements of the corporate client, e.g. the 

HoIAS professional duties and servicing the Corporate Governance Committee, 
liaison with external auditors, corporate meetings, generic research and advice 
etc. 
 

19. A summary plan of areas where assurance has either been requested or 
otherwise identified is shown in the Appendix attached to this report.  Where 
appropriate, links to the Corporate Risk Register are shown. The Director of 
Corporate Resources will be notified of and approve significant variations.  
  

20. Internal Audit Plans for organisations for which Leicestershire County Council is 
the accountable body, i.e. Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO), 
Leicestershire Local Pension Board and Bradgate Park Trust, or a strategic 
delivery partner (East Midlands Shared Services), are presented to their 
respective governance forums. 
 

21. LCCIAS also provides the internal audit function for Leicester City Council, 
Leicestershire Combined Fire Authority, some academy schools and provides 
some assurance for Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire fire services on fire-service 
pensions, which are administered by the Leicestershire County Council Pension 
Service. 

 
Resource Implications 

 
22. The Service currently has vacancies and needs to replenish its resource in order 

to continue to provide an adequate level of audit.  Over the summer months, the 
HoIAS is due to complete a structure and process review to enable LCCIAS itself 
to be ‘fit for the future’.  This will provide more detail about resource 
requirements, including whether there is a need to run with a fully employed 

227



 
 

establishment or retain a ‘bank’ of call on employees for when demand is high. 
Review of working patterns will also be part of the scope of this exercise. 
 

23. Pending the above, there has been some progress on improving short to medium 
term resource arrangements including: - 
 

a. The commencement of two experienced and highly qualified agency staff 
in April for a minimum of 12 weeks pending conclusion of the 
aforementioned review. 

b. Leicester City Council is seconding a part qualified CIPFA trainee to gain 
internal audit experience from the beginning of May. 

c. A finance and accounting under-graduate placement (to replace the 
incumbent) has been requested, to start from August. 

d. The two County Council CIPFA trainees will swap where they are placed 
in September.   

 
24. There will need to be: - 

 
a. A continuing acceptance that any trainees will require training and 

guidance from other staff that will impact productivity and progress. 
b. Additionally, the HoIAS’ time (and to an extent other staff) will be impacted 

by the structure and process review. 
c. Continuing improvements in working practices and the extension of 

computer assisted audit techniques to further improve auditors’ efficiency. 
Alternative ways of licensing the Service’s data matching facility to enable 
more users are being explored.  

d. Continuing co-ordination of the four County Council (sub) functions to 
optimise the overall assurance that can be given 
 

25. Should the additional resource occur as planned, the HoIAS aims to deliver 
around 1,100-1,200 audit days (assurance, consulting, counter fraud and 
investigations), maintain the corporate days but aim to reduce days allocated to 
risk management, annual governance statement and insurance. 

 
Equal Opportunities Implications 

 
26. There are no discernible equal opportunities implications resulting from the audits 

listed. 
 
Recommendation 

 
27. That the Committee notes the Internal Audit Plan for 2019-20. 
 
Background Papers 
 
The Constitution of Leicestershire County Council 

228



 
 

 
Circulation under the Sensitive Issues Procedure 
 
None. 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service (Head of Internal Audit Service) 
Telephone 0116 305 7629 
Email Neil.Jones@leics.gov.uk 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix – Leicestershire County Council Summary Internal Audit Plan 2019-20 

229

mailto:Neil.Jones@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Leicestershire County Council - Summary Internal Audit Plan 2019-20 Appendix

Department Audit Name Corp Risk Reg Ref

Complete 2018-19 audits

Adults & Communities Managing finances of vulnerable people

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud - Gifts and Hospitality Registers

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud – Overtime

Consolidated Risk (Serious & Organised Crime) Counter Fraud – Taxi contracts

Consolidated Risk (Serious & Organised Crime) Counter Fraud – Data washing (with Police)

Consolidated Risk Information security incident management

Consolidated Risk Payments made using ‘generic’ element

Consolidated Risk Income remittance reconciliation

Environment & Transport Recycling & household waste sites – income

Follow up HI partial assurance ratings

Children & Family Services Cossington CE Primary School

Corporate Resources Property contract awards

Corporate Resources Leicester-Shire School Music Service

Public Health Residential Rehabilitation Service

Asset Risks

Consolidated Risk Property & Occupants Risk Management Group

Environment & Transport Process for Quarterly Stock Checks

Commissioning/Procurement Risks

NOTE: Below is a summary list of audits identified through discussions with senior officers and management where they have requested assurance. 

Whether the audit is undertaken, the priority afforded to it and the resource to be allocated will be determined as other risks and issues arise. 

Consolidated risks are not specific to a department. Where possible there is refernce to the March 2019 corporate risk register. 

231



Leicestershire County Council - Summary Internal Audit Plan 2019-20 Appendix

Department Audit Name Corp Risk Reg Ref

Consolidated Risk Rights of Audit in Procurement Contracts  All 4.1

Consolidated Risk Supplier Contract Monitoring  All 4.1

Consolidated Risk Commissioning & Procurement - esp property contracts  All 4.1

Consolidated Risk Supplier code of conduct - compliance checks 

Compliance Risks

Adults & Communities Deprivation of Liberties Standards Assessments

Children & Family Services Supporting Families Returns

Consolidated Risk GDPR Implementation/compliance

Consolidated Risk IR35  CR 1.7

Corporate Resources Carbon Reduction Targets

Conduct & Counter Fraud Risks

Consolidated Risk Data Washing of Procurement Data

Consolidated Risk Counter Fraud - range of 'mini' audits

Consolidated Risk Gifts & Hospitality & Declaration of Interests Procedures - HoIAS work

Financial Risks

Adults & Communities Personal Budgets

Adults & Communities Learning Disability - Transitions from childrens complex care to adults

Adults & Communities Fee review implementation (transition existing service users and compliance with 

the new arrangements for new placements post go live).

232



Leicestershire County Council - Summary Internal Audit Plan 2019-20 Appendix

Department Audit Name Corp Risk Reg Ref

Children & Family Services Placement of Children with complex (high) needs  C&FS 1.6 & 10.1

Children & Family Services Develop wraparound theraputic support services  C&FS 10.1

Children & Family Services Maximising contributions from health authority where shared responsibility for costs

Children & Family Services Review of high cost placements

Children & Family Services Maintained School visits - governance and financial control

Children & Family Services Maintained School Deficits

Children & Family Services Early Years Funding

Consolidated Risk Management of cash collections

Consolidated Risk National Fraud Initiative

Consolidated Risk Request for Payment Procedures

Consolidated Risk Aged Debt

Consolidated Risk Insurance claims handling system

Consolidated Risk Key Financial Systems

Corporate Resources Treasury and investments management

Corporate Resources Cash collection - Country Parks

Corporate Resources Income collection - LTS

Environment & Transport Health Funded Transport

Adults & Communities Grant - Disabled Facilities

Environment & Transport Grants - Integrated Transport, Highway Maintenance, Pothole Action Fund and 

National Productivity Incentive FundEnvironment & Transport Grants - National Productivity Investment Fund-Hinckley Hub; 

Environment & Transport Grants - Highways Maintenance Additional Funding 

Governance Risks

233



Leicestershire County Council - Summary Internal Audit Plan 2019-20 Appendix

Department Audit Name Corp Risk Reg Ref

Adults & Communities Governance of the sign off for the delivery of the TOM savings and the sign off of the 

contingent fee.

Adults & Communities Developing health and social care integration 

Children & Family Services School Admissions

Consolidated Risk Fit for the Future - Oracle Fusion Project - in conjunction with NCIA  CR 3.6

Consolidated Risk MTFS - financial sustainability and achieving savings (tbc)  All 1.1

Consolidated Risk Brexit - anything from impact assessments  All 6.1

Consolidated Risk Business Rate Retention

Consolidated Risk Capital Asset Investment Scheme

Consolidated Risk Any changes to governance arrangements from 

Public Health TBC

Growth Risks

Adults & Communities Capital development - Social Care Investment Plan.

Adults & Communities Progressing the Collections Hub .

Children & Family Services Capital development - SEND alternative provision

Consolidated Risk S106 Agreements  CE 1.3

Environment & Transport Capital development - major road building

Information & Technology Risks

Adults & Communities Management of Information

Adults & Communities Data Quality C&FS 3.7

Consolidated Risk Telephony Contract

234



Leicestershire County Council - Summary Internal Audit Plan 2019-20 Appendix

Department Audit Name Corp Risk Reg Ref

Consolidated Risk Information security - Training & Awareness

Consolidated Risk Subject Access Requests (SAR's) - Policy & Process

Consolidated Risk Data Sharing Agreements

Consolidated Risk External Hosting Contracts

Consolidated Risk Records management 

Consolidated Risk Social Engineering Penetration Test

Consolidated Risk PSN Accreditation - or equivalent

Consolidated Risk Key ICT Controls

Consolidated Risk Data Quality In Key Applications

Consolidated Risk ICT Policies & Procedures

Corporate Resources ISRA's - Various  All 3.2

People Risks

Children & Family Services Growing mainstream & specialist internal foster care provision 

Consolidated Risk Safeguarding  CFS 5.1

Consolidated Risk Attendance Management  All 7.2

Consolidated Risk workforce planning  All 7.2

Consolidated Risk Mandatory Training

235



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

           
      

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 10 MAY 2019 

 
ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2018/19 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to advise the Committee on the action taken and the 

performance achieved in respect of the treasury management activities of the 
Council in 2018/19. 
 

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 
 
2. Under the CIPFA Code of Practice it is necessary to report on treasury management 

activities undertaken in 2018/19 by the end of September 2019.  This report will be 
referred to the Cabinet in May 2019. 
 

Background 
 

3. The term treasury management is defined as: - 
 

“The management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 
with those risks”. 

 
4. The Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for carrying out treasury 

management on behalf of the County Council, under guidelines agreed annually by 
the County Council. 

 
Treasury Management 2018/19 
 
5. The Treasury Management Policy Statement for 2018/19 was agreed by the full 

Council on 21st February 2018, in relation to the sources and methods of borrowing 
and approved organisations for lending temporarily surplus funds. 
 

6. The criteria for lending to Banks are still derived from the list of approved counter 
parties provided by the County Council’s advisors, Link Asset Services.  The list is 
amended to reduce the risk to the County Council by removing the lowest rated 
counterparties and reducing the maximum loan duration. 

 
7. During the year all outstanding loans were repaid on time with the interest due. 

 

237 Agenda Item 14



 
 

8. For local authority lending the policy is unchanged with no loans permitted in excess 
of 12 months duration or £10 million in value.  In May 2018, Moody’s, one of the 
world’s best-known credit rating agencies, re-affirmed its view that the UK local 
government sector has a high credit quality.  The implication being that the sector 
continues to be a good risk for lenders. 
 

9. During the year there were no divergences from the agreed Policy.  
 

10. In 2016 this Committee agreed that when a counterparty was downgraded whilst a 
loan was active, and the unexpired period of the loan, or the amount on loan, would 
then breach the limit at which a new loan could be made to that counterparty, this 
would be included in the quarterly treasury management report to this Committee. 
There were no such incidents during 2018/19.  
 

11. Following the August 2018 increase in UK base lending rates to 0.75% the impact on 
short-dated investments in Money Market Funds improved in line with the increase by 
October 2018.  However, the medium to longer term rates included the impact of the 
rate increase immediately and also priced in expectation for future base rate rises 
which created opportunities to improve returns. 

 
12. At the August 2018 Bank of England (BoE) Monetary Policy Committee meeting, 

market guidance from the BoE indicated that any increases in Bank rates are likely to 
be at a gradual pace and to a limited extent.  The premium for lending long to highly 
rated UK financial institutions continued to out-weigh the risk of a rate increase, so 
investments for periods of 6 months and 12 months were made during the year.  
Rates have remained on hold since August 2018.   

 
13. The BoE stated in the March 2019 Monetary Policy Committee meeting that any 

future rate changes will depend significantly on the nature and timing of the UK’s 
withdrawal from the EU and the movement could be in either direction.  The BoE 
Governor Mark Carney has remained dovish due to the prospect of Brexit, but did 
imply in his press conference that in case of a long Brexit extension, the MPC may 
move to raise rates in the summer.  However, the Council’s treasury advisers 
suggest the chances of a near term rate hike are slim at best and the prospect of a 
move towards the end of the year is only 50%. They also reiterated their stance to 
always act to achieve the 2% inflation target. 

 
14. On the debt portfolio, no new loans were taken.  A total of £0.5m was repaid in the 

year which was in respect of three Equal Instalments of Principal loans, thereby 
reducing the overall balance of the loan portfolio, but marginally increasing the 
average ‘Pool’ rate.   

 
15. The Authority has not raised any external loans since August 2010 and external debt 

is around £100m lower than it was at its peak in November 2006.  There are no 
current plans to raise any further external debt, and opportunities to reduce it will be 
considered if they are cost effective. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

238



 
 

Position at 31st March 2019  
 

16. The Council’s external debt position at the beginning and end of the year was as 
follows: - 

Average Average Average Average

Rate Life Rate Life

Fixed Rate 

Funding

- PWLB £161.1m 6.77% 32 yrs £160.6m 6.77% 31 yrs

-Market £    0.0m n/a n/a £    0.0m n/a n/a

Variable 

Rate 

Funding:

- Market (1) £103.5 m 4.37% 1 yr 103.5m 4.37% 1 yr

Total Debt £264.6m 5.83% 20 yrs £264.1m 5.84% 20 yrs

31st March 2018 31st March 2019

Principal Principal

 
  

(1) The lenders all have an option to increase the rates payable on these loans on certain pre-set dates, and if 
they exercise this option we can either repay or accept the higher rate. The average life is based on the next 
option date. 

 

17. The position in respect of investments varies throughout the year as it depends on 
large inflows and outflows of cash.  Over the course of the year the loan portfolio 
(which includes cash managed on behalf of schools with devolved banking 
arrangements) varied between £204.1m and £299.8m, and averaged £248m. 
Investments as at 31 March 2019 totalled £247.5m. 
 

Debt Transactions 
 
18. The Council began the financial year £7.7m over-borrowed compared with the 

amount required to fund the historic capital programme - the Capital Financing 
Requirement.     
 

19. Although the term over borrowed suggests an unusual situation, it is simply caused 
by the County Council setting aside money each year so that when the loan becomes 
due it can be repaid.  Historically this situation did not arise because new borrowing 
was undertaken each year. Recently, however, there has been no requirement to 
borrow to fund the capital programme (which leads to debt financing costs that fall on 
the revenue budget), particularly as the Government changed a number of years ago 
to award grants to fund the capital programme rather than continue its previous 
approach of supporting borrowing.  Ideally the situation would be remedied by 
repaying loans early.  However, given the large penalties that would be incurred from 
early repayment the position is unlikely to change unless long-term interest rates rise 
significantly. 
  

20. At the end of the financial year, after the repayment of debt and setting aside funding 
for the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) - a charge (c. £10m) that is intended to 
ensure that loans raised to finance capital expenditure are paid off over the longer 
term – the Council was £17.6m over-borrowed.  

 

239



 
 

21. The lack of opportunity to reduce the debt portfolio because of historic stagnant 
interest rates makes the punitive redemption costs prohibitive.  The debt portfolio 
stands at £264.1m and the average pool rate 5.84%. 

 
22. Only £0.5m of repayments were made during the year meaning that the average pool 

rate was stagnant.  
 
Investments 
 
23. The loan portfolio produced an average return of 0.83% in 2018/19, compared to an 

average base rate of 0.67% and the average 7-day LIBID (London Interbank Bid 
Rate) index (representative of what could be achieved if only short-term loans within 
the money market were made) of 0.52%.  
  

24. The loan portfolio has outperformed both the average base rate and the average 7-
day LIBID in every one of the last 24 years, which is when the figures started to be 
produced.  The level of the out performance is flattered somewhat by the significant 
over performance achieved both during and in the immediate aftermath of the credit 
crunch.  The average rate of interest earned on the portfolio in the last 24 years is 
3.84%, and this compares to an average base rate and the average LIBID index 
which have both produced a return of 3.2%.  
 

25. The variability of balances makes it difficult to calculate the excess interest that the 
over performance has achieved over the whole of the 20+ year period for which 
performance records are available, but it is estimated to be at least £28m.  Almost 
half of this added value came in the five financial years from 2008 to 2013, which can 
be categorised as the start of the financial crisis and a period in which a number of 
loans placed during the financial crisis were earning interest at rates that (relative to 
base rates) were extraordinary. 
 

26. The numbers in paragraph 23-25 exclude investments relating to private debt.  The 
total value of private debt investment as at 31st March 2019 was £20m and is 
performing in line with expectations. 

 
Summary 
 
27. Treasury Management is an integral part of the Council’s overall finances and the 

performance of this area is very important.  Whilst individual years obviously matter, 
performance is best viewed on a medium / long term basis.  The action taken in 
respect of the debt portfolio in recent years has been extremely beneficial and has 
resulted in significant savings.  Short term gains might, on occasions, be sacrificed 
for longer term certainty and stability.  

 
28. The loan portfolio has produced an exceptional level of over performance in the 

period in which performance figures have been calculated.  Adding significant value 
in a period of extremely low interest rates is very difficult.  Ironically a period in which 
there begins to be differentiation in expectations for both the pace and extent of 
future base rate rises will make the cash sums that can be gained larger, whilst also 
giving a higher level of risk that the decisions taken might be wrong.  Such a period 
has intermittently seemed to get closer in recent years, only to be consistently put 
back. 

 

240



 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
29. None. 
 
Background Papers 

 
Report to County Council on 22nd February 2018 – ‘Medium Term Financial Plan’:   
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s135701/MTFS%20report.pdf 
 
Appendix L ‘Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 
2018/19’  
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s135713/Appendix%20L%20-
%20Treasury%20Management%20Strategy.pdf 
 
Circulation under local issues alert procedure 
 
None. 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources,  
Corporate Resources Department, 
0116 305 6199    E-mail Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director (Strategic Finance and Property),  
Corporate Resources Department,  
0116 305 7668   E-mail Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 

241

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s135701/MTFS%20report.pdf
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s135713/Appendix%20L%20-%20Treasury%20Management%20Strategy.pdf
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/documents/s135713/Appendix%20L%20-%20Treasury%20Management%20Strategy.pdf
mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 10 MAY 2019 

QUARTERLY TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT  

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES   
 

Purpose of the Report   

1. To update the Committee on the actions taken in respect of treasury 
management for the quarter ending 31 March 2019 (Quarter 4). 

Background  

2. Treasury Management is defined as:-  

“The management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control 
of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks”. 

3. A quarterly report is produced for the Committee to provide an update on 
any significant events in the area of treasury management. 

Economic Background 

4. In the UK, Gross Domestic Product (GDP) slowed slightly to 0.3% in the 
rolling 3 months to February.  This continues the downward trend since the 
strong growth recorded in the summer months.  GDP growth was driven 
mainly by the services (0.4%) and production sectors (0.2%).  Construction 
output for the rolling three months was -0.6%, although it should be noted 
the construction sector grew by 0.4% in February – driven by private housing 
and infrastructure. 

5. Inflation in the UK (as measured by the Consumer Price Index) eased to 
1.8% in January, although this was in line with the Bank of England’s 
expectations it was the first sub 2% reading in two years.  This easing was 
driven by weaker energy inflation as the utility price cap weighed along with 
lower fuel prices.  Going forwards, Ofgem’s decision to increase the utility 
price cap from 1st April should add to inflation and coupled with increasing 
food inflation (driven by rising agricultural commodity and domestic producer 
prices), analysts suggest inflation will push back through the 2% level and 
could hit 2.5% by April. 
 

243 Agenda Item 15



 
6. On 21st March, the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) 

voted unanimously to keep the base rate on hold at 0.75%.  Brexit continues 
to tie the Bank’s hands; most observers believe the Bank wishes to start to 
move interest rates higher but has found itself stymied by politics.  The 
Council’s treasury advisers suggest the chances of a near term rate hike are 
slim at best and the prospect of a move towards the end of the year is only 
50%.             

 
7. The US economy continues to show signs of cooling down, Q4 GDP 

forecasts have been revised lower in light of the weak retail sales data in 
December.  A figure of around 2.5% is favored, but less optimistic revisions 
suggest this could be as low as 1.5%.  Having had four interest rate rises 
last year expectations, following recent communications from the Fed, are 
that there will now be no rate hikes in 2019.   

 
8. Eurozone growth continues to be weak; GDP growth quarter on quarter is 

still running at 0.2%.  This slowdown since 2017 has resulted from net 
exports swinging from a driver of economic growth to being a lag.  The four 
main economies in the eurozone continue to exhibit differing levels of 
performance; on the one hand Italy is experiencing a small contraction and 
Germany only marginally avoided a technical recession in the first quarter of 
2019.  France and Spain, on the other hand, continue to enjoy healthy 
growth. 

 
Action Taken during Quarter 4 to March 2019 

9. The March MPC meeting delivered the expected no change vote with a 
unanimous 9-0 vote.  Indications are that rates will remain on hold at least 
until after the UK exits the European Union, and probably until the 
implications of the exit are better understood.  The result is that loans for 
short dated rates out to six months are not overly attractive when compared 
to those of longer duration.  Opportunities will be sought to extend the 
maturity profile and improve returns. 

10. During the quarter the balance of the investment portfolio increased from 
£228.7m to £247.5m.  Within the portfolio £33.7m of loans matured at an 
average rate of 0.91% and £52.5m of new loans were placed, at an average 
rate of 1.08%.  

11. The loan portfolio at the end of December was invested with the 
counterparties shown in the list below, shown by original investment date. 
 
 

 
 
 

244



 
 

 
 

Loans to counterparties that breached authorised lending list 

12. There were no loans active during the period that breached the authorised 
counterparty list at the time that the loan was made, and none that had 
already been placed to a counterparty that subsequently fell below the 
threshold that would have been acceptable for the remaining period of the 
loan following a credit-rating downgrade. 
 

Ring-Fenced and Non-Ring-Fenced Banks 

13. From 1st January 2019 the largest UK banks, those with more than £25bn of 
retail deposits, have been required by legislation to separate core domestic 
retail banking activities from international and investment banking activities. 
This structural reform is known as ring fencing.  As such, the largest UK banks 

 £m Maturity Date 

   

Instant Access   

Money Market Funds 2.5 April 2019 

   

6 Months   

Goldman Sachs 10.0 April 2019 

National Bank of Canada 10.0 May 2019 

Goldman Sachs 10.0 June 2019 

Nationwide Building Society 10.0 July 2019 

Santander 20.0 September 2019 

Close Brothers Ltd 20.0 September 2019 

   

12 Months   

Lloyds (Bank of Scotland) 10.0 May 2019 

Australia & New Zealand Bank 15.0 May 2019 

National Westminster Bank Plc 10.0 May 2019 

National Westminster Bank Plc 20.0 July 2019 

National Westminster Bank Plc 20.0 August 2019 

Toronto Dominion Bank 15.0 October 2019 

Landesbank Hessen Thuringen 15.0 October 2019 

Commonwealth Bank of Australia 10.0 November 2019 

Lloyds (Bank of Scotland) 20.0 November 2019 

   

Beyond 12 Months   

Partners Group (Private Debt) 20.0 Estimated 2024 

Danske Bank 10.0 September 2027 

   

Total Portfolio Balance at 
31st March 2019 

 
247.5 

 

245



now effectively have two separate entities, each with their own credit rating, to 
which the Council can lend. 

14. Appendix A shows a comparison of how the credit ratings of the Ring-Fenced 
Banks (RFB) compare with those of the Non-Ring-Fenced Banks (NRFB) and 
also to other institutions on the Council’s suggested counterparty list. 

15. It should be noted that the Councils suggested counter party list and 
suggested loan duration is determined by a combination of short term and 
long-term credit ratings, as well as Credit Defaults Swap (CDS) price.  The 
CDS price is essentially the cost of insuring against the bank defaulting on its 
debt which is an indication of its creditworthiness.  This means, on rare 
occasions, an institution can have a lower long-term credit rating than another, 
but still be deemed a safer counterparty.  

16. Another factor that influences creditworthiness is the nationalised status of a 
Bank.  For example, National Westminster Bank and Royal Bank of Scotland 
(Ring Fenced Banks) have a credit rating of A-, lower than a number of other 
institutions, but are still considered the safest counterparty on our list due to 
their part nationalised status.         

Resource Implications  

17. The interest earned on revenue balances and the interest paid on external 
debt will impact directly onto the resources available to the Council. 

Equality and Human Rights Implications  

18. There are no discernible equality and human rights implications. 

Recommendation   

19. The Committee is asked to note this report. 

Background Papers  

20. None 

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure  

None 

Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources,  
Corporate Resources Department, 
0116 305 6199    E-mail Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
 

246

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk


Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director (Strategic Finance and Property),  
Corporate Resources Department,  
0116 305 7668   E-mail Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A - Comparison of credit ratings of Ring-Fenced and Non-Ring-Fenced  

  Banks  

247

file:///C:/Users/jfirth/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/0ABUO68F/Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Weekly Credit List: 18/04/2019

S&P Rating 

long term 

rating

HSBC UK Bank 

Plc (RFB)

HSBC Bank PLC 

(NRFB)

A+
Bank of Scotland 

PLC (RFB)

Lloyds Bank Plc 

(RFB)

A+

Goldman Sachs 

International 

Bank

Lloyds Bank 

Corporate 

Markets Plc 

(NRFB)

Barclays Bank UK 

PLC (RFB)

Santander UK 

PLC

Barclays Bank 

PLC (NRFB)

Close Brothers 

Ltd

Standard 

Chartered Bank

A-

National 

Westminster 

Bank PLC (RFB)*

The Royal Bank 

of Scotland Plc 

(RFB)*

NatWest 

Markets Plc 

(NRFB)

Clydesdale Bank 

PLC

AA-

A

*Natwest and The Royal Bank of Scotland are classed as nationalised or part nationalised and are therefore considered to be the safest counterparty (despite not 

having the highest credit rating)

Appendix A

BBB+

Ring Fenced and Non-ring Fenced Banks Other Institutions

249



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2019.
	6 Informing the External Audit Risk Assessment.
	GrantThornton Audit Risk Assessment.pdf

	7 Risk Management Report.
	Appendix A- Corporate Risk Register Update
	Appendix B - Full Corporate Risk Register
	Appendix C - Risk Management Health Check Report (January 2019)
	Introduction
	About Leicestershire County Council
	About the Risk Management Health Check

	Executive Summary and Recommendations
	Executive Summary
	Recommendations (Short and Medium Term)
	Recommendations (Longer Term)

	Risk Management Health Check Findings
	Leadership and Management
	Strategy and Policy
	People
	Partnerships, Shared Risks and Resources
	Processes
	Risk Handling and Assurance
	Outcomes and Delivery

	Risk Management Survey Results
	Appendix 1: Health Check Interviewees
	Appendix 2: About RMP


	8 Annual Governance Statement 2019/20.
	Appendix - Draft Annual Governance Statement 2018-19

	9 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 - Annual review of Policy Statement.
	Appendix - Policy Statement

	10 Ethical Standards in Local Government.
	Appenidx

	11 Internal Audit Service Progress Report.
	Appendix 1 - Summary of Internal Audit Service Work 050119 to 260419
	Appendix 2 - HI Progress Report at 26 April 2019

	12 Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19.
	Appendix - Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018-19
	Annex 1 - HoIAS annual opinion 2018-19
	Annex 2 - Summary of Internal Audit Service Work supporting the HoIAS opinion
	Annex 3 - Summary - Self-assessment of conformance with PSIAS - April 2019
	Annex 4 - LCCIAS QAIP with action plan

	13 Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019/20.
	Copy of Appendix - Leicestershire County Council Summary Internal Audit Plan 2019-20

	14 Annual Treasury Management Report 2018/19.
	15 Quarterly Treasury Management Update.
	Appendix - Ring Fenced and Non Ring Fenced Banks


